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In supportofthedecisionof Countyof KankakeeandtheCountyBoardofKankakee
andits overwhelmingdecisionof Marchthel7~’.of 2004,to denyWasteManagement’s
Landfill ExpansionSiting Application.

I)STATEMENTSOF FACT
II)Applicant engagedin FundamentallyUnfair practicesagainstthepeopleof
KankakeeCountyand theKankakeeCountyBoard, in attemptingto coercean
affirmativevote from theBoardon its 2003Siting Application.

And
III)The manifestweightof evidencefails to supportApplicants allegationsthat
FundamentalUnfairnessenteredinto theKankakee County Board’s decisionto
deny WasteManagement’sApplication for a proposedexpansionof the Kankakee
Landfill, onMarch

17
th, 2004.

VI) ARGUMENT
WasteManagementhascreatedafictitious mythin attemptingto establishthatthe2003
landfill expansionApplicationvoteby theKankakeeCountyBoard,wassubjectto
fundamentallyunfair practices. Whenfactsfail, mythsmustprevail.

Fiction,: ApplicantallegesBruceHarrison,aDemocrat,unemployediron worker
persuadeda bedrockRepublicanCountyBoardto voteagainstthe landfill expansion.
TheCountyWasincorporatedin 1853andthroughoutits entirehistory it hasbeen
controlledby Democratsfor only two years.(1999-2000)It helda 17 to 11 majority atthe
timeof the2004vote. In truth, themajority is morelike 20 to 8 becauseBoardMembers
Wilson,WashingtonandWaskowskyareDemocratsin nameonly. Theynearlyalways
vote
with theRepublicanmajority. In the lastelectiontheDemocratsran a full slatof
candidatesandfailed to pick a singleseaton theBoard.

Fact:Most BoardMembersdid not speakwith Mr. Harrisonandthosewho did saidhe
did not influencetheirvotesandwerenot intimidatedon threatenedby Mr. Harrison. All
BoardMembersadmittedtheybasedtheirvoteson therecord. Mr. Moranwould have
hadto impeacheachandeveryBoardMember’stestimonyto provethatMr. Harrison
influencedtheirvotes. Mr. Halloranassessedthatall witnesseswerecredibile.

Fact:We areledto believethatMr. Harrison-hadhetalkedwith all the boardmembers,
wasmorepersuasivethanWasteManagement’sprofessionalhearingteam..Eachand
everyBoardMembertestifiedthathe or shemadetheirvotedecisionon therecord.
Logic andfactsprevail.

Fiction: Applicantallegesthefirst andsecondapplicationswerethesame,therefore,
therecouldbe no reasonfor theboardto voteragainstthe2003 Application.

Fact:Thesite is thesamein both Applicationswhich is why mostboardmembersvoted
againsttheapplication. Theyweremisleadduring he resolutionhearinginto thinking
theprotectionof thepublic’s HealthSafetyandWelfarewasto bevotedon in a later
criterion. That’sthe reasontheydid notvoteno on Criterion II. Therealreasonthe



objector’sFurther,WasteManagementassumesthePCBwould haveruledfor approval
ofthefirst Applicationon themanifestweightoftheevidence. ThePCBreversedthe
first applicationon notificationandneverreviewedthemanifestweightof theevidence.
Theobjectorspresentedmoreconvincingevidencethanthatpresentedby Waste
Management’steam. Their realestate expert’scredibility wastotally impeachedduring
the hearing. TheBoardMembersvotedon therecordand deniedtheApplication.

Fact:Wastemanagementallegesthatconspiracy,deceit, perjury,andpolitical
intimidationtook placeduringtheex parteperiod. Theyarecorrectbecauseit is they
who committedthoseacts. WasteManagementviolatedtheex parterule through
Moran’slettersandthroughagentO’connerandsuspectedagentWiseman’scontactwith
a BoardMember. WasteManagementconspiredwith a small groupof CountyBoard
membersin secretandillegal meetings,forthreeyearsprior to announcingthe
amendmentto thesolidwasteManagementPlanto allowout of countygarbageandthe
planned302acreexpansionofthepresentlandfill. It wasWasteManagementwho
intimidatedBruceHarrisonandRobertKeller. WasteManagementhadmany
opportunitiesto locateandsubpoenaMr. HarrisonduringtheKankakeeCountyfair of
2004.Hewastherethewhole time asWasLeeAddlemanof WasteManagement.Waste
Managementalsoresortedto Political Intimidation-MonopolizingtheBoardRoomto the
exclusionof Countyresidentsandby picketingtheboard,theday ofthevote. Further
theyareactivelyinvolved in attemptingto
Intimidatethecountyboardinto doingabackdoorapprovalof theexpansion~

Fact:WasteManagement,certainMembersof theKankakeeCountyBoard, State’s
AttorneyEd Smith andCounty’shiredAttorneyarepresentlyengagedin aconspiracyto
deceiveall partiesincluding thePollution ControlBoardandto underminethewhole
sitngprocessandto do abackdoorsiting of theproposedexpansion.CountyChairman
Karl Krusehasscheduleda SpecialMeetingoftheCountyBoardforge an agreement
with WasteManagementandto withdrawform thePCBAppeal.
This dealis beingoffered by WasteManagement’sAttorney via theCounty’s Special
AttorneyChuckHeisten. (Exhibit F)
(All datasubmittedhereinarefrom PCBFile47311-106, PCB,47353-07andPCB

File47359-1.Thefirst two arehearingtranscripts,thelatteris theOlthoff,/Bertrand
deposition. File 47359. Therearefive a sourcedocumentssubmittedasexhibits

II)Applicant engagedin Fundamentally Unfair practicesagainstthepeopleof
Kankakee County and the Kankakee County Board, in attempting to coerce an
affirmative votefrom theBoard on its 2003SitingApplication Including theabove
reference Special Meeting.

A)Applicant Participated in Illegal Secret meetingswith an informal group
of County Board Membersfor threeyearsprior to announcingplans for the
Expansionofthelandfill to thepublic.

1)SecretMeetingsRunyon public CommentP-114,File 47353
5—6 Waste Management had been meeting secretly with a,
7 “Special group of board members or an
8 informal group of board members,” for
9 three years prior to the announcement of the

10 amendment of the solid waste plan. This was
11 corroborated two people, county board member
12 Mike Quigley, who said when they introduced
13 the host fee agreement that members of the
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12 Mike Quigley, who said when they introduced
13 the host fee agreement that members of the
14 board had been meeting with Waste Management
15 for up to three years prior to this, and the
16 host fee agreement was simply the culmination
17 of those meetings
21 vice—chairman Pam Lee, corroborated what
22 Mr. Quigley had to say in her deposition when
23 she said, an informal group of county board
24 members has been meeting with Waste Management

B)Applicantcommittedviolationsoftheexparterule throughwritten
correspondenceto theCountyanby havingits agentsandsuspectedagents
Communicatewith oneor moreBoardMembersduring theexparteperiod.

1)BoardMemberStanleyJamestestifiedthat hewascontactedby “Connerand
Wiseman”prior to theBoard’svote. He wasreferringto SueAnn O’conner,aknown
agentof WasteManagement. WesleyWisemanwho wasoneto the“informal group” of

r BoardMembersthatmet with WasteManagementin a seriesof secretmeetings
Wisemanhasbeenasupporterandis believedto be an agentof WasteManagementIn
addition,WasteManagementAttorney,DonMoransenta letter to BoardChairmenKarl
Kruseon March 11, 2004,twentydaysafterthepublic commentperiodhadbeenclosed.
2)StanJamestestimonyaboutO’connercontactp-l55 ,File 47353
15 A. I had two phone calls that supported
16 it, Connor and Weisman. 2

2 A. Basically that I should consider all
3 the facts.
4 Q. What else?
5 A. That she basically supported. She had
6 no objection to it, and that was it.

3)StanJames testimony regarding Wiseman contact,0156-57 ,File47353
19 Q. You said you also got a call from
20 Weisman?
21 A. Yes.
22 Q. What did Weisman say to you?
23 A. Weisman favored the expansion, the --

24 approving it.
3)DonaldMoran, Attorney for WasteManagementsubmitted a letter to County
Board Chairman Karl Kruse March 11,2004,twentydaysbeyondthe cutoff period
for public comment. (Seeexhibit B)

C)Applicant stationed picketing agents in front of the
County Building the Day ofthe vote, in violation ofthe exparte rule.
In public commentboth Bruck and Runyon testified to theexistenceof
Waste Management’s pickets.

1)Bruck public Comment p- 0370File 47311-1
20 I would just like to note for the
21 record that there was also picketers out
22 there in favor of the Waste Management
23 landfill and I can determine that because I
24 saw their signs picketing in favor of the

1 0370 dump and I asked them who they were and they
2 said they were Waste Management employees and
3 they said they had been told that if the
4 expansion didn’t happen, that they were going
5 to lose their jobs and so they were out there
6 picketing in favor of the dump and that has

3



7 not been mentioned to this point.
2)Runyon Public comment, about Waste Management pickets. P-0113 File 47353
10 We’ve heard a lot about signs as
11 if they’re a mean thing to have, and yet, I
12 also testified yesterday -- or Daryl Bruck
13 did, that Waste Management had picketers
14 outside with signs. Now, just why is it that
15 that ‘ s good for them and bad for the people

D)Applicant wasguilty ofpacking the County Board Room gallery with its
employees barring citizens from entering the room during the March 17,
2004 siting meeting.

1)Romer public commentregarding WasteManagementBoard Room PackingP.
0111,File 47353

3 Iwasnot
4 outside picketing. I came in. I came in
5 about 8:00. The room was already full, and I
6 inched my way into the room; and when I got
7 in, I found Lee Addleman was talking to Waste
8 Management employees. I know they were
9 employees because they were wearing badges,

10 and they had filled the room, and they stated
11 that they were there to keep the citizens
12 out. That was the day they voted the
13 landfill down.

2)Keith Runyon’stestimonyin public comment. P-0112, File 47353
14 MR. RUNYON: first of all I want to second
17 what Ms. Romer had to say. I too witnessed
18 exactly what she saw, the room. The galley
19 was totally flooded with Waste Management
20 employees with very large badges, probably
21 eight inches by six inches, very predominant.
22 In addition to that, the sheriff
23 stood outside the door and would not allow
24 people in, and if anybody had any sign or

1 0113 placard that was in opposition to the
2 landfill, he certainly would not let them in.

E)Applicant is accusedof intimidatingan opponent of the landfill expansion
1)Mr. Keller testified that Mr. Harrison was in fear for his life P0123,124,152,153
File 47311-1

MOran
6 0152 Q. has
9 not provided any location as to where he may be that

10 he is fearful for his physical safety from Waste
11 Management?
12 A. Is that my assumption, yes.
13 Q. Is that your belief based upon what he
14 has told you?
15 A. Yes.
16 Q. And is it accurate to say, Mr. Keller,
17 that Mr. Harrison has not told you about any
18 specific acts or instances in which his life or his
19 personal safety was threatened by any person or
20 representative of Waste Management?
21 A. He is the one that told me and showed
22 me the truck that drives by my house and now I have
23 noticed it on my own daily from Waste Management.

4



5 A. No, mine.
6 Q. And can you describe that truck for
7 us?
8 A. It’s a maroon, I believe it’s a Chevy,
9 I’ve followed it numerous times and they’ve pulled

10 back into the dump.
11 Q. You followed the truck?
12 A. I have, yes.
13 Q. So you have observed this vehicle
14 driving around the landfill, driving by your
15 property?
1)Mr. RunyonAlso testifiedthat Mr. Harrison was in fear for his life P195-196File
47311-1

BY THE WITNESS:
5 he told me that he was going
6 to disappear because he feared for his life.
7 BY MR. MORAN:
8 Q. This is consistent with what
9 Mr. Keller indicated this morning?

10 A. That’s what he told me and I said why
11 are you afraid and he said I’m afraid I could be ——

12 end up in a landfill.
13

19 Q. It was your understanding based upon
20 what he told you that he was in fear for his life
21 because of what?
22 A. Because of his opposition to the
23 landfill.

8 0196 Q. Do you have any reason to believe
9 that Mr. Harrison fears for his life?

10 A. I can only go by what he told me.
11 Q. So you accepted what he said?

- 12 A. I beg your pardon?
13 Q. You accepted what he said, the reason
14 he has disappeared is that he fears for his life?
15 A. That’s what he told me.
20 Q. Where did this take place?
21 A. I believe it was at the fairgrounds.

1 0197 Q. Was anyone else present for this
2 discussion?
3 A. No.
4 Q. How long did the discussion last?
5 A. About three minutes.

III) Manifest weightof theevidencefails to support Applicant’s allegations that
FundamentalUnfairnessenteredinto the Kankakee CountyBoard’s decisionto
deny WasteManagement’sApplication for a proposedexpansionof theKankakee
Lañdfill.On March

17
th• 2004.

Waste Management’scasein chiefis predicateduponthefalseallegations,

1)That:

1)CountyBoardMembervoteswereinfluencedby possiblecontactswith thepublic.

2) letterspresumably,opposing the landfill, influencedvotesoftheBoardMembers.

4) picketsoutsidetheCountyBuilding on theday of thevoteinfluencedBoardmembers

votes.

5



5) County Board member Ann Bernard unfairly pre-announced heroppositionto the

landfill anddid not baseheroppositionon testimonyfrom thehearings.And, furtherthat

hercampaigninfluenced19 BoardMembersto voteagainsttheApplication.

6) BruceHarrisonhadcommunicationswith severalboardmembersduringthe ex parte

periodandthathe persuadedtheBoardMembersto vote to deny. No boardmember

indicatedthattheallegedcontactsby Mr. Harrisoninfluencedhis orhervote.

7)In addition,Mr. Harrisonwasnot aparty to the hearings.Thepartiesare: Waste

Management,The Countyof Kankakee,Merlin Karlock, MichaelWatson, Keith

Runyon,KennethBleyerandtheCity of Kankakee.

In a parallelcase,LAND AND LAKES v. RANDLOPHCOUNTYBOARDOF

COMMISSIONERS,(PCB99-69)the Pollution Control Board ruled againstLand

and Lakes. “PP 23-24 CONCLUSION“ The Board finds that the members of the

Randolph County Board were subjected to numerous contacts outside the record of the

However, these contacts did not affect the ultimate decision anddid not prejudice Land

and Lakes. Therefore pursuant to Waste Management v. PCBand E&EHauling v. PCB

the proceedings were not tainted by the contacts and were not fundamentally unfair.

(Exhibit E)

III)The manifestweightofthe evidencefails to supportApplicant’sallegationsthat
fundamentalunfairnessenteredinto the Kankakee County Board’s denial, on
March

17
th,

2004~
of WasteManagement’sApplicationfor aProposedExpansionof

theKankakeeLandfill.

Justasin theRandolphCountycase,therewerescatteredincidentsof attempted
communicationwith the board, nonethelessthe Applicant failed to prove that these
scatteredattemptspersuadedany Board Members to vote to deny the landfill.
The following summation of eachcounty Board Members testimonyclearly
indicatesno outsideactionsinfluencedtheir votesand that theyindeed madetheir
judgments from the record.

A)Countv Board Member Karen Hertzberger wasnot influenced by public contacts,
letter, pickets on the day ofthe meetingor postedsigns.Shevotedno to both the
2003application and the 2004application. Nor wasMs. Hertzberger intimidated by
contact from BruceHarrison.
1)Ms. Hertzberger Testimony docunientingher denial vote. P_0045,46File 47311-1
06

5 0046 Q. And in voting on the 2003 siting
6 application, you voted to deny certain of the
7 criteria, is that correct?
8 A. That’s correct.
9 Q. And you voted to deny certain of the

6



10 criteria that you had approved when you voted on the
11 2002 siting application, correct?
12 A. Correct.

1)MsHertzberger made her decisionon therecord.P-0073,74
P- 0071File47311-106
21 Q. Did you consider any factors or
22 information outside the record in rendering your
23 decision on January 31, 2003?
P=0071 1 BY THE WITNESS:
2 A. No.
2)Ms.Hertzbergersvotewasnot influencedby Mr. Harrison’sattemptto talk with
her. P-0074File, 47311-1
A. Never.
12 Q. Did you consider anything Mr. Harrison

13 said to be evidence?
14 A. No.
15 by Mr. Porter
16 Q. Did Mr. Harrison coming to your office
17 in any way intimidate you?
18 A. Nobody intimidates me.
B)CountvBoardMemberLarry Gibbsvoteon theApplication wasnot influenced
by public contacts,letters,pickets on the day ofthemeetingor postedsigns.
1)Mr. Gibbs admitsreceivinglettersbut didn’t read them read them.
13 - Q. Were these letters or written
14 materials opposed to the proposed expansion?
15 A. I never read any of them but one.
16 When I first received them,
18 —was for the landfill, I closed it up, sealed it
back
19 and took it to the clerk and all the rest of them.
1)Mr. Gibbsnot influencedby peoplewho tried to speakwith him about the landfill
outsidethehearing.P-0222,23 , File 47311-106
16 BY MR. PORTER:
20 Q. And as soon as you found out he wanted

21 to talk about the application, you stopped his
22 attempted communication, is that right?
23 A. Yes.

24 Q. Now, there was some mention of a few
0222

1 people that apparently stopped you on the street and
2 mentioned the landfill. Did you tell those people
3 that you could not discuss it?
4 A. Yes.

C)Countv Board Member JamieRomeinwasnot influencedby public contacts,
letter, Picketson the dayofthe meeting,or postedsigns.
1)Mr Romeinadmits to having receiving letters but wasnot influencedor
threatenedby them. P-0254,255,File 47311-1 06
BY MR. MORAN:
22 Q. Mr. Romein, does that refresh your
23 recollection?
24 A. It does, but I still didn’t feel
0237
10 0255 Q. So would your answer be yes?
11 A. I still don’t think this letter is

7



12 threatening, so I don’t feel threatened by it.
13 Q. And what was your answer?
14 0255 A. I didn’t feel threatened by the
15 letters.
2)Mr. Romeindid not feelthreatenedby attemptsof Mr. Harrison,ofthepublic, to
talk with himaboutthelandfill.

Porter CrossP..0254,255File 47311-106
24 Q. At any time did you feel threatened by

1 0254 the conduct of Mr. Harrison?
14 BY THE WITNESS:
15 A. Absolutely not, no.

ThCountv Board Member Elmer Wilson wasnot influencedby public contacts,
letters,Picketson thedayof themeetingor postedsigns.
1)Mr. Wilson votedto approvebothapplications.It is obviousthatnoneof the
alleged“unfair practices”influencedhisvoteon the2004Application.
Wilson Testimony P-0259,60, File 47311-1 06
20 Q. And you voted to approve the 2002
21 application?
22 A. Yes.

8 0260 Q. And you voted to approve the 2003
9 application?

10 A. Yes.
2)Mr. Wilson rebuffed attempts on the part of Mr. Harrisonto talk about the
landfill expansion.P-0264,65File 47311-106
0264
23 Q. And what did he continue to say?
24 A. That he had talked to people about
0265

1 support and my reference always was are we talking
2 about the same matter and he’d say yes, and I’d say
3 you know I can’t talk about it. Thank, you for the
4 meal.

16 0269 Q. And each time he attempted to talk to
17 you, you told him you couldn’t talk to him about the
18 landfill expansion?
19 A. Correct.
19 A. Correct.
24 Q. Did you feel threatened or intimidated
0270

1 by anything he said to you?
2 A. No.

3)Mr. Wilson wasnot threatened or influencedby any actionsof the public who
apposedthe expansion.Helstencrossexam P-0169,70File 47311-1 06
10 0270 Q. By the way, were you threatened by any
11 of the petitions that Mr. Watson handedyou?
12 A. No.
13 Q. Did you even look at them?
14 A. No.
15

Q. Did you immediately throw them into a
16 waste paper basket?
17 A. Yes, I did.
4)Mr. Wilson wasnot threatenedor influenced by any actionsof the public
who apposedthe expansion.HelstencrossexamP-0269,270File 47311-1 06

2 0269 A. No.



3 Q. Okay. Reverend Wilson, had you
4 previously been instructed not to talk to members of
5 the public about the proposed expansion?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. And not to engage in any communication
8 with them over the telephone either?
9 A. Yes.

10 Q. By the way, were you threatened by any
11 of the petitions that Mr. Watson handed you?
12 A. No.
13 Q. Did you even look at them?
14 A. No.
15 Q. Did you immediately throw them into a
16 waste paper basket?
17 A. Yes, I did.
18 MR. HELSTEN: Thank you. That’s all.
E) CountyBoard MemberRobertSchollwasnot influencedby public contacts,
letters,phonecallsPicketson thedayof themeetingor signsopposinglandfills.
P-0274,75, File 47311-1 06
1)Mr. Sholl Receivedonephonecall from a supporterof thelandfill.
1) 0274
19 Q. Mr. Scholl, prior to the vote on
20 March 17th, 2004, did you receive any phone calls
21 regarding the proposed expansion?
22 A. Prior to the vote?
23 Q. Yes.
24 A. Yes.
0275

1 Q. How many phone calls did you receive?
2 A. I received one phone call.
3 Q. From whom?
4 A. It was from a trucking business that
5 was in support of the landfill.

2)Signs did not affectMr. Scholl’s voteon the expansion. P- 0297,File 47311-106
15 MR. PORTER: Again, I
22 I at least get to ask if he was threatened by the
23 fact that he saw these yard signs.
24
19 A. Physically threatened is -- it’s an
20 inanimate object. Was I threatened by the sign

1 BY THE WITNESS:
3 A. Not at all.

3)Mr. Scholl was not threatened by the picketers.P-0297,98
Fi1e47311—1 06

BY MR. PORTER:
5 Q. And finally, were you threatened or
6 intimidated by seeing picketers?
7 A. No.

4)Did not read letters from the public, thus they had no influence on Mr. Scholl”s
vote.P-0295File47311-106
12 Q. And what did you do with them?
13 A. It is my recollection I brought them
14 into the county clerk’s office.
15 Q. The letter that you did open and read,
16 did you --

17 A. Excuse me. I did not read it. I

9



18 glanced at the letters.
P-0296File 47311-1

21 BY MR. PORTER:
22 Q. Did you feel threatened or intimidated
23 by the receipt of those letters?
24 A. No.
5)Mr. Schollwasnotthreatenedor intimdatedby Mr. Harrison.P-0297
10 by Mr. Porter
11 Q. If I understood your direct testimony,
12 you had one communication with Mr. Harrison in the
13 breaks during the hearings, is that right?
14 A. That is correct.
15 Q. Was anything that Mr. Harrison said to
16 you different than what he said to the public during
17 the hearings?
18 A. Not to my recollection, no.
19 Q. Did you feel threatened or intimidated
0296

1 by anything Mr. Harrison said?
2 A. No.

6)Mr. Scholl was not threatenedor intimidated by letters. P-0297,96
3 Q. There was reference to some letters
4 that you received and I’m sorry, refresh my
5 recollection, did you read those letters?
6 - A. No.
7 Q. Did you feet threatened or intimidated
8 by receipt of those letters?

24 A. No.

7)Mr. Scholl wasnot threatenedor intimidated by the yard signs.P-0296File 47311-
1 0297 Q. I believe there was some mention of
2 yard signs in your direct. Did you see the yard
3 signs?
4 A. Yes.
5 Q. Did you feet threatened or intimidated
6 by yard signs?
1. 0298
2 BY THE WITNESS:
3 A. Not at all.

0297

8)Mr. Schollwasnot threatenedor intimidated by picketers.P-0297, File 47311-1
4 BY MR. PORTER:

5 Q. And finally, were you threatened or
6 intimidated by seeing picketers?
7 A. No.
8 MR. MORAN: Objection.
9 HEARING OFFICER HALLORAN: Overruled.

10 MR. PORTER: Nothing further.

F) Former County Board Member Ed Meentswasnot influenced by public contacts,
letters,picketson thedayof themeetingor postedsigns
1)Mr. Meentsrefusedto discussthelandfill expansionwith Mr. Harrison.
P-0306File 47311-1 06
14 A. Mr. Harrison started to address the
18 question and I told him we’re not going to talk
19 about the landfill, we can talk about the family and
20 that, but we’re not talking about the landfill.
21 Q. Having told him that, did he continue

In



22 to talk about the proposed expansion?
23 A. He tried, but each time he was cut off.

2)Mr.Meents faithfully followed the ex parte rule.
P-0321-22File47311-106

5 0322 Q. You had been counseled to that effect?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. You followed that direction?
8 A. Other than this one phone call, if you
9 consider that a violation, I would admit to that.

10 Q. Well, did you talk to Mr. Harrison
11 about the substance of the application when he
12 called?
13 A. No.
3)Mr. Meentsturned all communicationsregarding the’-landfiWinft~-the-County
Clerk. P- 0322File 47311-106
18 Q. Likewise in regard to the letters, you
19 turned those into the county clerk?
20 A. Yes.

G)CountvBoardMemberAnnBernardwasnot influencedby public contacts,
letters, phonecalls, pickets or postedsigns.
1)Her votewasbasedon the testimony in therecord ofthe first hearing.
The site was the samein both Application
P-0363-64File 47311-106

Q. - Okay. Likewise, when you drafted your
21 web pages, you had already been through the entire
22 first siting hearings, correct?
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. And you, according to Mr. Moran’s
0364

1 statement, understood that the second application
2 was similar, is that right?
3 A. He said it was essentially the same
4 with some updates.

2)The 39.2 legislationdoesnot preclude a member from the siting proceedingeven
if shehasa pre-dispositionon how shewill vote. (Exhibit C)
415 ILCS, ILCS 5/39.2(d), which states in pertinentpart:..“.Thefactthata memberof the
countyboaidor governingbody of themunicipalityhaspublicly expressedanopiniononan issuerelated
to a sitereviewproceedingshallnotprecludethememberfrom takingpartinthe-proceedingand’voting-on
the issue.”

ThePCB upheldthis statutein ConcernedCitizensforaBetterEnvironment,Petitionersv. City of
HavannaandSouthwestEnergyCorporation,(SeeExhibit C)

3)Ms. Berard votednoon both the 2002application and the2003application.
P-0327File 47311-106
17 Q. And you voted on each of the criteria,
18 is that correct?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. And you voted to deny certain of the
21 criteria, is that correct?
21 A. Yes
4(Ms. Bernard votedagainstthe 2002Application P-0328 ,File 47311-106
10 Q. Would it be accurate to say that you
11 voted against certain criteria in the first
12 application?
13 A. Yes. I want the record to reflect
14 when I went to look for the roll call sheet it was

11



15 missing.
5)Ms. Bernardvotedagainst2003application.P-0216,217File47311-106
20 Q. And you also voted against certain
21 criteria for that 2003 application, is that correct?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. So in both instances you voted against
24 the application, is that correct?

6)Ms. Bernardobjectedto siteover themajoraquifer-which is thesourceof the
area’s drinking water. Documentation , in therecord,andattachedas(Exhibit.D.)
from the Illinois GeologicalSurvey deemsthetwo proposedsitesto be amongthe
least suitable for landfills in KankakeeCounty.
7)Ms. Bernard was concernedabout the safetyofthe County’s water. P.. 0336File
47331-1 06
3 A. Well, I would say generally he made it

4 clear he’s an opponent of the landfill and the one
5 thing that’s sticks in my craw is that I based -— I
6 was going to base my decision on the evidence
7 presented, the testimony, and people can talk to me
8 until they’re blue in the face. You know, to me it
9 was criteria two and that aquifer.

8)The both Applications offered the samesite location over the aquifer.P0-362, File
47331-1
22 heard Mr. Moran reference that the applications were
23 - very similar between the first and second, is that
24 correct?

1 0363 A. Oh-huh.
2 Q. Is that yes? -

3 A. Yes. I’m sorry.

9)WasteManagementallegesthat Ms. Bernard’s Candidacy influenced County
board membersto againsttheapplication. This pointwasrefutedby Board
Member Martin. In addition, shedid not persuadethe voters,losing her primary
race by a landslide margin Of 66% to 34%.
Ms. Bernardis not a persuasiveboardmember.
19 In your experience, has
20 Ms. Bernard’s statements at the county board been
21 well received by other county board members?
22 A. I don’t know.
23 Q. Do you consider her to be an extremely
24 persuasive board member?

1 0042 A. Not really.
File 47353April 07-2005.Covers the testimonyof April 07.05

G’ County BoardMemberLeonard Martin wasnot influencedby public contacts,
letter, Picketson the dayof the meetingor signsopposingthelandfill.
landfills. Mr. Martin voted to deny bothapplications, therefore, the scattered
incidentsof public protest did not influencehis vote.
1)Mr. Martin votedto denyboth applications.p-0010-1147353-07
24 Q. And when you say that they were
0011

1 different, did you vote against more criteria on the
2 second application than you did the first?
3 A. I believe I did.

2)Letters did not influence Mr. Martin’s vote. 0009-10
22 A. A few, yes.

12



23 Q. Did you open any of these letters or
24 read any of these materials?

1 0010 A. I open all my mail irregardless of
2 what it is, but I ignored what was said in there.
3 read them, but then I knew that I was not supposed
4 to make my decision on outside influences, so as a
5 result, I just threw, them away.

3)Mr. Martin did not talk to Mr. Harrison about the landfill.
P-0039 File 47353 07
11 Q. Why didn’t you talk to Mr. Harrison
12 about the landfill?
13 A. Because at the time we were interested
14 in electing candidates, not the waste management
15 thing.
19 time in electing democrats for offices.
H) County Board Member Ralph Marcotte was not influencedby public contacts,
letters, phonecalls, pickets on the day ofthe meetingor postedsigns
Mr. Marcotte voted to denyboth applications,TestimonyP-0048File4735307
I)Mr. Marcotte Threw away letters. Moran CrossP-0054File 47353-07
14 Q. And you took those letters and just
15 threw them away, is that correct?
16 A. Yes, I did.
2)Letters he receivedsimply echoedwhat he had alreadyheard at the hearings
P-0058File4735307
7 Q. In general, the letters you received

8 stated opinions in opposition of landfill, is that
9 right?

10 A. Correct.
11 Q. And you heard the same type of opinion
12 in opposition at the hearings, is that correct? Fill

3)Mr. Marcottewas not threatenedby pickets. P-0055File4735307
BY MR. PORTER:

Did you feel threatened or intimidated by the
picketers?

2 A. No, sir.

I)Countv Board Member JamesStaufenbergwasnot influenced by public contacts,
letters,phonecalls, picketson thedayof themeetingor postedsigns.
1)Mr. Staufenbergdid not voteon first Application P-0060File 4735307

11 Q. And what was the reason why you didn’t
12 vote on January 31, 2004 —-

13 A. I was on vacation.
2)Recievednophonecalls regarding theexpansion.P- 0066File 4735307
17 Q. Now, Mr. Stauffenberg, prior to the
18 March 17th, 2004 vote, did you receive any phone
19 calls regarding the proposed expansion?
20 A. No, I did not.

3)Mr. Staufenbergreceivedletters. Did not read them. P. 0066-67 File 47353
9 0067 Q. Were the letters about the proposed expansion?

10 A. I did not read them.
4)Mr. Staufenbergthrew letters without openingthem away. P-0068File 4735307

5 0077 Q. You just threw them away?
6 A. Yes, I did.

7) Mr. Staufenbergdid not meetwith BruceHarrison P-0069-70File 4735307
11 0069 Pam Lee, (told him) who Bruce Harrison was, and

13



12 she told me that I shouldn’t be talking to him about

13 the landfill. So ,I canceled that appointment.

6)Mr. Staufenbergdid not have conversationswith anyoneoutsidethe hearings
P-0076-78,File 4735307
24 Q. You told Mr. Harrison you couldn’t
0077

1 discuss anything with him concerning the landfill
2 expansion, correct?
3 A. Correct.

.1)County Board Member Michael LaGesse was not influenced by public contacts,
letters,phonecalls, pickets on thedayofthemeetingor postedsigns
LaGesseTestimony P~0078File 4734307
1)Mr LaGessevotednoon thesecondApplication 0083 File 4735307

6 Q. How did you vote on the second
7 application?
8 A. I voted no.

2)Onephonecall from Bruce Harrison P- 0084File 4735307
4 Q. How many phone calls did you receive?
5 A. One.

3)Mr. LaGesserefusedto meetwith Harrison P-0090File 4735307
6 0091 Q. What did you say in responseto his
7 arguing with you about the appropriateness of being
8 - able to meet hJir~?
9 A. I just flat out stated that I was not
10 going to meet with him, and I didn’t.

4)Mr. LaGessethrew away letters he receivedunopened.P.. 0093File 47353 07
19 Q. Was that letter opposed to the
20 expansion?
21 A. Yes.
22 Q. What did you do with these letters?
23 A. I threw them away unopened.

5)Mr. LaGessewasnot threatenedor intimidated by picketers P- 0102File 4735307
Porter

24 Q . Were you threatened or
0102

1 intimidated by those picketers?
2 A. No.

6)Not threatened by letters 0102
8 Q. There was also some reference to some

9 letters that may have been received. Were you
10 threatened or intimidated by any of the content of
11 those letters?
12 A. No.
7)Mr. LaGesserelied on No outsideofhearing information. P- 0093-94File 47353
20 Q. Now, you had been instructed to
21 disregard any information that you acquired outside
22 of the hearing process; correct?
23 A. That’s correct.
24 Q. And did you follow that instruction?
0104
8)Mr. LaGesseneversolicitedcommunication from Harrison. P-0104File 4735307
18 Q. Did you ever solicit a communication

14



19 from Mr. Harrison?
20 A. No.
9)Mr. LaGessewasnot threatenedor intimidated by Harrison or Flagole F-0105
File 4735307
11 Q. Were you at all intimidated or
12 threatened by Mr. Harrison attempt to speak with
13 you?
14 MR. MORAN: Objection.
15 HEARING OFFICER: Overruled.
16 BY THE WITNESS:
17 A. Absolutely not.
1 Q. Were you at all threatened or
2 intimidated by the contact with Mr. Flageole?
3 A. No.

K)Former County Board Member Linda Faberwasnot influenced by public
contacts,letters, phonecalls, pickets on the dayofthe meetingor signsopposingthe
landfills.
1)Ms. Faber noticedthe picketers outsidethe building. 0123
0122-23File 4735307picketers
19 Q. Were there picketers inside or outside
20 the building on that day?
21 A. Outside.
1 A. Yes.
2 - 0. How many picketers did you observe?
3 A. Maybe between 10 and 12. I don’t
4 know.

2)Ms. Faber receivedonephone call from Mr. Bennoit-wouldn’t talk to him about
the landfill.P-0127File 4735307

4 0127 A. He called us.
5 Q. And you talked to him on that
6 occasion?
7 A. Yes, I did.
8 Q. And what did Mr. Bennoitt say?
9 A.

11 when he mentioned the landfill, I told him I
12 couldn’t talk about it and ended the conversation.
11 Q. Did you terminate that conversation as
12 soon as you thought it was polite and courteous to
13 do so?
10 A. Correct.

3)Ms. Faberwasnot threatenedor intimidated by Bennoit call.P-O141 File 47353 07
0. Ms. Faber, did you feel threatened or

5 intimidated by the telephone call you received by
6 Mr. Bennoitt?

7 A. No.

4)Ms.Faber threw lettersaway unopened.P- 0129 File 4735307
23 A. I only opened the first one or two and
24 got the impression they were opposed to it, but I
1 0129 didn’t read the rest of them as per instructed.

2 Q. And did you then take the letters and
3 throw them away?
4 A. Yes, I did.

5)Ms.Faber paid no attention to postedsigns. P-0132File 4735307
3 Q. Now, as I understand it, you told

4 Mr. Moran you didn’t pay any attention to the signs

15



5 the picketers had; correct?
6 0133 A. Right. Yes.

6)Shewas not threatenedor intimidated by the signs.P-0141 File 47353
15 Q. Now, the yard signs, did you feel
16 threatened or intimidated by those yard signs?
18 HEARING OFFICER: Overruled based on
19 my prior decision.
20 BY THE WITNESS:
21 A. No.

7)No discussionswith peopleoutsidethehearingprocess0135-36File 47353
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. And also to ignore any outside
21 c ommunication, right?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. And did you do that?
24 A. Yes, I did.

8)Ms. Faber was not threatened or intimidated by picketers P-0142 File 4735307
Mr. Moran’s questions, you weren’t paying any

2 attention to the picketers and the signs that they
3 had; correct?
6 BY THE WITNESS:
7 A. No, I was not.
8 BY MR. HELSTEN:
9 Q. So did you feel threatened or

10 , intimidated in any way by those picketers?
11 MR. MORAN: Objection.
12 HEARING OFFICER: Overruled.
13 BY THE WITNESS:
14 A. No.
K)County Board StanleyJameswasnot influenced by public contacts,letters, phone
calls, pickets on thedayof themeetingor postedsigns.
1)Mr. JamesVoted noon both applications P-0149File 4735307
a)Mr.Jamesvotedno2002Application VoteP-0153File 4735307
15 A.’ On all the criterias, I don’t recall
16 exactly which ones I voted no on.

b)Mr, Jamesvotedno on 2003Application Vote. P- 0153 File 4735307
15 Q. How did you vote on the second
16 . application?
17 A. I think the record shows that I voted
18 probably on a no vote that was seven or eight
19 criterias, I believe.

2))Mr. JamesGot calls in support of theexpansion. P-OS14 File 4735307
15 A. I had two phone calls that supported
16 it, Corinor and Weisman. 2

2 A. Basically that I should consider all
3 the facts.
4 Q. What else?
5 A. That she basically supported. She had
6 no objection to it, and that was it.

3)Mr,. Jamesreceiveda call from WesWiseman in support P-0156-57File 4735307
Q. 0156 You said you also got a call from
20 Weisman?
21 A. Yes.
22 0. What did Weisman say to you?
23 A. Weisman favored the expansion, the ——

24 approving it.

16



4) Mr. James refused to talk with Mr. Harrison About the expansion. P- 0167-168.
File4735307
10 A. Yes, he approachedme.
11 Q. When did he approach you? -

12 A. He came in my office and wanted to
13 talk about it. I told him there was nothing I could
14 talk about.
24 A. It couldn’t have exceededfive minutes

1 0168 becauseit was long enough to walk through the door,

5)Mr. Jamesreceivedletters but disregarded them.P-0177File 4735307
7 Q you were instructed by
10 Mr. Helsten and Mr. Smith to disregard any
11 communications you received outside the hearing
12 process?
13 A. Correct. Yes.
14 Q. Did you do that considering those
15 letters?
16 A. Yes, I did.

8)No one outsidehearing processtold him not to voteagainst thesiting. P-0177File
4735307
1 ‘ Q. Do you have a clear recollection of

2 anybody telling you outside of the hearing process
3 to vote against the landfill?
4 A. Outside of the hearing process, no.
5 - Q. So when Mr. Moran was asking you about
6 individuals that told you to vote against the
7 landfill, was that during the hearing that you heard

fl 8 that?
fl 9 A. Yes.

8 A. Could be, yes.

9)Picketers did not threaten or intimidate Mr. James. P- 0179 File 4735307
14 A. Correct.
15 Q. What about -— there was some reference
16 to the pickets, did the pickets -- or picketers in
17 any way threaten or intimidate you?
18 A. No.

1O)Peopledidn’t tell Mr. Jameshowto vote. P- 0181File 4735307
17 Q. That’s what I thought I heard you say.
18 My question is, do you want to clarify that? Did
19 the people who told you to vote no, tell you to vote
20 no at the public hearing?
21 A. No, they told me what their position
22 was, but they didn’t tell me how to vote.

L) County Board Culver Vickerv wasnot influencedby public contacts,letters,
phonecalls,pickets on the dayofthe meetingor signsopposingthe landfills.
1)Mr. Vickery votedyeson 2002Application, P-O187File 4735307
20 0. How did you vote on the first
21 application?
22 A. I voted to approve.
23 Q. And you considered each of the nine
24 statutory criteria?

1 0188 A. Yes.

2)Mr. Vickery sawpickets thedayof the vote. P-19O,File 47353 07
5 the building on that day?

6 A. Yes, there were.
7 Q. You saw those picketers?

17



8 A. Yes.
9 Q. How many did you see?

10 A. As I drove up, it seemed the sidewalk
11 was full of them. I didn’t count.
12 0. Were any of them carrying signs?
13 A. Yes.
14 Q. What did the signs say?
15 A. No Chicago garbage, no dump, things to

3) Mr Vickery votednoon Criterion one and yes on therest. P- 01914735307
A. I voted no on criteria one and voted

.6 yes on the other eight criteria.
4)Mr. Harrison phonedMr. Vickery, he did not return thecall. P-O193File
47353407
18 Q. And is it your belief that it was
19 Bruce Harrison who tried to call you that day?
20 A. I don’t know if belief is the word,
21 but I assume it was.
22 Q. And what you’ve said is that you never
23 returned his call?

5) Mr. Vickery would not talk outsidethe hearing. P.. 0195-196
File 4735307 By Mr. Porter

17 Why didn’t you return the phone
18 - call from Bruce?
19 A. Well, I was -- I did not want to get
20 involved in any conversation outside of the hearing
21 process.
22 Q. Is that because you’ve been instructed
23 not to?
24 A. That’s correct.
0196
6)Mr, Vickery was not threatenedby Harrison’s attemptedcall P-0197-19847353
07
19 Q. And the one phone call that your wife
20 took, did that in any way intimidate or threaten
21 you?
24

1 0198 BY THE WITNESS:
2 A. No.

7)Mr. Vickery received letters,read two then turn therest, unopened,to the
Clerk’s Office P-0194,195 File 4753507
0194-195
23 Q. Did you read it?
24 A. Perhaps two. I would say no more than two
0194

1 two.
2 Q. Did you read the letters that you
3 opened?
4 A. Well, the opening line indicated that
5 we’re against the landfill. So I kept a file of
6 those letters unopenedfrom that point on in my desk
7 drawer, and upon conclusion of this matter, I turned
8 them over to county clerk Bruce Clark.

8)Mr. Vickery wasnot threatenedby theletters. P-0199File 4735307
1 0199 The letters that were sent to you,



2 even though you didn’t read them, was the fact that
3 they were sent to you threatening. or intimidating

to
4 . you?.
5 A:. No,

M) CountyBoardRuthBarberwasnot influencedby public contacts,letters, phone
calls, pickets on thedayof the meetingor signsopposingthe landfills, therefore,
the scatteredincidents of public protestdid not influence her vote.
1)Ms. Barber receivedonly onephonecall via voicemail. P- 021347353-1

5 A. Home.
6 0. Who was the messageleft by?
7 A. I don’t know. My husband cleared the
8 messagesthat night, just listened to it long enough
9 to know it was about the landfill and erased it, but

10 did at the time.

2)Ms. Barber Receivedletters openedtwo. P-0214File 47353-1
21 A. Yes.
22 Q. How many?
23 A. . I’ll say 30, 40.
24 0. Did you open any of these letters?
0215

1 A. The first couple letters I opened.
2 Q. And did you read them?

3)Ms. Barber trashed letters without reading them. P-0215,216 File 47353-1
21 your reason for concluding that they were relating
22 to the proposed expansion?
23 A. The addresseswere primarily all
24 Chebanse. I have had no reason to be in Chebansein
1 0216 the last 40 years. I just tossed them in the
2 recycle bin.

4)Ms. Barber had noother communicationsfrom thepublic. 0216-217File 47353-1
2 Q. Did you have any other communications
3 with any persons about the proposed expansion prior
4 to March 17th, 2004?

22 A. No.
5)Ms.Barber wascontactedby Harrison but there wasno conversationregarding
the Application. 0220-221 File 47353-1
0220
20 Q. Did he say anything about the proposed
21 expansion?
22 A. He started rambling on. I pushed him
23 out of my office. He just rambled and rambled, and
24 I kind of started walking towards him to his
1 0221 vehicle, and that was about it.

6)Ms. Barber had noother communicationoutsidethehearing process.P-0225File
47353-1
21 Q. You did not speak with anyone outside
22 of the hearings about the application before March
23 ‘ 17th, 2004, did you?
24 A. Correct. No, I did not.
0226

7)Ms. Barber receivedletters but did not read them and was not influenced by
them. P-0226.File 47535-1
21 0226 Q. Well, Mr. Moran asked you or intimated
22 a question that you had received communications

19



23 about the landfill application. Since you didn’t
24 read the letters, would you agree that you did not
1 0227 receive any such communication?
2 A. No, I didn’t receive any
3 communications.

7)Receiptof letters did not threaten Ms, Barber. P.. 0227File 47353-1
15 Did the fact that you received any
16 of these letters in any way intimidate or threaten
17 you?
21 BY THE WITNESS:
22 A. No.
8)Ms. Barber saw posted signs. P-0224 File 47353-1
16 Q. Did you see any signs that were posted
17 in or around the area saying no dump, no Chicago
18 garbage?
19 A. Yes.

0) County Board Member Kelly McLaren wasnot influencedby public contacts,
letters, phone calls,picketson the day ofthe meetingor signs opposingthe landfills,
gainstCriterion 3, Traffic.
1)Mr. McLaren didn’t vote on2002Application 0231File 47353
10 A. No, I did not,
11 Q. And why didn’t you vote on it?
12 A. I was vacationing out of the country.

2)Mr. McLaren saw no outsidepicketers. P- 0232-233 File 47353
19 Q. Were there picketers outside or inside
20 the building on that day?
21 A. When I arrived, no.
22 Q. Did you see any picketers in or
23 outside the building on that day?
24 A. I think there might have been some in
1 0233 the hail.

3)Mr. McLaren was not threatened or intimidated by picketers P-0251 File 47353
23 BY MR. HELSTEN:
24 Q. Did any of the picketers that you saw
1 0252 up front threaten you or intimidate you?
2 A. No.
4)Mr. McLaren votedno on Criteria six. P-0233,234File 47353
22 Q. How did you vote on the second
23 application?
24 A. The only no vote I had was, I believe,

1 0234 criteria six, which was traffic.

5)Mr. McLaren Receivedno calls prior to March 17 P-0234File 47353
2 Q. Prior to March 17th, 2004, did you

3 receive any phone calls regarding the proposed
4 expansion?
5 A. No.

6) Mr. McLaren Receivedwritten materials.P 0234File 47353
6 Q. Prior to March 17th of 2004, did you
7 receive any letters or written materials regarding
8 the proposed expansion?
9 A. Yes.

7)Mr. McLaren did not read letters.0234 File 47353
14 ,-. Q. Did you open any of these letters?
15 A. My daughter opened one.
16 Q. And did she tell you what was in the
17 one letter?
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18 A. She saw the word landfill, and that
19 was where it was cut off.

8) Mr. McLaren Turned letters into County Clerk. File 47353
4 Q. What did you do with them?

5 A. I brought them in downstairs on the
6 first floor.

Helsten Cross P- 0248-249 File 47353
21 and you took that and all the
22 other letters and took them to the clerk’s office?
23 A. Correct.
24 Q. Why did you do that?

1 0249 A. That’s what we were told to do and
2 were advised to do.

9)Mr. Harrison talked with Mr. MeLaren about environmental issuesand the
landfill P-0237File 47353

8 A. He spoke in general environmentally, I
9 believe.

10 Q. Saying that the proposed expansion
11 presented certain environmental risks?

10) Mr. Harrison’s remarks did not threaten or intimidate McLaren 0248File
47353

4 Q. Now, Mr. McLaren, you told Mr. Moran
5 that you viewed Mr. Harrison’s comments to you as a
6 threat?
7 “ A. Yes.
8 Q. Did it, in fact, though, threaten you
9 , or intimidate you?

10 A. By no means. It infuriated me.

11)Mr. McLaren Did not engagein conversationwith Harrison 0249-250File 47353
22 Q. Did you engage in any conversation
23 with Mr. Harrison when he first came in into your
24 business?

1 0250 A. As far as engaging, no. I listened.
2 Q. Did you tell him you couldn’t talk
3 about it?
4 A. As he was leaving, yes.

12)Mr. McLaren refusedpetitions from BruceHarrison by Mr. McLaren P-0250
File 47353
18 Q. Did you throw away the petition?
19 A. No, I never took them. I looked at
20 one of the addresses just to verify it was my
21 district.
22 Q. And you refused to look at them then
23 and refused to take them?
24 . A. Correct.
13)Thepetitions did not threaten or intimdateMr. McLaren 0253,File 47353
BY MR. HELSTEN: 0253=2-253
24 Q. Mr. McLaren, did that petition —— the

1 0253 fact that he handed you that petition threaten
2 you or intimidate you in any way?
10 A. No.

14)Mr. Harrison did not threaten or intimidate Mr. McLaren. P- 0253.54.File
47353
17 Q. Mr. McLaren did any of Mr. Harrison’s
18 contacts with you or attempts to talk to you
19 threaten or intimidate

21



20 A. No.
R) County Board Francis Jackson was not influenced by public contacts, letters,
phone calls, pickets on the dayof themeetingor signsopposingthe landfills. 1)Ms.
Jacksonwasopposedto the first application, might have inadvertently voted for it.
P-0261,0262 File 47353

January 31st, 2003, the vote on the first
22 application, you don’t recall having been for it or
23 against it; would that be accurate?
24 A. Truthfully, I would have been against
0262

1 it, unless I was confused on something. That’s
2 possible.

2)Ms. Jackson saw picketers but was not threatenedor intimidated by them 0294
File 47353
1 BY MR. HELSTEN:

2 Q. Did the presence of the picketers
3 outside the county building threaten or intimidate
4 you in any way?
5 MR. MORAN: Objection.
6 HEARING OFFICER: Overruled.
7 BY THE WITNESS:
8 A. No.

3)Shebasedher decisionon the hearingsnot phonecalls or personalcontacts0276
File 47353
0276

1 but the meetings that we had at the Quality Inn I
2 think was more educational to me, and I think I got
3 more out of that. I had more concern with that than
4 I did with the phone calls. The phone call didn’t
5 even say who they were.

4)ReceivedPhonecalls but not threatenedor intimidated by them. 0292-293File
47353
24 Q. Ms. Jackson, these telephone calls

1 that you received, did they threaten you or
2 0293 intimidate you in any way?

7 A. Did they like ——

8 BY MR. HELSTEN:
9 Q. You personally.

10 A. No, no.
11 Q. Do people generally tell you what to
12 do?
13 A. No.

5)Hearingswere what guidedher vote P-0276File 47353
1 but the meetings that we had at the Quality Inn I
2 think was more educational to me, and I think I got
3 more out of that. I had more concern with that than
4 I did with the phone calls. The phone call didn’t
5 even say who they were.

6) Ms. JacksonReceivedLots ofletters 0278-279File 47353
15 Q. Prior to the vote on the second
16 application, did you receive any letters or written
17 materials?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. And you received these letters or
20 written materials at home? .
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21 A. Yes.
22 Q. And you received a lot of letters and
23 written materials, is that correct?
24 A. Yes.
0279
7)Ms. Jacksonnot threatened or intimdated by the letters. P.0294File 47353
BY MR. MORAN:
10 Q. Did the letters you received threaten
11 or intimidate you in any way?
14 BY THE WITNESS: A. No

8)Ms. Jacksononly had conversationswith others at the hearings 0289 File 47353
10 0289 A. Yes.
11 Q. They didn’t have you off to the side
12 talking to you off the record?
13 A. No, at no point.
14 Q. And were they talking about such
15 things as the health of their kids?
16 A. Yes.
17 Q. Were they talking about such things as
18 the water quality?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. Were they talking about such things as
21 impact on property values?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. Were they talking about other
24 - environmental concerns?

1 0290 A. Yes.
2 Q. And you were there as a board member
3 at the hearing listening to those comments, correct?
4 A. Yes, I was.
5 Q. And some of those people had their
6 kids there with them, correct?
7 A. Yes.
8 Q. And they were getting up and giving
9 public comments, correct?

10 A. Right. Yes.
11 Q. And you were just listening to those
12 public comments, correct?
13 A. Yes.

P) County Board GeorgeWashingtonJr. was not influenced by public contacts,
letters, phonecalls, pickets on the day ofthe meetingor postedsigns
1)Mr. Washington votedto approve both applications. He, therefore, clearly was
influenced, threatenedor intimidated into voting againstthe application.
2)Mr. Washington voted to approve the first application, P.0301 file 4735307
2 ‘ Q. And how did you vote on the first

3 application?
4 A. To approve.

3)Votedto approvethesecondapplicationP.0301File 47353 07
3 Q. How did you vote on the second

4 application?
5 A. The same as the first, in the
6 affirmative.

7
3)He sawpicketers on March 17. 2005P-0302File 47353407
6 Q. Were there picketers in or around the

7 county board building on that occasion?
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8 A. Yes, there were.

4)Mr. Washington saw three postedsigns0302-303 File 4735307
18 Q. Prior to that date, had you seen any
19 signs posted on properties throughout the area which
20 indicated or which stated no dump, no Chicago
21 garbage?
22 A. Three.
23 Q. And where did you see these signs?
24 A. One was on Kennedy Drive, and the
0303

5)Mr. Washingtondidn’t getphonecallson the expansionP-0303File 4735307
3 Q. Prior to March 17th of 2004, did you

4 receive any phone calls regarding the second
5 application?
6 A. Like I said, if I did, I didn’t answer
7 them. I didn’t get any phone calls where I held any

8 conversations with anybody.
6)He receivedletters but turned them over to the County Clerk. P- 0304File 47353
07
17 receive any letters or written materials regarding
18 the proposed expansion or relating to the second
19 application?
20 A. Again, the letters that I received
21 were not opened, and I turned them into the clerk.
22

7)Onlyconversationoutsidethe record was with Board Member Marcotte giving an
explanation P-0305File 4735307 -

7 Q. Prior to March 17th of 2004, did you
8 have any communications with any persons regarding
9 the second application?

10 A. I think I talked with Red Marcotte,
11 and one other board member, just talked in general
12 about it explaining ——

8)Had only a passingcontactwith Mr. Harrison P-0306-307File4735307
20 Q. Did he try to tell you his reasons for
21 opposing the proposed expansion?
22 A. It’s hard to say what he was trying to
23 tell me because he talked around in circles, and I
24 couldn’t quite understand it, but I just rejected
0307

1 what he was saying because I wasn’t going to get
2 into a conversation with him about it.
3 Q. And how long did this communication
4 with Mr. Harrison last?
5 A. A couple minutes.

9)Mr. Washington wasneither threatenednot intimidated by Mr. Harrison. P.0308
File4735307
19 BY MR. PORTER:
20 Q. Mr. Harrison’s statements to you did
21 not intimidate or threaten you, correct?
22 A. Of course not.
23
0) County Board William Olthoff wasnot influenced by public contacts,letters,
phonecalls,picketson the dayof themeetingor postedsigns Ohltoff Deposition
File 473591
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1)Mr. Olthoff Didn’t vote on first application, votedno on 1,3and 6 ofthe second
application P-S File 47359-1
p-5
11 Q. Moran: What was your reason why
12 didn’t vote?
13 A: Witness: I was out of town.
p-7

7 Q: Did you vote on the second Application?
11 A: How did you vote on the second Application
13 A: I voted nay on three of the criterion
14 Q: Were those criterion 1,3, and 6?
15 A: I believe so.

2)Mr. Olthoff Received no phone calls regarding the expansion. P-8 File 47359-1
16 Q: Prior to your vote on March 17, 2004 did
17 receive any phone calls from any persons regarding
18 the proposed expansion?
19 A: No
20 Q: Prior to your vote on March 17, 2004 did
21 you receive any letters or written materials
regarding
22 proposed expansion?
23 A: Yes.

3)Mr. Olthoff didn’t read letters-turned them into the County ClerkP-8, 9 File 47359-1
9 A: I opened them and when I saw they were
10 .. about the expansion, I put them in a stack and turned them
11 All in to the County Clerk

4)Mr. Olthoff had a discussionwith BruceHarrison P.9 File 47359-1
20 A: He came to our church.

1 P—10 Q: How did he come to have commuication with
2 You through the Church?
3 A: He made a request of our Associate Pastor
4 to speak to our congregation about the landfill.

14 Q: How did you learn of this request that Mr.
15 Mr. Harrison made.?
16 A: Mr. Guilford called me
17 A: I said tell him no.

5)Mr. Olthoff DeniedMr. Harrison’s requestto speakto the congregation.P-19File
47359—1

15 Q: How did you conclude the meeting with him?
16 A: I just said he couldn’t speak to the
17 Congregation
3 P—19 Q: Do rememberseeing those signs Around town?
7. A: Yes

6)Mr. Olthoff sawpicketers outsidecountybuilding onMarch 17tI~.P. 21, File 47359-1
7. Q: Were there picketers outside the
8 building that day?
9. A: Yes

7)Mr. Olthoff met with Mr Harrison on a Church relatedissue. P-29,30 File 47359-1
24 Q: And was your purpose in meeting with Mr.
1 Harrison to inform him he could not speak to the church
2 About the landfill application or the landfill in genera
4 A: Yes

8)Mr. Olthoff wst not threatenedor intimidatedby Mr. Harrison. P.290,30File 47359-i
12 Q: Did you feel threatened or intimidated by
13 Mr. Harrison’s Statements.7

‘14 A: No.
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15 Q: You had been instructed to disregard any
statements that were made outside of the hearing process
17 is that correct?
18 A: Yes.

19 Q: Did you follow instructions?

9)Mr. Olthoff was not threatened or intimidated by letters he received. P.30,31 File
47359-1

24 Q: Did you feel threatened or intimidated by t
1 the receipt of those letters?
3 A: No.

10)Mr. Olthoff wasnot threatenedor intimidated by the picketers. P.31 File 47359-1
8 Seeing those picketers?

10 A: No.
11)Mr. Olthoff wasnot threatened or intimidated by the postedsigns.P-31File 47359.1

11 Q: It was also mentioned
12 that the signs were posted around Kankakee. Did you feel
13 Threatenedor intimidated by those signs.
14 The Witness A: No.

12)Mr. Olthoff wasnot threatenedby the letter, picketersand signsP.31File 47359.-1P-3l
16 Mr. Porter Q: In regard to the letters,

Picketers, again did you follow the instruction
18 to disregard statements or materials that were submitted
19 outside the hearing process?
20 The Witness: A: Yes.

j~positionof DuaneBertrand.. File 47359-14-15-05
0)County Board Member Duane Bertrand was not influenced by public contacts,
letters, phone calls, pickets on the dayofthe meetingor postedsignsvote.

1)Mr Bertrand was not threatenedor intimidated by postedsigns.File 47359-14-15-05
8 Q: There was some mention of signs
9 Were you threatened or intimidated by any signs?
13 A: No.

17 Isn’t ot true that at that breakfast you told
18 Mr. Harrison several times you were not going to
17 Talk to him about landfills.
20 A: Yes.

2)Mr. Bertrand disregardedanystatementsmadeby anyoneoutsidethe hearing.P-25File
47359- 1

P-25 17 Mr. Porter Q: And when they would start
18 talking to you would you disregard their statements if
19 they were made outside the hearing?
20 THE WITNESS: A: Yes.

3)Mr. Bernard did not feel threatened or intimidated by Ron Thompson.P.26
P25 24 Did you feel intimidated or threatened by

P26 3. A: No.
4 Q: Again did you follow the
5 nstruction to disregard statements made
6 outside the hearing process?
10 A: Yes.

3)Mr. Bertrand did not changehis voteafter statementsmadeto him by Mr. Harrison
And Mr. Thompson. P-26File 47359-1
P26 18 Q: After Mr. Harrison made statements to

18 o you and Mr. Thompson made his statements to you did
you

19 change your vote?
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21 A: No.
22 Q: So you voted the same way you did the
23 first time, correct?

fl 24 A: Yes.
Li 4)Mr. Bertrand voted to approveboth applications. It is obvioushe wasnot influencedor
:imidate by actions of the public or Mr. Harrison. P.6 File 47359.1

P—5 Moran’s direct 47359—1

16 Q: And you voted to approve the first application?
17 A: Yes.

P-6 1 Q: And you voted to approve the second
2 Application?
3 A: Yes

PMr. Bertrand receivedabout six phonecalls prior to the March 17tl~.2004vote. P- 6
47359-113 Q: You received about a half a dozen phone

14 calls?
15 A: Yes.

b)Mr..Bertrand received a call from dog Flageole but was not threatened by it. P- 7

U
File 47359-1

3 A: So he said , “I’m going to run against you
15 and beat you the next time you are up for election.”
5 But I told him , I said, Well, you will
6 Have to move because I am not in your district.
7 Q: Did you view his statements as being a
8 threat to you?
8 A: Not really.
9 Porter Cross of Mr. Bertrand. No Threats. P-22-23 File 47359-1

~4 Q and when you spoke to Mr. Flageole there was some statement that maybe he was

2 theatening to run against you?
3 Q: Did you feel threatened by that statement?

Li 10 A: No, I didn’t feel threatened.
7)Mr. Bertrand met with Mr. Harrison and listened but did not respond.P-17File 47359-1

14 Q: That you would listen but you wouldn’t
15 Make any comment
18 A: That’s correct.

p~.Bertrand wasnot threatenedor intimidated by the presenceof pickets. P.23File 47359-1
L 13 Porter, Q: Were you threatened or intimidated by

the
14 presence of picketers?
15 A: No

~ertrandwasnotthreatenedor intimidatedby thelettershe received.P-23,24 File 47359- 1P-24
:d to the letters there was some mention of letters stating Dump the Dump or
~tmpyou.

Were you threatened or intimidated by that
1 statement in the letter?
2 The Witness A: No.

0)Mr.Bertrand wasnot threatenedor intimidated by signsin Kankakee
County,P-24, File 47359.1

11 Were you threatened or intimidated by any signs?
13 A: No.
20 Isn’t ot true that at that breakfast you told Mr.
Harrison several times you were not going to talk him about
landfills.
22 A: Yes.
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011)Mr. Bertrand disregardedany statementsmadeby anyoneoutsidethehearing. P- 25
47359-1File

17 P-25 Mr. Porter Q: And when they would start
20 talking to you would you disregard their statements if

Li 19 they were made outside the hearing?

17 THE WITNESS: A: Yes.
12)Mr. Bernard did not feelthreatenedor intimidatedby Ron Thompson.P.25File 47359.1

.P25 24 Did you feel intimidated or threatened by
3. A: No.
4 Q: Again did you follow the
7 instruction to disregard statementsmade outside

9outside the hearing process?
10 A: Yes.

~13)Mr. Bertrand did not changehis vote after statementsmadeto him by Mr. Mr. Thompsonand Mr. Harrison. P-26File 47359-1
P26 18 Q: After Mr. Harrison made statements to

P 19 to you and Mr. Thompsonmade his statements
20 to you did you change your vote?
21 A: No.
22 Q: So you voted the same way you did the
23 first time, correct?
24 A: Yes.

V Conclusion
The Applicant is guilty of committing serious violations of the ex parterule and

engaging in other fundamentally unfair practices while continuing to bring political
pressure on the County Board to make a settlement and to withdraw their from the Waste
Management Appeal before this board. Waste Management is attempting to turn the
siting process on it’s head.

The manifest weight of the evidence clearly indicates that Waste Management has no
basis for appealingtheCounty’sDenialto this Body. Not oneBoardMemberwas
influenced by contacts, from the public signs, pickets, or phone calls letters. They all
based their votes on the record.

For these reasons we pray that this Board will uphold, intact the County of Kankakee’s
Decision to deny Waste Management’s Application for expansion.

Respectfully Submitted

keith L Runyon /

1165 Plum Creek Drive, Unit D.
Bourbonnais,II . 60914
8159379838
techsource12@comcast.net
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AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-109 of the Illinois Code of
Civil Procedure, hereby under penalty perjury under the laws of the United States of
America,certifiesthat on May 20. 2005 the Pollution Control Board was served an
orginal and five copies of the foregoing enclosed Brief ,by depositing copies thereof,
enclosed in an envelope in the United States Mail at Bourbonnais, Illinois, proper
postage prepaid, and postmarked before the hour of 5:00 P.M., on May20t~..2005.
addressed as below., via U.S. Mail, postmarked before 5:00 P,M. on said date and
mailed from the Bourbonnais, Ii. Post Office 60914

Dorothy M. Gunn, Clerk
Illinois Pollution Control Board
James R. Thompson Center
100 West Randolph Street, Suite 11-500
Chicago, Il 60601-3218

Attorney George Mueller
501 State Street
Ottawa, Ii 61350
815433 4705
Fax 815 4224913

DonaldJ. Moran
Perterson& Houpt
161 North Clark Street, Suite 3100
Chicago, Ii 60601-3242
312 261 2149
Fax 312 261 1149

ElizabethHarvey,Esq.
Swanson,Martin, & Bell
One IBM Plaza, Suite 2900
330 North Wabash
Chicago,1160611
312 321 9100
Fax 312 321 0990

JenniferJ. SackettPohlenz
175 W. Jackson Boulevard
Suite 1600
Chicago,II 60604
3125407540
Fax312 5400578

Mr. Brad Halloran



HearingOfficer
Illinois Pollution Control Board
100 West Randolph, 1

1
th Floor

Chicago, Ii. 60601
312 814 8917
Fax 814 3669

Richard S. Porter
Charles F. Heisten
Hinshaw & Culbertson
100 Park Avenue, P.O. Box 1389
Rockford, Il. 61 105-1389

Christopher Bohlen
Barmann, Kramer, and Bohien, P.C.
300 East Court Street
Suite 502
P.O.Box 1787
Kankakee, Il 60901

Karl Kruse
Kankakee County Board
189 E. Court Street
Kankakee, Il 60901

Kankakee County States Attorney
Ed Smith Kankakee County State’s Attorney
Bremda Gorski
450 E. Court Street.
Kankakee, Ii 60901

By depositing a copies (copy) thereof, enclosed in an envelope in the United States Mail
at Bourbonnais, Illinois, proper postage prepaid, before the hour of 5:00 P.M., on May 2
20~’. .2005. addressed as above.

Keith Runyon
1165 Plum Creek Dr. Unit D.
Bourbonnais, IL 60914
815 9379838
Fax 815 937 9164
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KANKAKEE COUNTY BOARD
Ot~M~~ ~ C 18Decision Re~ardlnLthaAoolicatlon of WastaManaqement of llhnois, Inc.

For Local Sitin~Acomval ofan Expansion oftpsExlstlnnkakee_Landfihl S

Whereas, on September 26 2003, Waste Management of Uilnois, Inc. (W~U~’
p filed an application for local siting approval for an expansion of its existing Kanlcal~ee.

Landfill; and ,

Whereas public hearings have been held on the application, before Hearing
r Officer John McCarthy, and public comments filed or pastmarked byFebruary 20, 2004

have been received; and
Whereas the l<ankakee County Regional Planning Commission (KCRPC) has~I.. .~ . pursuant to the Kankakee County Siting Ordinance for Pollution Control Facilities (Siting

Ordinance), considered the application and the siting record, and has made findings
and recommendations to the Kankakee County Board (~oard)(see attached Exhibit A);
and.

• Whereas, the KCRPC voted, pursuant to state law and the Siting Ordinance toalso consider two comments filed after February 20, 2004, but no comments fried after
March 2, 2004; and

‘Whereas the Board has considered the record of the siting proceeding, including,but not limited to, the testimony, exhibits, and comment given at the public hearings, the
application, and the public comments; and

Whereas, the Board has also received and considered the recommendations of
the KCRPC; and

Whereas, pursuant to state statute (415 8_CS 5/39~2)and the Siting Ordinance,
the Board Is to determine compliance ornoncompliance with the statutory criteria of
Section 39.2 of the Environmental Protection Act;

IT (8 HEREBY DETERMINED: .

• . , Jurlsdfcjion

The Board finds that all Jurisdictional requirements have been satisfied. Thus,

the Board has jurisdiction to consider WMI1’s application.

fundamental Fairness

The Board finds That the proceedings have been conducted in a ‘fi.~ndamentaIly

fair manner. . -. -
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~j~utorvCriteria

Section :30.2(a) of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act requires that an
applicant for local siting approval demonstrate compliance with nine critena.

1., Whether the facilily Is necessa~toaccomrnodata the waste needs of the area it
is intended to se~ve. The KCRPC recommended that criterion one be found to
be satisfied, subject to a special condition. A motion that the Board adopt the
KCRPC’S recommendation failed on a vote of 12 In favor and 16 opposed.

S Having no additional motions, the Board finds that criterion one is not satisfied.

2. ~}~therthefadll~yisso de~gnsddoc$ed,and praposed to be coerated that the
public health. safety, and welfare will he protecte~,The KCRPC found criterion

r two is satisfied, subject to special conditions, A motion that the Board adopt the
• KCRPC recommendation passed on a vote of22 in favor and 6 opposed. The

Board finds that the proposed facility is so deslgned~located, and proposed to be
operated that the public health, safety, and welfare will be protected. However,
that finding is based upon the imposition of the following special conditions:

a. There shall be no vertical expansion of the existing facility.

b. The lateral expansIon must be considered a separate unit from the
• existing landfill, as defined In 35 Ift,Adm.Code 510.103, and separate
• groundwater monitoring networks shall be maintained for the expansion

and for the existing landfIll. I

c. A field verification must be performed to locate all private wells and
community wells, currently used as a source ,of potable water, located
within 1.000 feet of all boundaries of the property. S

d. lJowngradient monitoring well • spacing in ,the uppermost aquifer
• (regardless of gradient) must be provided, where adjacent potable water

supply wells are boated in the Dolomite.

e. Any and all sand deposits that are one foot thick,, twenty feet wide, and/or
yield water for a period of more than 24 hours must be monitored as
potential contaminant migration pathways.

f. Leachate shall not be recirculated for a period of at least five years after
the receipt of the operating permit. Following this period, the landfill
operator may petition the County Board to recirculate leachate. The

• County staff shall review the operational record of the site and consult with
an independent technical expert to determine If (he operator has

• •, - S • - ~demonstratedthat leachate recirculation Is a safe and~ppropriate~method
• to handl&’The leachate at this facUlty. Reasonable expanses of the

2
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technical expert shall be reimbursed by the landfill operator. Leachate
may not be recirculated without the express approval of the County Board.

g. Soil bioremediation and solidification of waste is prohibited at the
n facility, unless expressly approved In writing by the County Board. S

h. Composting ofwaste is prohibited at the facility, unless expressly

S approved In wtitlng by the County 8oard,
b i. An annual topographic survey ofexisting waste grades and elevations, of

final permitted waste grades and elevations, and final permitted contours
P shall be conducted by the operator. Results ofeach annual survey must

be submitted to the County Planning Director within thirty days thereafter
to ensure ongoing compliance with permit conditions at the facility.

j. The construction quality assurance (CQA) officer shalt be physically
present on the landfill site a minimum ofonce per week during each stage
of critical liner construction including: 1) preparation of sub-grade; 2) low
permeability soil liner construction; 3) geomembrana installation; 4)
geotextile placement; 5) granular drainage layer constructIon; 6) leachate
system and associated piping InstallatIon; 7) final cover construction; and
8) gas. system Installation. Documents signed and dated by the CQA
officer must be maintained evidencing his or her physical presence, and
must be made available to the County upon request. Technicians utilized.
shall have at least five years experience and shall be approved by the
County Planning Director.

k. The aàtive face must not exceed an area approved by the County
Planning Director. If the operator believes the approved area Is not
adequate for operations, the operator may petition the County Board for
allowance ofa larger active face area.

• I. • An independent professional engineer (approved by the County Planning
Director) shalt be on-site to observe placement of the sand drainage layer
and the initial lift of waste placed in any new cell, The engineer shall
report directly to the County Planning Director, and shall have the

• S authority to stop placement of sand or waste during this initial operation if
he or she observes any conditIon that ~uld or could damage the bottom

• liner.

m. Tnicks, trailers, or any other vehicle holding waste shall not be parked or
stored overnight at the facility, or staged on Route 45152, or on the right-
of-way outside of the landfill facility.

J7enclng around tP~e~ntir~bcility Is requlred~toprevent unauthodZ~~~~:
S - S • ~~access. An eight-foot ~~ooden or other ~)ew-obs~uctIng,County-

3
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[F
acceptable fence shall be constructed on the east side of the property to[ help block the view of the site. As cells are developed, the fence shall be
extended to encompass, at a minimum, the waste footprint, with the fence
eventually encompassing the entire facility.

[I ~ • o. Video recordings of all trafficentering the site shall be-retained for a period
ofat least six months, The County shall have the right to review the

r S • recordings within two days of requesting to review a tape.
p. The minimum number of random load inspections shall be three per week

as specified in state regulations. For any amount of tonnage received
above an average of 500 tons per day, the number of Inspections shalt be
increased on the following basis:

For each 500 ton per day average increase, the number of
random weekly inspections shall be Increased by two. For
example, if up to 1000 tons per day average is accepted the
previous week, the week shall have five inspections (three
inspections for the fIrst 500 tons~and two for the next 500).
If the weekly rate is 2000 tons per day, the Inspection rate is

S three plus two plus two plus two,, to equal nine random
• S inspections. S

After five years of operation, the landfill operator may
request a review and reconsideration of this random
inspection ‘requirement by the County Board. An authorized
County official shall have the right to inspect and to be
present atany random load Inspection.

q. . The landfill operator shall pick up litter on a daily basis along Route 45/52
between the landfill and the 1.57 Interchange, as well as at least one-
quarter mile south of the landfill along Route 45/62. if allowed by adjacent
property owners, the landfill operator shall remove any litter attributable to
the. landfill on those adjacent properties on a weekly basis. Perimeter
picking on site shall be performed daily to remove litter from trees, fencing,
and ben’ns.

r. The landfill operator shall install a radiation detector at the scale house.
The landfill operator shall record any alarm, and notify the County of each
occurrence, the level of radiation detected, and the manner of response.

s. The maximum height of the landfill, and the lateral extant of the landfill,
shall not exceed the height and lateral extent shown on the plans provided

• i~the application. • S •

.5 ~•i .~ S S -

A ~roundwaterImpact Assessment (3 IA) mus?’~esubmitted to the

4



• 04/16/2004 09:27 K~NKAKEECOUNTY CLERK 4 913123210990 NO.760 ~0E

County and its consultants prior to the submittal of a development permit
application to. IEPA. The landfill owner/operator shall reimburse the
County for reasonable and necessary costs incurred in review of the- GIA.

u. Copies of the development permit application arid all subsequent permit
applications and required submittals to (EPA shall b~submitted to the
County Planning Director at the same time the applications are submitted
to IEPA, at no cost to the County. All permits Issued for the facility shall
be copied and submitted to the County Planning Director withIn 30 days
after any such permit Is received by the landfill owner/operator.

S v4 The landfill operator shall build the berms on the west side of the property
at least 1,000 feet In advance of any cell construction, measured from the
southernmost coordinate of the cell. For example, if the cell’s
southernmost coordinate is $ 3500, then the berm shall extencc to $ 4500
or further south. The only exception to this condition is during5 the

S construction of Phase I. •

w. The gas line that is to be relocated shall be fully sealed from any potential
migration from the landfill. Only fine-grained material shall be used as

S S backfill In the french. The construction shall be certified by an
• independent professional engineer, such engineer to be approved by the

S • County Planning Director.

x. Proof of each equipment operator’s training shall be provided to the
County Planning Director prior to that operator’s work at the site.

y. The landfill operator shall notify the County Planning Director seven days
prior to collecting any required sampling or resampling. The landfill.

S operator shall provide the County with split samples for chemical analysis.
S The County shall select the laboratory to which its sample(s) are sent for

chemical analysis. The landfill operator shall reimburse the County for the
reasonable and necessary costs of such testing and analyses, provided,
however, that such reimbursement shall not exceed $10,000 per calendar
year, adjust annually for the Chicago/Gary Metropolitan Area Consumer

S Price index. • S S

2. • The landfill operator shall not request the use of sewage sludge as a
component offinal cover In Its IEPA permit applicationwithout first

S obtaining County Board approval of such use.

22. An automatic monitoring system shall be Installed to monitor the level of
S leachete from each leachate sump area. The system shall record the

S • head in the sump such that at no time will the leachate level be~Jq~wedt~
~ S rise above the leve~atcorres~ondsto one foot of lfea~or,-the;fr4 The

landfill operator shäl1~afntalnthe records from the automatic monitoring

5
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system, and make those records accessible to the County.

bb. The leachate containment area surrounding the leachate holding tanks
shall be sized appropriately to handle a potential spill volume equal to all
tanks present, unless the operator can demonstrate to IEPA that such a
requirement promotes operational safety hazards. S

S cc. The landfill operator shalt provide, as part of its development permit
S application to IEPA, a demonstration(water balance) that the watershed

north of7500 $ Road will not be negatively Impacted by the facility. A
copy of this demonstration shall be submitted to the County Planning
Director. S

dd. The County Planning Director shall be notified at least fourteen days in
SI S advance of construction of the stormwater control planned for each phaseof landfill development. The operator shall provide the County Planning

S Director with a copy of all correspondence to or from JEPA related to
stormwater detention and runoff control operations.

S ee. The landfill operator shall Implement the complaint procedure outlined in
the application, Including a hot line phone number, to address complaints.

ft. The landfill operator shall locate any farm drainage tiles on the-property,
and cooperate and coordinate with the County and appropriate drainage
dIstricts concerning possible andlor necessary removal or relocation of

S 5 those tiles. Any removed tiles shall be sealed from any potential migration
from the landfill, Only flnegrainad material shallbe used ac backfill in the

S trench, The construction shall be certified by an independent professional
engineer, such engineer approved by the County Planning Director.

S ~ A textured geomembrane shall be used when constructing the interior S

sideslope drainage layer, unless otherwise permitted by IEPA. S

hh. A textured geomembrane shall be used on the final coverlayer, unless
S otherwise permitted by IEPA.

IL Final cover over a filled area is to be placed not later than 60 days after S

placement of the final lift of solid waste, unless otherwise permitted by
IE At no time shall the area exceed 10 acres, unless otherwise
permitted by EPA.

1]. Leachate storage tanks shall be coated with a corrosive-resistant material S

• • prior to use, unless otherwise permitted by IEPA. S • S

The leachate’contalnmant area Is to~iRspectedforleaks or spills on a
‘~‘ daily basis with all resu~sredorded ~ log. ~ log shall be made •

6
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available to the County for review. Any stormwater suspected of being
contaminated In the leachate containment area shall be handled as
leachate, unless a sample is collected and tested for the annual teachate
parameter hst, and It is demonstrated that all organic compounds are
below detection limits, and all Inorganic compounds are detected at

S concentrations below NPDES discharge limits.

II. Ail stormwater detention basins and stormwater drainage ways/ditches
shall be inspected weekly during the operating life of the facility,. A wrItten
log shall be kept of the inspections and made available to the County for
review. The InspectIons shall be conducted on a quarterly basis for five
years after certified closure of the facility. After five years of closure, the
frequency of these inspections may be decreased to annually with 1EPA
approvai. At the time of inspection, all debris shalt be removed from the
inlet/outlet structures. If the sediment buildup in a basin or ditch is within
six inches below the Invert of the outlet structure, the basis shall be
dredged and all sediments removed. All stormwater drainage

S ways/ditches on property adjacent to the f~cilityshall be inspected on the.
same schedule (weekly during the operating life, quarterly during The first
five years of certified closure, then as approved by JEPA), if located on
publicly-owed land. If located on privately owned land, the same
inspections shall be performed if allowed by the property owner.

mm. An independent professional engineer (approved by the County Planning
Director) must re-certify any final cover disturbed as a result of Installation
of the gas management system, unless otherwise permitted by IEPA.

nn. ~ue to the number of adjacent private potable water wells and the
W’iKi1OWI1 impact of the landfill on groundwater flow within the bedrock
aquifer~the maximum spacing between bedrock monitoring wells around

S the entire landfill footprint shall be 250 feet, unless otherwise approved by
IEPA. No later than five years after the start of landfill operation at the
expansion, the operator shall install two additional deep dolomite aquifer
monitoring wells at locations and depths specified by the County, unless
otherwise permitted by IEPA. S

00. Leachate generation data will be recorded weekly per phase. The volume
of leachate pumped/shipped per week shall be recorded in a written log

S for each phase of the landfill. A monthly written summary comparing the
• actual leachate generation data to the theoretical volume expected must

be submitted to the County Planning Director.

pp. To provide additional hydrogeologic data on the southwest side of the
facility, twc~dditbnaIpiezometers must be installed. The~lrstpiezometer

• sh~llbe ini~edmidway between Gil 9A and GWA.:1~~cond~
• S ~azométer~a1Ibe installed midway between G137A an~140A,The S

7 5
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F: S

S shall be developed, then single well aquifer tested. S

A minimum ofone round ofst~t1cwater levels shall be collected from alt
the bedrock monitoring wells and piezometers, and the potantiometric
surface contour mapofthe bedrock aquifer shall be updated. The boting
logs, as-built diagrams, single well aquifer test data, and test reduction for

5 5 5 SS the two additional piezometers shall be included in the development
S p applicatIon to IEPA, The two additional piezometera shall be

proposed by the operator for the groundwater monitoring network in the
development permit application to IEPA.

qq. Burning of any type (including vegetative prescribed burning) is prohibited
at the facility, unless expressly approved by the County BoarcT.

When collecting groundwater samples, a wail must be purged a minimum
of 3 well volumes, and two consecutive field measuremsrtts with a +1- 0.3

S S.U. for pH and within 5% for specific conductMty must be conducted1
unless otherwise permitted by JEPA. All field measurementS must be
performed in the field at the time of sampftng, and not at the laboratory,
unless otherwise permitted by IEPA. S

sa. The temperature of the constructed soil liner that has not yet been
covered by waste shall be monitored continuously arid documented in
sub-freezing lemperatureé. Liner soils exposed to freezing temperatures
must be retested for permeability by lab (tube) or in-situ testing. Any soil
riot meeting the I x 10 E -07 cm/sec requirements shall be
reconstructed/recompacted and then retested by permitted methods.

tt. Citizen refuse boxes shall be emptied daily if refuse is deposited in them.

S uu. Results of any initial test performed to determine the level of noise from
the gas flare or generator systems shall be submitted to the County
Planning Director, If the gas flare or generator systems are malerially

S changed after initial noise level testIng, those systems shall be promptly
S retested. S

w. The. citizen-use recycling opportunities at the facility shall include, at a
S mInimum, mixed paper, glass. (green, brown, and clear), at least tWO

plastic types (numbers I and 2 plastics), ferrous metals, aluminum, and
• cardboard, The operator shall submit, to the County Planning Director.

quarterly reports on the tonnage/weight of aU material received.

ww. The hours of operation at the facility are limited to one-half hour before
and two hours after waste acceptance hours. Thus, operations are limited
to5~Oa m to 800 pm , Mon~thrcughSaturday

~ ~. - An operable valve shall be ins ted and continually rnatntained at each -

B
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sedimentation outlet basin. Proper operation of any and ~IIsuch valves
shall be verified by no lees than quarterly inspection, with the results of all
inspections documented arid provided to the County upon request.

yy. Because the model Indicates the thickness of In-situ clay is critical for the
diffusion of contaminants, the operator shall verify that clay soil with at
least three feet of continuous thickness is located betweenthe bottom of
the constructed clay liner and the top of the uppermost aquifer (dolomite
bedrock and basal sand unit). If the clay soil is found not to be three feet
thick, the underlying three feet of material shalt be over-excavated and
reccimpacted so that a minimum of six feet of low permeability material is
in place Immediately below the HOPE liner; and that this material has a
maximum hydraulic conductMty of I x 10’ cm/sec..

zz. All conditions must be stated in the development permit application
submItted to IEPA. The operator shall provide specific notation to the
County Planning Director, with the location ofeach condition in the
development permit application by section, page, and Condition numbers.

asa. The operator shall reimburse the County for reasonable expenses for
services ofprofessionals reviewing and analyzing the groundwater
corrective action atid assessment monitoring activities.

bbb. The operator shall install and maintain a double composite liner.

3. Whether the facility is located so as to mi~mIzeincompatibility with the character
of the ~ to minimize the effect_oQ5 the value of the
surrounding oronerty. The KCRPC recommended that criterion three be found

S to be satisfied, subject to special condItIons, A motion That the Board adopt the
KCRPC’s recon,mendation failed on a vote of 10 In favor and 18 opposed.
Having no additional motions, the Board finds that criterionthree is not satisfied.

4. Whether the facility is lgcated outside tJ~ebounda~of the 100 year flocdpIain~or
S the site is floodoroofed. The KCRPC re~ommendadthat criterion four be found

to be satisfied. A motion that the Board adopt the KCRPCS recommendation
passed on a voice vote, The Board finds that the proposed facility is laosted

S outside the boundary of the 100 year floodplain. S 5

• 5. Whether the plan of operations for the facility is d_esigned to minimize the danger
to the surrounding area from fire4 spiJls~orother operational accidents. The
KCRPC recommended that criterion five be found to be satisfied. A motion that

S the Board adopt the KCRPC’S recommendallon passed on a vote of 21) in favor
S and 8 oppa~d,with 2 absent The Board find~-1hatthe~i~tiof operations fo~the

facility is ~~igr~edto mln~mizethe danger to the e~~ndlngarea from fire,
spiIi~,or otM operationafaccidents. However, that fir~dIngis based upon the

9
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imposition of the following special conditions~

a. The landfill operator shall install a radiation detector at the scale house.
• The landfill operator shall record any alarm, and notify the County of each
• occurrence, the level of radiation detected, and the manner of response.

S b. The facility’s Emergenoy Action Plan (EAP) shall include contingencies for
management of incidental hazardous (including radioactive) waste-
Inadvertently received at the facility. The. EAP shall specify, at a minimum,

S qualified contractor criteria, overpacking, and Immediate off-site removal
of the incidental hazardous waste.

6. Whether the traffic øattems to, or from the facility are deslan~tominimize the
impact on existing~rafflcflows. The KCRPC recommended that criterion six be
found to be satisfied. A motion that the Board adopt the KCRPC’s
recommendation failed on a vote of 12 in favor and 18 opposed. Having no
addttionalmotions, the Board finds that criterion six is not satisfIed. 5

7. lIthe facility ‘will be treatinq1 storing or disposing of hazardous waste, an
emeraencv response plan exj~tsfor the iacilitv which,, includes notification.
~ontainrnentand eva~uatlonprocedures to be used in case of an accidental

S release. The KCRPC recommended that criterion seven be found inapplicable.
A motion that the Board adopt the KCRPC recommendation passed on a voice
vote. The Board finds that the facility will not be treating, storing1 or disposing of
hazardous waste Therefore, the Board finds that this criterion’ is not’ applicable.

8. If the facility i&Io be Iocat~ In a coun~y~erethe county, board has adopted a
SOlid waste man~ç~ementplan consistent with the Dlanninit recluirements of the
Local Solid Waste Di~p~salAct or the Solid WastePiaj~lnganthRec~ii~gAct~
the facility Is consistent withth~to(~The KCRPC recommended that criterion
eight be found to be satisfied. A motion that the Board adopt the KCRPC
recommendation passed on a vote of 25 in favor and 3 opposed. The Board
finds that the facility is consistent with the Kankakee County Solid Waste
Management Plan, However, that finding is based upon the imposition of the
following special conditions: S ‘ S

a. The landfill operator must comply with all obligations and responsibilities
of the Host Agreement between the County and Waste Management of

S ‘ Illinois, Inc. S

b. ‘ ‘The landfill operator must employ independent appraisers acceptable to
S the County as part of the Property Value Guarantee Program

S ~

L a. - The Property V?IUOL G~anteeProgram must be amended~toproy~tJiat
S - the Program tinue~f~F thirty years after the Included Property Owners

S 10
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are notified that waste is no longer being disposed of at the facility,

9. if,ihe facilIty will be,locat~dIn,~!eauiateci rec~araaarea,~nvaopllca~Je
reciuirements~pec~fjedby the flIlinoi~Pollutlon Contrail Board foi such area~
have been met. The KCRPC recommended that criterion nine be found
inapplicable. A motion that the Board adopt the KCRPC recommendation
passed on a vote of 27 In favor and I opposed. The Board finds that the facility
will not be located In a regulated recharge area. Therefore, the Board finds that
this criterion is not applicable.

S Conclusion

The Board •fj~qsthat alt conditions recommended in this resolution are
reasonable and necessary to accompllth The purposes of Section 39.2’ of the
Environmental Protection Act. (415 ILCS 5/39.2.)

Because the Board has found that criteria one, three, and six are not ~atisfied1local siting approval for the proposed expansion is denied.

This Decision made and entered on March 17, 2004.

ATTEST:

BRUCE CLARK. COUNTY CLERK

- ‘~~—‘.: ‘- ~ •~L
5- —‘S.

II



PROOFOF SERVICE

VictoriaL. Kennedy,a non-attorney,on oathstatesthat sheservedtheforegoingWaste
ManagementofIllinois, Inc.’s Petition for Hearing to ContestSiteLocation Denial by
enclosingsamein anenvelopeaddressedto thefollowing partiesasstatedbelow,andby
depositingsamein theU.S. mail at 161 N. ClarkSt.,Chicago,Illinois 60601,on or before5:00
p.m. onthis 21stdayof April, 2004:

Mr. Charles F. Heisten
Hinshaw& Culbertson
P.O. Box 1389
Rockford,IL 61105-1389

Mr. GeorgeMueller
George Mueller, P.C.
501 StateStreet
Ottawa,IL 61350

Mr. KennethA. Bleyer
AttorneyatLaw
923 W. GordonTer.,#3
Chicago,IL 60613-2013

Ms. ElizabethHarvey
Swanson,Martin & Bell
One IBM Plaza - Suite3300
330 North Wabash
Chicago, IL 60611

Mr. EdwardSmith
KankakeeCountyState’sAttorney
450East Court Street
Kankakee,IL60901

Mr. Christopher Bohien
Barmaun,Kramer, and Bohien, P.C.
200EastCourtStreet,Suite 502
Kankakee, IL 60901

Mr. Keith Runyon
1165Plum Creek Dr.
Bourbonnais,IL 60914

Ms. Jennifer J. SackettPohlenz
Mr. David Flynn
Querrey & Harrow
175 WestJacksonBoulevard
Suite1600
Chicago,IL 60604-2827

Victoria L. Kennedy ‘)

388313 -2-



RECE~VED
CLERK’S OFFICE

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD APR 22 2004

WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ILLiNOIS, iNC., ) STATE OF ILLINOIS
Pollution Control Board

Petitioner, ) No.PCB04-
)

vs. 5 ) (PollutionControlFacility
S ) SitingAppeal)

)
COUNTY BOARD OFKANKAKEE COUNTY, )
ILLINOIS, )

)
Respondent. )

NOTICE OFFILING PETITION FOR BEARING
TO CONTEST SITE LOCATION DENTAL

TO: SeeAttachedServiceList

PLEASETAKE NOTICEthat on April 21, 2004, we filed with the Illinois Pollution
Control Board, the attached Waste Management of Illinois, Inc.’s PETITION FORHEARING
TO CONTEST SITE LOCATION DENIAL.

W TE MANAGEMENT OF ILLINOIS, INC.

DonaldJ.Moran
PEDERSEN& HOUPT
161NorthClark Street,Suite3100
Chicago,Illinois 60601
(312)641-6888
AttorneyRegistrationNo. 1953923

Attorneys

388313



AFFIDAVIT OFSERVICE

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-109 of the Illinois Code of
Civil Procedure, herebyunderpenaltyperjury underthe laws of theUnited Statesof
America, certifies that on May 2. 2005 the Pollution Control Board was served an
orginial and four copies a copy of the foregoing Brief via letter:

Dorothy M. Gunn, Clerk
Illinois Pollution Control Board
James R. Thompson Center
100 West Randolph Street, Suite 11-500
Chicago, Ii 60601-3218

Attorney George Mueller
501 StateStreet
Ottawa,Ii 61350
815 433 4705
Fax8154224913

Donald J. Moran
Perterson & Houpt
161 North Clark Street, Suite 3100
Chicago, Ii 60601-3242
312261 2149
Fax 312 261 1149

Elizabeth Harvey, Esq.
Swanson, Martin, & Bell
OneIBM Plaza, Suite 2900
330NorthWabash
Chicago,Ii 60611
312321 9100
Fax312321 0990

Jennifer J. Sackett Pohlenz
175 W. JacksonBoulevard
Suite 1600
Chicago, Il 60604
3125407540
Fax 312 5400578

Mr. BradHalloran
Hearing Officer
Illinois Pollution Control Board
100 West Randolph, 1 1t~~Floor
Chicago,Il. 60601



312 8148917
Fax 8143669

Richard S. Porter
CharlesF. Helsten
Hinshaw& Culbertson
100 ParkAvenue, P.O.Box 1389
Rockford, Ii. 61 105-1389

Barmann,Kramer,andBohien,P.C.
300 East Court Street
Suite502
P.O.Box 1787
Kankakee, Ii 60901

c Karl Kruse
KankakeeCountyBoard
189 B. CourtStreet
Kankakee, II 60901

Kankakee County States Attorney
Ed Smith Kankakee County State’s Attorney
Bremda Gorski
450 E. Court Street.
Kankakee, Ii 60901

By depositing a copies (copy) thereof, enclosed in an envelope in the United States Mail
at Bourbonnais, Illinois, proper postage prepaid, before the hour of 5:00 P.M., on May
2”~’.2005. 2003 addressed as above. Local parties will be personally served.

Keith Runyon
1165 Plum Creek Dr. Unit D.
Bourbonnais,IL 60914
815937 9838
Fax 815 937 9164



PEDERSEN~HOUPT

March 11, 2004

I’

DonaldJ.Moran
Attorneyat Law.

312.261.2149
Fax 312.261.1149

dmoran@pedersenhoupt.com

Mr. Karl Kruse
do Mr. BruceClark
KankakeeCountyClerk
KankakeeCountyAdministrationBuilding
189 EastCourt Street
Kankakee,Illinois 60901

DearMr. Kruse:

On the last dayof the public commentperiod,February20, 2004,Michael Watsonmaii~dhis Summary
of Proceedings,ProposedFindingsand Written Comment(“WatsonComment”)to the KankakeeCounty
Clerk. WasteManagementof Illinois, Inc. (“W1\411”) did not receivethe WatsonCommentuntil February
25, 2004, and thus had no opportunity to respondduring the public hearingsor the written comment
period.

The WatsonCommentraisedfor thefirst time ajuri~dictionalchallengerelatingto the pre-filing notice
required for the property at 6933 South Route 45-52, Chebanse,Illinois. Page44 of the Watson
CommentallegesthatMrs. LaFerneA. Foster,alongwith herhusband,Leonard,was entitled to notice,
but was not served. According to the WatsonComment,becauseMrs. Fosterwas not served,WMII
failed to completenotice, and the County Board is without jurisdiction to decide the Site Location
Applicationfor theExpansionof theKankakeeLandfill.

The claim iswithout merit. However,as the publiccommentperiodendedFebruary20, 2004,WIvll1 had
no opportunity to respondto this claim. To avoid the implication that anysilence maybe viewed as
agreementto or acquiescencein the claim, WJvHI respectfullyrequestspermissionto file the attached
Responseto JurisdictionalClaim.

Thank youfor your consideration.

erytruly yours,

DonaldJ. My~an

DJM:vlk
Enclosure

cc: Mr. Charles F. Helsten
Mr. George Mueller
Ms.ElizabethHarvey
Mr. KennethA. Bleyer

Mr. ChristopherBohien
Mr. Keith Runyon
Ms. Jennifer J. Sackett Pohlenz
Mr. Byron Sandberg

Suite 3100 I 161 North Clark Street I Chicago, IL 60601-3242 I pedersenhoupt.com I 312 641 6888 I Fax 312 641 6895

A Pro~ession~ICorpor~tio~
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BEFORETHEKANKAKEECOUNTYBO~D .,~ tS~4

KANKAKEE COUNTY,ILLINOIS ~ S

IN THE MATTER OF: ) 5

)
SiteLocation Application of )
WasteManagementof Illinois, Inc.,
For Expansion ofthe ) S

KankakeeLandfill )
)

RESPONSETO JURISDICTIONAL CLAIM

WasteManagementofIllinois, Inc. (“WMII”), throughundersignedcounsel,submitsthe

following responseto the jurisdictional challengeraised on page 44 of “Michael Watson’s

Summaryof the Siting Procedings(sic), ProposedFindingsandWritten Comment”postmarked

February20, 2004(“WatsonComment”). S

1. The Watson Claim

TheWatsonCommentallegesthat basedon informationcontainedin a propertyrecord

cardmaintainedin the KankakeeCounty Assess9r’soffice, LeonardG. FosterandLaFerneA.

Fosterarebothshownasownersofthe propertylocatedat 6933 SouthRoute45-52, Chebanse,

Illinois, and henceboth must be servedpre-filing notice pursuantto Section 39.2(b) of the

Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (“Act”). According to ObjectorWatson,as WMII only

attemptedto serveMr. Foster,pre-fihingnoticewasincompleteandtheKankakeeCountyBoard

lacksjurisdictionto decidetheApplication. WatsonComment,p. 44~

The propertyrecordcardcontainedin the WatsonCommentis eight yearsold andnot

keptcurrent. TheCountyAssessorno longerpreparespropertyrecordcardsfor thepropertiesit



assesses,andinsteadmaintainsthenecessaryinformationin its computerdatabase.The second

pageofExhibit N to the WatsonComment,which is morecurrentthanthepropertyrecordcard

to which it is attached,confirmsthattheCountyAssessor’srecordsindicateLeonardG. Fosteras

the soleownerof thesubjectproperty.

2. TheWatsonClaim is Baseless

The WatsonClaim is not supportedby law or fact. It ignoresthe plain meaningof the

Act andlong-establishedPollution ControlBoardandjudicial decisions.

Section39.2(b)ofthe Act requiresthatpre-filing noticebeservedon ownersofproperty

within 250 feetofthesubjectsite,“said ownersbeingsuchpersonsor entitieswhich appearfrom

the authentictax recordsof the County in which the facility is to be located...” 415 ILCS

5/39.2(b) (2003). Thus, Section 39.2(b) requiresa siting applicantto usethe “authentic tax

records” to determinethe ownersto whom notice must be sent. Bishop v. Illinois Pollution

ControlBoard,_Ill.App.3d_, 601 N.E.2d310, 311(5thDist. 1992).

Caselaw hasestablishedthat “authentic tax records” may include the recordsof the

county treasurer,the county assessoror the county clerk. Bishop, 601 N.E.2d at 311, 315.

“Authentic tax records” are not the recordsmaintainedor availableat eachand every one of

thoseoffices. Bishop, 601 N.E.2dat 315; C.O.A.L. v. GreaterEgyptRegionalEnvironmental

Complex,No. PCB 97-29,slip op. at 6 (December5, 1996). A siting applicantmayrely upon

therecordsmaintainedby anyoneoftheseoffices, andis notrequiredto reviewall recordsheld

in theseoffices. Bishop, 601 N.E.2dat 315; C.O.A.L., slip op at 6; DiMaggio v. Solid Waste

AgencyofNorthernCook County,No.PCB 89-138; slip op. at8-9 (January11, 1990).

The “authentic tax records” for the County of Kankakeeare thosemaintainedby the

KankakeeCountyTreasurer.CountyofKankakeev. City of Kankakee,Nos.PCB 03-31,03-33

385210,2 2



and03-35 (cons.),slip op.at 16 (January9, 2003). A siting applicantsatisfiesits Section39.2(b)

notice obligation by servingnotice on thoseownersappearingin the records of the County

Treasurer. County of Kankakee,slip op. at 16-17. An applicantmay rely exclusivelyon the

recordsmaintainedby the county treasurer’soffice, eventhoughthe county assessor.or county

clerkmay have moreaccurateor current information. Bishop, 601 N.E.2dat 315; County of

Kankakee,slip op. at 16-17; C.O.A.L., slip op. at 6. The reasonis that the county treasurer’s

booksareauthentictax recordsasdefinedby Section39.2(b),andthe applicantis authorizedto

useand rely upon suchrecordsto identify the property ownersentitled to notice. Bishop,

601 N.E.2dat 315; C.O.A.L., slip op. at 6.

WMII usedtherecordsmaintainedby the KankakeeCounty Treasurerto identify those

propertyownersentitledto Section3 9.2(b)notice. Therecordsof theCountyTreasureridentify

Mr. Leonard5G. Fosteras the,sole ownerof the propertylocatedat 6933 South Route45-52,

Chebanse,Illinois, and the only personto whom the real estatetax bill is sent. Seeattached

GroupExhibit 1, KankakeeCountyRealEstateTax Bill, ParcelNumber13-25-05-300-005and

related documents,KankakeeCounty Treasurer. Wivill satisfied its Section 39.2(b) notice

obligationfor this propertywhenit personallyservedMr. Fosterwithpre-fihingnoticeon August

10, 2003. Site LocationApplication for Expansionof KankakeeLandfill, filed September26,

2003,Additional Information,TabA, Exhibit E.

Moreover,the recordsof the KankakeeCounty Assessorarenot inconsistentwith the

recordsoftheKankakeeCountyTreasurer.Theyboth indicatethat LeonardG. Fosteris thesole

ownerof the subjectproperty. SeeattachedGroupExhibit 2, ParcelInformation Report,Parcel

Number13-25-05-300-005andrelateddocuments,KankakeeCountyAssessor.While the eight

yearold propertyrecordcard lists LaFerneFosteras an owner,the currentowner information

385210.2 3



identifies LeonardFoster’as the sole owner. See Exhibit N to WatsonComment,pagetwo;

GroupExhibit 2.

Conclusion

ObjectorWatsonhasraiseda lastminute challengeto jurisdiction, basedupon an:entry

containedin a property record card held in ‘the KankakeeCounty Assessor’soffice. The

informationsuggestedin that card, that Mrs. LaFerneA. Fosteris an ownerof the propertyat

6933 South Route 45-52, Chebanse,Illinois, is not supportedor indicatedin any of the other

recordsmaintainedby the Assessorregardingthis property. Thoserecordsclearly indicatethat

Mr. Fosteris thesOleowner. S

Moreover, the recordsof the KankakeeCounty Treasurer,which are the authentictax

recordsofKankakeeCounty,unequivocallyindicatethat LeonardG. Fosteris thesoleownerof

thesubjectproperty. Accordingly,WMII hassatisfiedthestatutorynotice requirementsfor this

propertybypersonallyservingMr. Fosterwithpre-fihingnotice.

Respectfullysubmitted,

ManagementofIllinois, Inc.

Donald3. Moran
Pedersen& Houpt
161 NorthClark
Suite3100
Chicago,IL 60601
Telephone: (312) 641-6888

By:

385210.2 4



Exhibit C

CONCERNEDCITIZENS FOR A BETTER ENVIRONMENT,PETITIONERS
v.CITY OF HAVANAANDSOUTHWEST ENERGYCORPORATION,
RESPONDENTPCB 94-44May 19, 1994

The petitioners next assert that the councilmen and the mayor showed a
predisposition to the incinerator by their actions in regard to the referendum and
the annexation. (Pet.Br. at 6-7.) Specifically, petitioners point to a letter from the
Mayor on city stationary which was mailed to the citizens of Havana urging
support of the incinerator in the referendum. (Pet.Br. at 6; Pet.Exh. 6.) The
petitioners assert that the letters were sent in envelopes belonging to Southwest.
(Id.) The petitioners also allege that some of the councilmen placed yard signs in
support of the incinerator in their yards prior to the referendum. (Pet.Br. at 6; Tr.
at 144.) The petitioners also presented testimony indicating that Councilman
Schmidt confronted an opponent to the landfill during the annexation hearing and
became verbally and physically abusive. (Pet.Br. at 7; Tr. at 208-21 0.) Testimony
was also presented that the mayor had become verbally abusive to some of the
opponents of the incinerator. (Id.)
The petitioners argue that the mayor’s actions at the council meeting where the
siting vote was taken also showed bias. (Pet.Br. at 8.) Petitioners assert that the
proponents were allowed to make excessive noiseand show approval or
disapproval of council action. However, opponents were “yelled at” by the mayor
for quietly talking among themselves. (Pet.Br. at 8-9; Tr. at 247-249.)
Southwest points out that local officials are presumed to be objective and the
presumption is not overcome by the mere fact that an official has taken a public
position or expressed a strong view on a siting proposal. (Res.Br. at 15 citing E &
E Hauling v. PCB, 481 N.E.2d 664, 668 (1111985); Waste Management of Illinois
v. PCB, 530 N.E.2d 682, 695-696 (2nd Disti 988); Citizens for a Better
Environment v. PCB, 504 N.E.2d 166, 171 (1st Dist.1987). Southwest further
cites to Section 39.2(d) of the Act which specifically allows participation in the
decision by a member of the county board even if that member has expressed an
opinion publicly. (Res.Br. at 15.)
Southwest argues that, given this legal framework, the allegations made by
CCBE are not sufficient to overturn Havana’s siting decision. (Res.Br. at 16.)
According to Southwest, the mayor did not vote on the siting issue (Res.Br. at 16;
C000078-0081) and the expressions of support by two council members eight
months prior to voting on the projects “do not demonstrate the kind of bias or
predisposition necessary to nullify a siting determination”. (Res.Br. at 16-17; Tr.
at 144-145.)
Southwest has properly cited some of the extensive case law regarding alleged
predisposition of the decisionmaker. (Res.Br. at 15.) Although the record
indicates that members of the council made statements indicating a bias such



statements are not sufficient to disqualify a decisionmaker. All of the councilmen
testified that their decision was based on the record developed at hearing and on
the application. Therefore, the Board finds that the councilmen were properly
allowed to participate in the siting process and any predisposition did not result in
a fundamentally unfair proceeding.

1994 WL 235432, *6

See also 415 ILCS 5/39.2(d), which states in petinant part:
The fact that a member of the county board orgoverning body of the municipality has publicly expressed an
opinion on an issue related to a site review proceeding shall not preclude the member from taking part in the
proceeding and voting on the issue

Lastly review a portion of E & E Hauling from the Illinois Supreme Court:

In contending that the board was disqualified from acting as decision- maker of
the permit application, the village first claims that the board had an interest in the
permit application. This interest was the $30,000 per month, on the average, that
the board and its members in their capacity as commissioners of the district
received. These payments, of course, were not a direct pecuniary benefit to the
commissioners, but rather a benefit to the community that they serve. A classic
example of an impermissible indirect interest appeared in Wardv. Villageof
Monroeville(1972), 409 U.S. 57, 93 S.Ct. 80, 34 L.Ed.2d 267. There the
defendant was tried and convicted of two traffic oftenses by the mayor of the
village. The mayor had a broad control over the village *42 government and its
finances, and traffic fines generated a “substantial portion” of the village’s annual
revenue. The Supreme Court held that though the interest was not a personal
one, the important impact that fines had on village finances that the mayor
supervised created sufficient temptation not to accord the defendant due process
of law. The situation here is clearly distinguishable. The revenue from the landfill
of $30,000 per month must be considered in perspective. The annual budget of
the district was $163.5 million in 1982. The mayor’s reliance in Ward on traffic
fines was obviously a different matter.
[4J More fundamentally, the board should not be disqualified as a decision-maker
simply because revenues were to be received by the county. County boards and
other governmental agencies routinely make decisions that affect their revenues.
They are public service bodies that must be **668 ***825 deemed to have made
decisions for the welfare of their governmental units and their cOnstituents. Their
members are subject to public disapproval; elected members can be turned out
of office and appointed members replaced. Public officials should be considered
to act without bias. Cf Memphis Light, Gas& WaterDivisionv. Craft (1978), 436
U.S. 1, 98 S.Ct. 1554, 56 L.Ed.2d 30; Gossv. Lopez(1975), 419 U.S. 565, 95
S.Ct. 729, 42 L.Ed.2d 725.
It doesnotseemunusualthat a landfill wouldbeproposedfor location onpublicly owned
property. TheActwasamendedtoplacedecisionsregardingthesitesfor landfills with
localauthoritiesandto avoidhavinga regionalauthority (theAgency)in apositionto



imposeits approvalofa landfill siteon an objectinglocal authority.Here, a local
authority approvedthelandfill, but thevillage, a local authority itself is alleging that the
countyboardshouldbedisqualifiedbecauseit ownsthelandfill property.Wedo not
considerthat the legislatureintended *43 this unremarkablefactualsituationto make
“fundamentalfairnessoftheprocedures”impossible.
[5] Thevillagenextclaimsthatthehearingwasunfair becauseboth thecountyandthe
district hadearlierapprovedthelandfill by ordinance.Thevillagethus is claiming a type
ofbias thathasbeencalled “prejudgmentofadjudicativefacts.” (SeeK. Davis,3
AdministrativeLaw Treatisesec.19:4 (2ded.1980).)Buttheordinancesweresimplya
preliminaryto thesubmissionofthequestionofapermitto theAgency.Subsequently,the
Actwasamendedand theboardwaschargedwith theresponsibilityofdecidingwhether
to approvethelandfill’s expansion.Theboardwasrequiredtofind that thesix standards
for approvalundertheamendedactweresatisfied.It cannotbesaid thattheboard
prejudgedtheadjudicativefacts, i.e., thesix criteria. This conclusionissupportedby
theline of decisions that there is no inherent bias created when an administrative
bodyis chargedwith both investigatoryand adjudicatoryfunctions. See,e.g.,
Withrowv. Larkin (1975),421 U.S. 35, 47-50, 95 S.Ct. 1456, 1464-65, 43 L.Ed.2d
712, 723-25; Scottv. DepartmentofCommerce& CommunityAffairs (1981),84 lIl.2d
42, 54-56,48 Ill.Dec. 560, 416 N.E.2d1082.
Weconsiderthat theappellatecourtproperlyheldthat theboardwascorrect infinding
thatthestatutorystandardshadbeensatisfied,and thatportion oftheappellatecourt’s
judgmentis affirmed.
Theappellatecourt’s conclusionthatthePCBerredin decidingthattheboardwas
disqualifiedfrom conductinga hearingwascorrect, butits reasoningwaserroneous.The
court deemedthat theboardwasan impropertribunal, but sincetherewasno other
forumavailable, therule ofnecessityrequiredtheboardto actastheforum.As we have
statedhere,theboardwasnot to bejudgedbiasedand-disqualjfiedfromSacting. Because
theappellatecourt’s conclusionto reversethedecisionofthe*44 PCBwascorrect,we
affirm thatportionofthejudgmentalso.
Judgmentaffirmed.

citation for the foregoingis
E & E Hauling, Inc. v. Pollution Control Bd. 107 llI.2d 33, *41, 481 N.E.2d664,
**667...668 89 IIl.Dec. 821,**824 - 825(lii., 1985)
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Natural Resources Building
615 EastPeabody Drive

Champaign, IL 61820-6964
217/333-4747

FAX 217/244-7004
~EXJ]I

January8, 2004

Mr. KeithRunyon
1165PlumCreekDrive, Unit D
Bourbannais,Illinois 60914

Dear Mr. Runyon:

Perourphoneconversationthis afternoon,I amsendingyou a copyofa letter that I sentto Mr.
RichardMurrayregardingtwo potentiallandfill sitesin KankakeeCounty. Theoriginal letterwas
datedJune4, 2002andcontained the original, hand-colored figures. 1amsendingyou acopyofthe
letter.I recoloredthe figuresto matchtheoriginals.

I understand that additional site information has been developed for the proposed landfill sites, but
the content of my letter is still valid. From a geologic perspective, better landfill sites are available
in southwesternKankakeeCounty. ~ — _____________________________________

Pleasecall me (217-244-2765)or email me (mehnert(2IUsgs.uiuc.edu)if you haveanyquestions
regardingthis letter.

Sincerely,

dwardMelmert,Ph D
Sr. Geohydrologist& SectionHead
GroundwaterGeologySection

Enclosure

Printed onRecycledPaper



kuNois STATE GEOLOG~cALSURVEY
NaturalResources Building

615 East Peabody Drive
Champaign, IL 61820-6964

217/333-4747
FAX 21 7/244-7004

June4, 2002

RichardMurray
OUTRAGE
P.O. Box 222
Bradley, illinois 60915

Dear Mr. Murray:

Thisletteris inresponseto yourphone call ofMay 30th~Wediscussedthe siting ofaiandfill in Section 25,
T3ON, Ri 4Wandthe expansion ofa landfill in Section 5,T29N,RI3W in KankakeeCounty. Both sites
are nearOtto, IL. Aswedliscussedon the telephone,, geologyis an importantconsiderationin landfill siting,
but it maynotbe the sole basis that local decisionmakersuseto site landfills, NI provide some information
about thegeologyof the twosites anddescribethe suitabilityfor sitinglandfills-atthese-locations. Ihave
also included a brief bibliography that describes the geology andgroundwater of thearea.

The illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgencyregulates landfills in illinois. The BureauofLand handles
landfills. You maywish to contact them to determine the permit statusandadditionalinformationforthe
twolandfill sites. Here is somecontactinformationfor IEPA’s BureauofLand--BureauChie~Bill Child
(217) 785-9407, Division of LandPollution ControlManaget~=Michael Nechvatai(217) 785-9407, Field
Operations=’ Paul Purseglove (217) 785-8604, Permits Joyce Munie (217> 524-3300 Solid Waste
Management=David Walters(217) 785-8604.

Please.callme(217-244-2765)oremailme (~çj~nert(äiis~s.uiue.edu)if youhaveanyquestionsregarding
this letter.

rdMehnert,Ph.D.
SeniorGeohydrologist& Section Head
Groundwater Geology Section

Enclosures

Print~’,ln~, ~ ~

ILLINUtS

C~p~RThV’ff OF

NATURAL
RE~UUK~S



GeologicSuitability for PotentialLandfill Sitesin KankakeeCounty
Preparedby J~dwardMehnert, flinois StateGeologicalSurvey

June3, 2002

Thisreportdescribesthegeologicsuitability forsitingoa landfill in Section25,T3ON,Ri4Wandthe
expansion of a landfill in Section5, TZ9N, RI3W in KankakeeCounty.

BackgroundInformation
Section5, T29N, RJ3W,KankakeeCounty
USG&7.5minutetopographicmap=~Kankakee,highsin western(highestelev=700ft) andeastern
(highestelev=665 it) sidesofsection,low in centerofsection,landgenerallyslopeseasttowardthe
IroquoisRiver.

Drift thickness(thicknessofgeologicmaterialiabove~thebedro’-lcseefigure1)=25to>50feet,generally
decreasestowardthe east.

StackUnitM~(geologicmaterialstoadepthof50ft, seefigure2& key)=areaismappedprimarilyas
(g)15with someaEeasoil andIS. In I areas,50 feet ofsilty andclayeydiamictonsoftheWedron
Formationwouldbeexpectedtobefound. in IS areas,>20feetofsilty andclayeydiamictonsofthe
WedronFormationOver>20feetofSilurianandDc nianroc-ka(mainly4oloinitc~wouidbeexpected
tobefound.in (g)ISareas,<20feetoftheDoltonMemberoftheEqualityFonnation(sanddepositedin
beachesandbars)[thissandmaynotbepresentin all locations]overlies>20feetofsilty and claycy
diamictonsoftheWedronFormationover>20feetofSilurianandDevomanrocks(mainlydolomite).

pte~tia~$baiio..w ~auijç f~j~uçipa~Wjste~(intetpretativemapto
assessareageologyfor sitingmunicipallandfills, seefigure3,key& table)=mainlyBiwithsomeareas
mappedasCiarniE. Asshowninthetable for figure3, areasmappedasD,E, ForG(coloredgreen
onfigure3)areexpectedtohavefewgeologiclimitationsfor landburialofmumcipalwastes,Otherareas
wouldbeexpectedtohaveahigherpotentialforgroundwatercontamination (81andCl areas)ortrench
designproblemsandsurfacecontamination(81areas).

Section25, T3ON, R14W, KankakeeCourny
1~SGS7.5minutetopographicmap~’West Kankakee,gen fly flat lying(elev=620to625ft) withuatural
andman-madedrainage, Interstate 57nins throughthe easternpartofthe section.

Drift thickness(thicknessofgeologicmaterialsabovethebedrock,seefigure 1 )=‘ <25 to50feet,generally
decreasestowardthecast.

Stack Unit Map(geologicmaterialstoadepthof5O ft. seefigure2 & key)=areaismappedasgi. In gI
areas,<20feetoftheDoltonMemberoftheEqualityPonnation-(sanddepositedinbeachesandbars)
overlies>20 feetof silty andclayeydiamictons ofthe Wedron Formation.

?tentiaiforCpnt~uninationofShallow Aauifers/LandB alofMwric palWastes(inteq~retativemapto
assessareageologyfor sitingmunicipàl landfills, seefigure3, key& table) 81. As shownin thetable



for figure3,areasmappedasD,E,For Gareexpectedtohavefewgeologiclimitationsforlandburialof
municipalwastes.Otherareaswouldbe expected to have ahigherpotentialfor-groundwatercoiitaminatinn
(BI andCl areas)or trenchdesignproblemsandsurfacecontamination(81 areas).

Groundwater of theArea
Thegroundwaterresourcesof easternKankakeeCountyandnorthernJroquoisCountyweredescribed
byCravenset al (1990) The Silunandolomite, which is highlyfracturedm its upper50to 100feet, is the
primaryaquiferin KankakeeCounty The Silunandolomiteistheuppermostbedrockunitm most
ofKankakeeCounty Inaddition,significantgroundwater supplies areobtained from deeperbedrock
aquifersthroughoutKankakeeCountyandfrom shallowsandand~aveldepositsimthesoutheastparttf
KankakeeCounty.Inaddition,thereportby Cravensetal. (1990)containsaconsiderableamountof
geochemicaldatafor wells completed.in the Siluriandolomite.

Summary
From ageologicperspective,better landfill sites reavailablein thesouthwesternportionofKankakee
CountythanthoseproposedmSection25,T3ON,R14WandSectionS, T29N, Ri 3W In bothsections
Sand25,surficialsandsmaybepresentContaminantsfrom the landfill couldbetransportedtc~nearby
surfacewater andgroundwater throughthese sands In Section 5, the shallow depth oftheSilunan
dolomite (areas mappedas(g)I5and15 in figure2)isalsoaconcernforgroundwatercontaminationnithat
aquiferPleasebeawarethattheenclosedmapsweredevelopedfromregionalip~onandrepr~~sent
thegeologyonaregionalbasis Toassessthesuitabilityofanysite,sitemvestigationsarenecessaryto
confirmthe regionalgeologic interpretationandevaluatethe suitability for sitinga landfill or other facility.

Bibliography
Berg,R C ,andJP Kempton, 1988 Stack-tJmtMappmgofGeologicMatenalsmilhnoistoaDepth-of
15 Meters,Illinois StateGeologicalSurveyCircular542,23 p (statewide mapshowing3Dgeologytoa
depth of 50 feet)

Berg,R.C., J.P. Kempton, andK. Cartwright,1984.Potentialfor ContanuinatiOn ofShallowAquifersin
illinois, illinois StateGeologicalSurvey Circular 532,30p. (statewidemap showing potentialfor
contamination from wastedisposal)

Cravens,S.J., S.D.Wilson,andRC.Bafty 1990.RegionalAssessmentoftheGrôund-WaterResources
inEasternKankakeeandNorthernIroquoisCounties,illinois StateWaterSurveyReportofInvestigation
111, 86 p (describes geology and groundwater in anareajust eastof2 sections)

Frankie,W.T., 1998. Guideto theGeologyofKankakeeRiverStateParkArea,KankakeeCounty,
Illinois, Illinois StateGeologicalSurveyFieldTrip Guidebook19988,62p (Geologicreport describing
thegeologyofKankakeeRiverStateParkin particular andKankakeeCountyin general Goodbasic
discussion of geology.)

Piskm,K,andkE Bergstrom, 1975 GlacialDnftmlllinois TlucknessandCharacter,ilhinoisState

Geological Survey Circular490,35p. (statewide mapshowing the thickness of the geologic materials
above the bedrock or “drift”)



Visocky,A.P.,M.G. Sherrill, andK. Cartwright,1985.Geology,Hydrology,andWater Quality of the

CambrianandOrdovicianSystems in NorthernIllinois, illinois StateGeologicalSurveyandillinois State
Water:SurveyCooperativeGroundwaterReport10,136p. (describesbedrockgeologyandgroundwater
ofnorthernIL).

Note: ISGS publicationsareavailable at manylocal librariesor from theISGSat 217/244-2414. ISWS
publications~ arealso available at many local libraries or by phoning 217/333-8888.
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tJi~ 3

Al Permeable bedrock at or with in 20 feet of land surface, variable overlying materials

A2 ~ j~TTT.~ Thick, permeable sand and gravel within 20 ft of land surface.

20 ‘‘“ - ~. Permeable bedrock generally with in 20 ft of land surface; where deeper, sand and
A3 / gravel may be present

50 / / /

20 1 - • Cemented sandstone within 20 ft of land surface; variable, relatively impermeable

A4 • : - overlying materials.

50

20 ‘~.f~’ Permeable bedrock generally within 20 ft of land surface; overlying materials
AS “ variable but mostly till.

50 ‘‘~ . -

AX 20 ~ Altuvlum, a mixture of gravel, sand, silt, and clay along streams, variable in com-

50 ~ position and thickness.

20 ~ Sand and gravel less than 20 ft thick over relatively impermeable till or bedrock.

50 ~

20-1~’.•-’1~~.Sand and gravel, within 20 ft of surface, overlain and underlain by relatively132 ..‘.‘~“ impermeable tilt, other fine-grained material, and/or bedrock.

50 “‘~~‘

x (~-~Map complex of permeable bedrock on ridges, underlain primarily by shale on
_-:_~ slopes and valleys.

20 ~ ‘7,~-~Permeable bedrock within 20 to 50 ft of surface, overtain by till or other fine.
Cl -‘ “~ grained material.

50

• C2 20 ~‘ Sand and gravel within 20 to 50 ft of surface, overlain and underlain by relativelyimpermeable till, other fine.grained material, and/or bedrock.

i~-•—_-.S-- ‘1
C3 20-I - ~-‘ Permeable bedrock, mostly within 20 to 50 ft of surface. overlain by till or other

50 1 ~ fine-grained materials; bedrock surface below 50 ft in places.

20 ~“ ‘~ Cemented sandstone, within 20 to 50 ft of surface, overlairi by relatively imper-
C4 ~ —‘ ~ meabie tilt or other fine-grained materials.

50 • •

C5 20 “J .~9~2~’4Predominantly till with discontinuous sand and gravel locally present within 50
• ~-‘‘‘ ‘ f ft d

50 ‘ ‘ “ -

o 20 :~‘i Uniform, relatively impermeable sandy till at least 50 ft thick; no evidence of
interbedded sand and gravel.

50

• E 20 ‘c—’, ~ Uniform, relatively impermeable silty or-clayey till at least 50 ftthick;noevidence
- of interbedded sand and gravel.

I—C’ ~
F 20j’ : ::: Relatively impermeable bedrock within 20 ft of surface, mostly overlain by till

— — — or other fine-grained materials.
5Oi~-’”~~~i

2O-~’-’~.‘ ,‘ .~“ Relatively impermeable bedrock within 20 to 50 ft of surface. overlain by till or
G — _- — ~. other fine-grained materials. -

50 — —

Figure 9
Ratings, vertical sequences, and descriptions of geologic materials for Plate 1: Land Burial of Municipal Wastes. The ratings are based
on the capacities of materials to accept, transmit, restrict, or remove contaminants from waste effluents.

POTENTIAL FOR CONTAMINATION OF SHALLOW AQUIFERS IN ILLINOIS
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Primarily bedrock Primarily glacial drift •

Materials
generally

having few
limitations

Limitation Limitation

.
•

frrench construction
Groundwater problems

contamination and/or
potential surf~ace,

contaminatIon

•, Trench design
Groundwater problems

contamination and
potential surface

contamination-

Al (Al)*
• A2

A3
A4 (A4)
A5 • AX

(81) BI
82 (82)

BX

Cl
C2

C3

CS (CS)

D

(F)

G
Figure 11 Summary: geologic limitations for land burial of municipal wastes. (Map units in
parentheses indicate secondary or local limitations.)
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Primarily bedrock - Primarily drift

Materials
generally

having few
limitations

Limitation Limitation

Surface
Groundwater contamination

contamination (acceptance)
~ ~ orpo en Ia

problems

•

Groundwater u ace
contamination contamination

. (acceptance)
p0 ntia problems

Al (Al)*
A2
A3 (A3)AX

81 (Bi)
B2 (82)
B3 (B3)
B4 (84)

(Cl) ci
C2 (C2)

(Dl) Dl
(D2) D2(D3) ~D3) D3

• Figure 12 Summary: geologic limitations for surface and near-surface waste disposal. (~Map
units in parentheses indicate secondary or local limitations.)
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Public Commentary:
Theattachedcasedocumentrevealsthefundamentalunfairnessof theJanuary12~•O4~: ~. n~ p~ 2: fl 3
applicationsubmissionby Waste Management.TheCounty~sattorneysHarveyand
Heisten, along with Kankakee CountyStatesAttorneyEd Smith werecomplici~in,
mismiorminganddeceivingtheCountyBoard regardingcommumcationsfrom’t1~eir
constituents. K~.

TheabovementionedAttorneyss told theCountyBoardthat theycouldnot talk to their
constituentsregardingthependinglandfill application. In sodoing theyviolatedthe
publics1st. Amendmentrightsandprejudicedthe CountyBoardby excludingthepublic
from expressingtheirviewsto theirelectedrepresentatives.Only WasteManagement
wasallowedto giveinformationvia theSiting Hearings.

It is ironicthat theattachedcaseprovesthatHarvey distortedthe entireprocess.Ms
Harveyin behalfof LandAndLakes,theapplicantin RandolphCounty.Thatcitizen
communicationsviolatedtheexparterule,. Ms. Harveylostthatdecisionto Richard
Porterof HinshawandCulbertson,Mr. Heisten’s firm.

Thatdecisionwaslaterupheldat the
5

th DistrictAppellateCourt in MountVernon.
Illinois

This is just anotherin a longline offundamentallyunfairpracticesengagedin by the
ApplicantandtheCounty. Justonemoreinstancein which thecitizensrightswere
abrogatedin thewholeugly process.

Keith L Runyon
Objector
1165PlumCreekDr. Unit D
Bourbonnais,Ii 60914
2/20/04



ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOARD
September21, 2000

LAND AND LAKES COMPANY,

Petitioner,

v. ) PCB 99-69
(Pollution ControlFacilitySiting Appeal)

RANDOLPHCOUNTYBOARD OF COMMISSIONERS,)

Respondent.

ELIZABETH S. HARVEY, MCKENNA, STORER,ROWE,WHITE & FARRUG,APPEAREDON BEHALF OF
PETITIONER;

STEPHENHEDINGERAPPEAREDON BEHALF OFPETITIONER;

JAMESW. KELLEY APPEAREDON BEHALF OF PETITIONER;and

RICHARDS. PORTER,HINSHAW& CULBERTSON,APPEAREDON BEHALF OF RESPONDENT.

OPINION AND ORDEROF THE BOARD (by G.T.Girard):

On November23, 1998, LandandLakesCompany(LandandLakes) filed anappealpursuantto Section
40.1 of theEnvironmentalProtectionAct (Act) (415 ILCS 5/40.1(1998))of anOctober19, 1998decIsionby the
RandolphCountyBoardofCommissioners(RandolphCounty)denyingsiting of apollutioncontrolfacility.
RandolphCountydeniedthesitingbasedon LandandLakes’ failing to meettwo of theninecriterialistedin Section
39.2of theAct (415 ILCS 5/39.2(1998)). In this appealLandandLakesassertsthat theproceedingsbefore
RandolphCountywerefundamentallyunfair andthat thedecisionby RandolphCountywasagainstthemanifest
weightof theevidence.

Hearingswereheld beforeChiefHearingOfficerJohnKnittle on May9 and10, 2000. Thehearingswere
held in Chester,RandolphCounty,Illinois. LandandLakesified itsbriefon June16, 2000,andareplybrief onJuly
28, 2000, RandolphCountyfiled itsbriefonJuly 17, 2000. In additionto thebriefsfiled by theparties,anainicus
curiae briefwasified on July 14, 2000,by KennethBleyerandDora Spinney.

TheBoardaffirmstheRandolphCountyBoardofCommissioners’denialof siting for apollution control
facility. Basedontherecordandasexplainedbelow,theBoardfindsthattheproceedingswerenot fundamentally
unfairandthedecisionto denysiting basedon two statutorycriteriawasnotagainstthemanifestweightofthe
evidence.

PRELIMINARY MATfERS

AsapreliminarymattertheBoardwill addressLandandLakes’motionto strikefiled onJuly28, 2000.
RandolphCountyfiled aresponseto thatmotionalongwith alternativemotionson August10, 2000. OnAugust18,

I Thetranscriptofthehearingswill becitedas“Tr. at”; thepetitioner’sbriefwifi becitedas“Pet. Br. at”; thereply
briefwill becitedas “Reply”; respondent’sbriefwill becitedas “Resp.Br. at”. TheRandolphCountyrecordwill be
cited by referringto thecountyrecordtableof contentsnumberand,whereappropriate,apagenumber“TOC # at
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2000,LandandLakesfiled anobjection. TheBoarddeniesthemotionto strikeandallowsRandolphCounty’sbrief
to exceed50 pages.

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

Section39.2(a)of theAct provides:

Thecountyboardofthecountyor thegoverningbodyofthemunicipally..,shall approveor
disapprovetherequestfor local sitingapprovalfor eachpollutioncontrol facility whichIs subject

• to suchreview. Anapplicantfor localsitingapprovalshallsubmitsufficientdetailsdescribingthe
proposedfacility to demonstratecompliance,andlocalsitingapprovalshallbegrantedonly If the
proposedfacility meetsthefollowing criteria

ii. thefacility is so designed,locatedandproposedto beoperatedthatthepublichealth,
safetyandwelfarewill beprotected;

viii. If thefacility Is to belocatedin acountywherethecountyboardhasadoptedasolid
wastemanagementplanconsistentwith theplanningrequirementsoftheLocal Solid
WasteDisposalAct ortheSolid WastePlanningandRecyclingAct, thefacility Is
consistentwith thatplan;

415 ILCS 5/39.2(a)(1998).

Section40.1(a)oftheAct providesin pertinentpart:

If thecountyboardorthegoverningbodyof themunicipality. . , refusesto grantapprovalunder
Section39.2of thisAct, theapplicantmay,within 35 days,petitionfor aheatingbeforetheBoard
to contestthedecisionof the countyboardorthegoverningbodyof themunicipality. * * * The
countyboardorgoverningbodyof themunicipalityshallappearasrespondentin suchhearing,
andsuchhearingshall bebasedexclusivelyon therecordbeforethecountyboardorthegoverning
body ofthemunicipality.* * * In makingits ordersanddeterminationsunderthisSection,the
Boardshallincludein Its considerationthewrittendecisionandreasonsfor thedecisionof the
countyboardorthegoverningbody ofthemunicipality,thetranscribedrecordof thehearingheld
pursuantto subsection(d) of Section39.2,andthefundamentalfairnessof theproceduresusedby
thecountyboardorthegoverningbody of themunicipality In reachingIts decision. 415 ILCS
40.1(a)(1998).

FACTS

Thepertinentfactsofthiscasearedescribedin thefollowing section.First, theproceduralhistoryis
presented.Next,therefollowsasummaryof testimonyattheBoard’sMay9 and10, 2000hearings.Lastly,thereis
adiscussionof thefactsrelevantto thedenialof siting basedon Section39.2(U)and(viii) oftheAct.

OnApril 28, 1998,LandandLakesfiled asiting applicationseekingapprovalto siteapollutioncontrol
facility in RandolphCounty,pursuantto Section39.2of theAct (415ILCS5/39.2(1998)). TOC 3. UnderRandolph
County’sordinance,theRandolphCountyPlanningCommission(PlanningCommission)coordinatedreceiptof
evidence.Four membersofthePlanningCommission(Marvin Campbell,MikeRiebeling,DorothyRinne,andTom
Smith)conductedapublichearingonthesiting application. Resp.Exh, 1. Thosepublic hearingswereheld onJuly
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28andJuly 29, 1998,andwritten commentswereacceptedfor a period of 30 daysafterthe public hearing. TOC 2,
9, 10, and11. The Planning Commissionwaschargedwith preparing areport and recommendationto be submitted
to theRandolph CountyBoard. Resp.Exh. 1.

On September21, 1998,after thecloseof thepublic commentperiod, the PlanningCommissionfiled its
report titled “Proposed Findings, Conditions & Recommendationsofthe Randolph County Commission’ (Report).
TOC 8. The Report concludedwith arecommendationthat siting be denied. Id. The Planning Commission
recommendeddenial becausethe Planning Commissionfound that thefacility would not be locatedconsistentwith
theSolid WasteManagementPlan of Randolph County contrary to Section39.2(vlii) ofthe Act (415 ILCS
5/39.2(vlii) (1998)). Id. On October 19, 1998,the Randolph County Board voted onthe application and denied
siting on thegrounds that criterion 11(415ILCS 5/39.2(a)(il) (1998)) andcriterion viii (415 ILCS 5/39.2(a)(vili)
(1998)) were not met.

The Randolph County Board consistsof threemembers. At thetime of thevoteon Land andLakes’siting
application, thosememberswere: ClemEsker, Terry Moore, and Ronald Stork. Tr. at 68, 134, 147. Stork was
Chairmanof the Board. Tr. at 68. All threemembersof the Board receivedcontactsconcerningthe siting
application thatwereoutsidethe record of theproceedings. Members of the Planning Commissionalso received
commentsthat were outsidethe record. A summaryof eachperson’stestimonyat theBoard’s hearingwill follow.

Ron Stork

Stork testified that he receiveda numberof phonecalls regardingthesiting application-at both his home
andhis business.The callsoccurredafter theapplication wasified In April 1998but before theCountyBoard~s
decision in October 1998. Tr. at 73-74; 91-92;96-98. Stork did not rememberthe exactnumber of calls hereceived.
He testified at hearingto receivingfive or six phonecalls. Tr. at 73. However, in deposition,hetestifiedthat he
receivedtwo or threedozencalls. Tr. at 97-98. Stork Installed a “trap andtrace” onhis phonelines at homeand at
work. Stork didso becausehewasconcernedabout hisfamily. Tr. at 97-100. Many callersdid not identify
themselves,but wantedto discussthesubstanceofthe landifil siting application. Tr. at 73. Stork statedthat he did
not speakto the callersregardingthe substanceoftheapplication. Tr. at 91. Stork specificallyremembersa phone
conversationwith Kenneth Marldey, during which Markley madesubstantivestatementsabout theproposed
landfill. Tr. at 94-97. Markley Is, and wasat thetime, thevicepresidentof a group knownas FORCE. Tr. at 39,40.

Stork testified that hereceivedsomewritten commentsregardingthelandfill which opposedthelandfill.
Tr. at 70, 72, 92. He took the commentshe receivedto thecounty clerk’s office to be placedin the-record. Tr. at 70,
92.

Stork testified that he wasapproachedin personabout the siting process.Alan Corbin told Stork that
peoplewere opposedto thelandfill, andstatedthat he did not think it would begoodfor Stork’s businessif the
landfill weresited. Tr. at 103-104. Stork alsoreceiveda phonecall from DaveandPeggyGuebert. The Gueberts
opposedthelandfill. Tr. at 105. Stork statedthat he did not discussthe meritsof theapplication with thesepeople.
Tr. at 125.

Storkwasinvited to attend two meetingsregarding thelandfill siting. Stork wasaskedto speakat a
meetingof theRandolph County Farm Bureauwhile thelandfill application waspending. Tr. at 69. Stork accepted
that invitation, andappeared at theFarm Bureaumeetingto answerquestionsaboutiheapplication. Tr. at 70-71.
Additionally, Stork wasaskedto attenda meetingof FORCE,which he did not attend. Tr. at 71.

Stork receivedonephonecall in whichthecaller statedthat shehad overheard conversationsthat Stork’s
construction equipmentcould bevandalized. Tr. at 78. Shortly after thatphonecall, Stork discoveredfour fiat tires
onhis construction equipment in oneday,which wasunusual. Tr. at 101-102.

Stork also receivedapackagein themail, while the siting application waspending. Tr. at 75. The package
wasin a manila envelope,andit appearedto be full of garbage. “Stuff wasleaking from the package.” Tr. at 75-76.



4

Storkdid not openthepackage,but turnedit overto theSpartaPoliceDepartment.Tr. at 76. Storkbelievesthathis
receiptof thispackageof garbagewasrelatedto thelandfill sitingproceeding.Tr. at 77.

Additionally, Storkwasthetargetof pranks,whichhebelieveswererelatedto thelandfill siting process.
Tr. at 82, 128, But Storkalsoindicatedthat“sometimesasanelectedofficial thereis little gamesthatareplayedand
youtendto forgetthem.” Tr. at 82. OnceStork’s wife wascalledatworkby alocal florist, askingwheretheflorist
shoulddeliverthelargenumberof flowersor plantssupposedlyorderedby her. However,Stork’s wifehadnot
orderedflowers. Tr. at 8 1-82. Onanotheroccasion,someonecalledtherestaurantwheretheSpartaChamberof
Commerceholdsits meetings.It wasStork’s lastmeetingaspresidentof the Chamberof Commerce,andthecaller
told therestaurantmanagerthatStork’s wifewasgoingto pickupthetabfor theentirelunch. In fact,Stork’swife
hadnot madethephonecall, andhadnot intendedto payfor lunchfor the entireChamberof Commerce.Tr. at79,
81. Onathird occasion,Stork’s office receivedaphonecallfrom alocal furniturestore,askingwhenStork’s wife
wouldpick upthetwochairsshehadallegedlyorderedfor Stork’s birthday. Shehadnot orderedanychairs. Tr. at
79-80.

Storkfirst testifiedthattheeventsdid notaffecthisdecision“In theend.” Tr. at 105-106. Stork also
testifiedin hisearlierdepositionthatthephonecalls,personalcontacts,threats,andprankscumulativelyhadan
effectonhisability to makeadecisiononthelandfill siting application. Tr. at 109. Storkindicatedthatpressureand
“extenuatingfactors”makesdecisionmakingmoredifficult, anddoesaffect one’sability to makeadecision. Tr. at
110. However,Storkalsostatedthathis decisionwasbasedsolelyon therecord. Tr. at 120-121. Storkstatedthat
“if all thecriteriahadbeenmet thatwould havebeenadifficult decisionto makebasedon theoverwhelming
oppositionto thelandfill.” Tr. at 128.

TerryMoore

Mooreestimatedthathereceivedonecall in favorofthelandfill, andaboutfour callsagainstthelandfill at
his home. Tr. at 134-136. Heallowedoneof thecallers,who wasopposedto thelandifil siting, to expressher
opinionat morelengththantheothercallers,sincethecallerwasafriend of Moore’swife. Tr. at 134-135. However,
he statedhercommentswereno differentthanthoseplacedon therecord. Tr. at 140-141.

Moorewasinvited to attendameetingof FORCE,asStorkhadbeen. Theinvitationwasextendedby mail
andhedid notattendthemeeting. Tr. at 138. Moorealsoreceivedthreeorfourlettersaboutthelandfill, whichhe
threwaway. Tr. at 136. AddItionally, Moore receivedsomecampaignliteratureIn themail opposingthelandfill
siting application. Tr. at 137, Mooretestifiedthathebasedhisdecisionsolelyontherecordandhedid not “pay
attention”to commentsoutsidethehearingprocess.Tr. at 142. MooreIndicatedthatwhenhe receivedphonecalls
hewould tell thecallersthat hewould notdiscussthelandfill sitingandwouldthenendtheconversation.Tr. at
135, 140.

ClemEsker

Eskerwasapproachedby onemanwho cameto seeEskerat his office regardingtheproposedlandifil. Tr.
at 150. Eskertestifiedthatheinformedtheindividualthathecouldnottalk aboutthelandifil siting. Tr. at 150.
Eskerstatedthathe did not haveasubstantivediscussionwith theindividual. Tr.at 150. AddItionally,Esker
receivedaphonecallat homeregardingthesiting application. Tr. at 150-151. Eskeralsotestifiedthathedid not
takethephonecall. Tr. at 151.

Marvin Campbell

Campbelltestifiedthathereceivedphonecallsregardingthesitingapplicationatbothhomeand-work. He
estimatedthathereceivedabout30messageson his homeansweringmachIne. Tr. at 190. Campbelldidnot recallIf
themessagesindicatedoppositionto thelandfill application. Tr. at 189-190. Campbellreceivedthreeto five callsat
work. Tr. at 189-190. He Indicatedto thecallersthathecouldnot discussthesitingandtheyshouldtestify atthe
hearing. Tr. at 190. Someof thecallerswereunhappywhenheIndicatedthathewould not discussthesiting
applicationbuthereceivedno threats.Tr. at 190-191.
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Campbellwasalsoapproachedapproximatelyeight to tentimesin personregardingthelandfill siting. On
oneoccasion,awomanactivein theoppositionapproachedCampbellat McDonald’srestaurant.Campbellfoundit
obviousthatthewomanopposedthelandfill. Tr. at 193. Onanotheroccasion,Campbellwasapproachedatthe
airport,whereCampbellworks. Thosepeoplewereagainstthesitingof thelandfill. Tr. at 193, Campbelltestified
thattheatmospherewasintimidatingto somepeople,butnotto him. Tr. at 195. Campbellalsotestifiedthatnoneof
thecallsorcontactsaffectedhis decisionIn anyway. Tr. at 194.

MichaelRiebeling

Riebelingalsoreceivedphonecallsregardingthelandfill athomeandatwork. Riebelingreceivedbetween
sixandeightphonecallsathome,andsixto eightphonecallsatwork. Tr. at 157. Of thosecallerswho expressed
anopinion,all opposedthelandfill siting. Tr. at 158. Rlebelingdid not discussthemeritsof theapplicationwith the
callers. Tr. at 167-168. In fact, Riebelingstatedthathewouldgetthecallersoff thephoneasquickly aspossibleand
hewouldindicatethat hecouldnot discusstheapplication. Tr. at 167.

Additionally,Riebelingreceivedoneitemin themail. Insidetheenvelope(whichdid not haveareturn
address)wasathree-inchpieceof paperwith whatappearedto beanofficial Stateof Illinois seal. Handwrittenon
thatpaperwerethewords“OpposeLandfill.” Therestof theitemsin theenvelopewerecopiesof lettersto the
editor,or newspaperarticles,all ofwhichopposedthesiting-oftheproposedlandfill. Tr. at 158-160;Pet,Ex. 4.
Riebelingtold theothermembersof thePlanningCommissionabouttheletter,andmayhaveshownthemtheletter,
Ti. at 162, 165. Rlebelingdid not givetheletterto theRandolphCountyClerkfor inclusionIn thepublic recordof
thesiting proceeding.Tr. at 162. Rlebelingtestifiedthatthenotedid not affecthis decision. Tr. at 167.

DorothyRhine

Rlnnereceivedcontactsoutsidetherecordofthesiting proceedingin thatshereceivedphonecallsathome.
Rinnewasunsureof thenumberofcallsshereceived,but IndicatedthatIt waslessthantencalls. Thecallers
opposedthelandfill. Tr. at 175. RlnneIndicatedthatshedeclinedto talk aboutthelandfill sitingprocesswith the
callers. Tr. at 175.

Rlnnealsoreceivedfewerthantenlettersin themail regardingthelandfifi sitingproceeding.Tr. at 175-
176. Sheskimmedtheletters,andafterdeterminingthatthelettersrelatedto thelandfill sitingproceeding,shedid
not readthelettersfurther. Tr. at 176-, 181. Rinnethrewthelettersaway,anddid notgivethelettersto thecounty
clerkto placein therecord. Tr. at 176. Rhinedidnot give anyweightto thephoneconversationsanddidnot
considerthecallsasevidence.Ti. at 177. In addition,Rinneindicatedthatthemailingsdid not influenceher
decisionon thelandfillsiting. Tr. at 179-180. -

ThomasSmith

Smithalsoreceivedphonecallsandaletterregardingthelandfffl siting proceeding.He receivedatleast
two phonecallsathomeandheinformedthecallersthatanyinformationthecallerswantedto presenthadto bein
writing andfiled with thecountyclerk. Ti. at 205, Smithspecificallyrememberstwo callerswho opposedthe
landfill. Tr. at 207. Additionally, Smithreceivedaletterathishome,opposingthelandfill siting. Tr. at 207-208. A
copyof theletterthat hereceivedwasalsofiled with thecountyclerk. Ti. at208. Smithdid not considerthetwo
calls to beevidencein thesitinghearing. Tr. at 222. Smithbasedhis decisionon theinformationprovidedat the
public hearingsandin thewritten comments.Ti. at 222.

- ExParte Contactsat County BoardMeethug

RepresentativesoftheoppositiongroupFORCEweregiventheopportunityto speakon thesubstanceof the
siting applicationataregularmeetingofthecountyboard. Mr. Alan Weber,thepresident-of FORCE,wasallowed
to addressthecountyboardatIts regularlyscheduledBoardmeetingon August24, 1998. Ti. at 85-91,229, 240.
Weberstatedthatthepublic,andFORCE,wereopposedto theproposedlandfill. Tr. at 88-89. Additionally,
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KennethMarkley, thevicepresidentof FORCE,wasalsoallowedto speakat thatAugust24, 1998countyboard
meeting. Tr. at 36,40, 89-91. KennethMarkley alsoopposedtheproposedlandfill, andspecificallydiscussedtraffic
androadissues.Ti. at90. Therewereno Land andLakesrepresentativespresentattheAugust24, 1998meeting.
Ti. at86.

Storktestifiedthat aschairmanof thecountyboard,It washis policy “to allow anyonethatwantedto show
upataCountyBoardmeetingto haveanopportunityto speakofanyissuethattheychooseto speakabout.” Tr. at
124. Moorealsotestifiedthatsincehebeganto serveonthecountyboardin 1988 (Tr. at 134) it hadbeenthe
“tradition” to let anyonespeakatacounty boardmeeting. Tr. at 144. CountyBoardmeetingsweresetona
quarterlybasis,publicizedby theCountyClerk, andpublicmeetingswereopento anyonewhowishedto attend.Ti.
at 124-125.

Section39.2(11) and(viii) oftheAct

OnOctober19, 1998,RandolphCountyBoarddeniedsiting for afacility to beownedandoperatedby
LandandLakes. TOC 4 at 1-4. TheRandolphCountyBoarddeniedtherequestfor sitingbecauseit foundLand
andLakesfailed to demonstratethatthefacility would meetSection39.2(11) (criterion11) and(vili) (criterionviii).
TOC 4at 2 and4. The RandolphCountyBoard’sreasonsfor denialrelateto theprovisionsoftheRandolphCounty
Solid WasteManagementPlan(RandolphCountyPlan). -

TheRandolphCountyplanprovides,in part:

Environmentalprotection,especiallyin thecontextofprotectingregionalgroundwaterresources,
is aprimaryconsiderationof localsiting criteria. Recommendedlocal criteriaweredevelopedto
clarify whatconstitutedacceptablepotentialsitesfor alandfill. Thecriteriaaregroupedinto
exclusionaryandinclusionarycriteria, Exclusionarycriteriaareusedto screenindividual parcels
orareas.Parcelsorareaswhich containedanyof theexclusionarycharacteristicswould not be
consideredIn thesiteIdentificationprocess.-Areasorparcelswhichremainaftertheexclusionary
criteria,would bescreenedagainsttheinclusionarycriteriato identifyparc-els-f~r-considerationfor
on-siteinvestigations.Table61 liststheexclusionaryandinclusionarylocalsiting criteria, Pet.
Exh. 2, at 205; Resp.Br. at 15.

Amongthe‘Exclusionarycriteria” listedin table61 is “excludeall areaswlth[in] 11/2 milesof municipalcorporate
limits.” Pet.Exh.2, at 207.

TheRandolphCountyPlanwasapprovedby theillinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency(Agency)as
beingconsistentwith theillinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct. TOC3, Vol 3, at 1. OnFebruary27. 1995,after
reviewingtheRandolphCountyPlan,thetranscriptof thetestimonygivendurIngthepublichearingon the
RandolphCountyPlan,andtheresponsesandsubstantivequestionsreceivedduringthepublic reviewperiodon the
RandolphCountyPlan,theRandolphCountyBoardadoptedtheRandolphCountyPlanasits own (seeResolution
attachedto RandolphCountyPlan, Pet.Exh. 2).

OnApril 28, 1998,LandandLakesified its applicationfor siting approvalfor anewdisposalandrecycling
facility, whichwasto belocatedlessthanamile from Sparta,illinois. Thehearingon theapplicationwasheldon
July 28 and29, 1998. TOC 2 at 1-352,

CriterionII

Land andLakespresentedevidenceandtestimonythattheproposedfacility Isso designed,located,and
proposedto beoperatedasto protecthealth,safety,andwelfare.TOC 3, Vols. 3-10. Dr. Neil Williams, anexpertin
landfill designandconstruction,testifiedextensivelyon behalfof LandandLakeson thedesignandoperationof the
proposedlandfill. TOC 2 at 97-136. Dr. Wiffiamsconcludedthattheproposedfacility satisfiescriterionit. TOC 2at
136. AddItionally, JamesCowheyJr.andEileenSheligatestifiedon theproposeddesignandoperationof thefacility.
TOC 2 at 40-51;311-350. -
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RandolphCountyretainedRhutaselandAssociates,consultingengineers,to reviewandevaluateLandand
Lake’sapplication. TOC 2 at 52. RhutaselandAssociatesissuedawritten reportof its findings(“the Rhutasel
Report”) (Pet.Ex. 1), andMr. LarryJ. Rhutaseltestifiedathearing. TOC 2 at 51-74. Rhutaseltestifiedthathisfirm
“point[ed} out,..aparticulartable— it wasTable61 ~-whichis alist of exclusionarylandfill siteidentification
criteria.” TOC2 at 61. Rhutaselfurthertestffied that includedin thosecriteriawastheoneandahalf-mile
exclusion.TOC2 at 61-62. Finally Rhutaseltestifiedto concernsabouttraffic. TOC 2 at60-61. Specifically,the
concernswerenot aboutpatterns,buttheweightloadsandwidth of roads. Id. TheRhutaselReportconcludedthat
LandandLakeshadadequatelyaddressedtheprotectionof’ health,safety,andwelfare. Pet.Ex. 1 at5-6. Rhutasel
testifiedthatissuesidentified in thereportwereminor,anddidnot riseto anyfinding thatcriterionII wasnotmet,
TOC 2 at63-65.

Extensivetestimonywasprovidedon this issueatthepublic hearingsbyconcernedcithens.Seee.g., TOC 2
at 91. Also numerouscommentswerefiled discussingtheissueof roadsafety.TOC 9.

ThePlanningCommissionmeton September21, 1998, to makeits recommendationsontheapplication.
ThePlanningCommissionvotedunanimouslythatLandandLakes’ applicationsatisfiescriterionII. TOC 2,
planningcommissionhearing,at 8-12.

Criterionviii

RandoiphCountyIs oneoffour countieswhichjointly adoptedasolidwastemanagementplanprepared
ontheir behalfby theSouthwesternillinois PlanningCommission(SIMAPC). (Pet.Ex. 2.) Aspart ofits application,
LandandLakessubmittedaletterfrom Darryl L. Thompson,Managerof GeneralPlanningfor SIMAPC. Thompson
statedthatSIMAPC hadreviewedLandandLake’sapplicationfor consistencywith thesolid wastemanagement
planfor RandolphCounty. Thompsonconcludedthat“the locationofanewlandfIll in RandolphCounty,thatis
acceptableto local governmentsis consistentwith theirSolid WasteManagementPlan. . ..“ TOC 3 atVol. 2, Crit. 8.
Land andLakes’ applicationalsoanalyzedthesolid wastemanagement-plan,andnotedthatthe-RandolphCounty
Planidentifiestheneedfor sourcereductionandfinal wastedisposalcapacity,with acorrespondingsupportof the
developmentof landfills to meetfinal disposalneeds.TOC 3 atVol. 2, Grit. 8 at 1.

ISSUES

Land andLakesraisedthreeissuesin its petitionfor review. Thefirst Issueis whetherthecombinationof cx
pai’te contactsandanatmosphereoffearandIntimidationresultedin afundamentallyunfairproceeding.The
secondandthird Issuesboth dealwith whetherRandolphCounty’sdecisionon thecriteria (ii andviii) is againstthe
manifestweightoftheevidence. TheBoardwill first addressthefundamentalfairnessoftheproceedingsandthen
dIscussthecriteria.

FUNDAMENTAL FAERNESS

In thissectiontheBoardwill addresstheissueof whethertheproceedingswerefundamentallyunfair. The
Boardwill beginby summarizingtheargumentsof LandandLakes,andfollow with adiscussionof Randolph
County’sarguments.Then,theBoardwill discussLandandLakes’ responseto RandolphCounty’sarguments.The
Boardwill thenaddressthepositionsofthe arnicuscuriae. Finally, in thissectiontheBoardwill analyzethe
argumentsandrenderIts decisiononthefundamentalfairnessof theproceeding.

LandandLakes’ Arguments

- Generally,LandandLakesmaintainsthatan “ cxpartecontact” Isonethattakesplacewithout noticeand
outsidetherecordbetweenapersonin adecisionmakingroleandpartiesbeforethatperson.Pet.Br. at 16. Land
andLakescitesto ResidentsAgainstaPollutedEnvironmentv. Countyof LaSalle (RAPEv~LaSaileCounty)
(September19, 1996),PCB 96-243to support its definition of expartecontact. LandandLakesalsomaintainsthat
contactbetweenalocal decisionmakerandconstituentsoutsidethepresenceof theapplicantIn whichapositionIn
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oppositionto thesiting is takenis animproperexpartecontact. Pet.Br. at 16. LandandLakesrelieson Waste
Managementofillinois, Inc. V. PollutionControlBoard, (WasteManagementv.PCB) 175 Ill. App. 3d 1023, 530
N.E.2d682,697 (2dDIst. 1988)to supportIts argumentthatsuchcontactsareimproper. Further,Land andLakes
arguesthattheremustbeashowingthatthecomplainingpartysufferedprejudice-fromThe-ex-partecontacts-before
thelocaldecisioncanbe reversed.Pet.Br. at 16,citing WasteManagementv. IPCB, 530 N,E,2dat 698andRAPEv.
LaSalleCounty. LandandLakespointsto thefive-partinquiry enunciatedin B & E Hauling,Inc. v. Pollution
ControlBoard, (E & E Haulingv. PCB) 116III. App. 3d 586,451N.E.2d555, 571 (Zd Dist. 1983) asthestandardfor
determiningfor whetheracountyboard’sdecisionIstainted.

E & E Haulingv. PCBquotesPATCOv. FederalLaborRelationsAuthority, 685 F.2d547 (D. C. CIr. 1982)
andstates,in partthatin decidingif aproceedingIstainted:

anumberof considerationsmayberelevant: thegravityof thecxpartecommunications;whether
thecontactsmayhaveinfluencedtheagency’sultimatedecision;whetherthepartymaldngthe
impropercontactsbenefitedfrom theagency’sultimatedecision;whetherthecontentsofthe
communicationwereunknownto opposingparties,who thereforehadno opportunityto respond;
andwhethervacationof theagency’sdecisionandremandfor newproceedingwouldservea
usefulpurpose.E & EHaulingv. PCB, 451 N.E.2d555, 571.

TheBoardwill addressthespecificsof this inquiry in moredetailbelow.

LandandLakesspecificallyargues:

1. TherepeatedcontactsbetweentheRandolphCounty BoardandPlanningCommissionmembers
andopponentsof thesiting wereimpropercxpartccontacts;

2. Thediscussionof thesubstanceof LandandLakes’ applicationby representativesof theobjectors
groupwasanimproperexpartecontact;

3. LandandLakeswasprejudicedby theextensivecxpartccontactsin this case;

4. Thecumulativeeffectof theexpartecontactandthethreatsandintimidation madeIt impossible
for LandandLakesto receiveafair hearing;and

5. TheRandolphCountyBoardshouldbereversednot remanded.

EachoftheseargumentsIs discussedin turn. -

LandandLakesassertsthattherepeatedcontactsbetweentheRandolphCountyBoardandPlanningCommission
membersandopponentsof thesitingwereimpropercxpartecontacts

LandandLakesnotesthatat depositionall threemembersoftheRandolphCountyBoardandall four
membersof thePlanningCommissiontestifiedthattheyreceivedcxpal-tecontacts.Pet.Br. at 19-20. Landand
Lakespoints to thefact thatthecontactsincludedphonecalls,asfew asonereceivedby Eskerandasmanyasthree
dozenreceivedby Stork. Pet.Br. at 20. Also, severalofthelocal officialswerecontactedin personandsome
receIved itemsin themail. Id The “vastmajority” ofthecommentswerein opposition,arguesLandandLakes. Id
LandandLakesassertsthat this “patternof contacts”betweenopponentsto sitingandtheRandolphCountyBoard
andPlanningCommissionmemberstook placeoutsidethepresenceof Land andLakes. Pet.Br. at20. Landand
LakesarguesthatapplyingthedefinitionsarticulatedIn WasteManagementInc. v. PCBandRAPEv. LaSalle
County,thecontactswereimpropercxpartecontacts.Id.

LandandLakesassertsthatthediscussionof thesubstanceof LandandLakes’applicationby representativesof the
objectors’groupwasanimpropercxpartecontact -
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LandandLakesarguesthatthecourtsandtheBoardhavepreviously-heldthat-allowingsubstantive

presentationsregardingalandfill sitingatacountyboardmeeting,withoutprior noticeto LandandLakes,is an
impropercxpartecontact. Pet.Br. at 21. In supportof its positionLandandLakescitesto E & E Haulingv.PCB
andCity of Rockfordv.WinnebagoCountyBoard(November19, 1987),(Rockfordv. Winnebago)PCB 87-92,affd
186Ill. App. 3d 303, 542N.E.2d423 (2d Dist. 1989). In E& EHaulingv. PCB,theapplicanthadseveralcontacts
with thecountyboardatfinancecommitteemeetingsheldafterthecloseofthe public hearings.Pet.Br. at 21. The
courtstatedthatthelackofnoticeto thepublicthatthelandfill would bediscussedsufficedto characterizethose
meetingsas cxparte. E & EHaulingv. PCB, 451N.E.2dat671. In Rockfordv. WinnebagoCounty,theBoardfound
that impropercxpartecontactsoccurredwhenmembersof thepublic wereallowedto addressthecounty boardjust
prior to thecountyboard’svoteon asiting application. Pet.Br. at 21-22.

LandandLakesassertsthatthefactsin thiscaseregardingFORCE’spresentationto theCountyBoardon
August24, 1998,arealmostidenticalto thosein theabovetwocases. Pet,Br. at22. Land andLakesmaintainsthat
FORCEwasgivenanopportunityto substantivelyaddresstheRandolphCountyBoardin oppositionto thesiting,
withoutnoticeto thepublic or LandandLakes. Id.

LandandLakesarguesit wasprejudicedby theextensivecxpartc contactsin this case

LandandLakesarguesthatIt wasprejudicedby theextensivecxpartecontactsbetweenopponentsof the
landfill sitingandtheRandolphCountyBoardandthePlanningCommission.Pet.Br. at 23. LandandLakes
furtherarguesthattheprejudicewasexacerbatedbecauseofthethreatsandintimidation directedatStork. Id. To
supportits assertion,LandandLakespoints to Stork’s testimonythatthepressureand“extenuatingfactors”made
decisionmaldngmoredifficult, andStork’s admissionthat“If all thecriteriahadbeenmetthatwould havebeena
difficult decision....” çrr. at 110,128. Pet.Br. at 25. Land andLakesalso pointsto Stork’s depositiontestimony
whereinhestatedthat“all oftheeventscumulativelydidhaveanaffect” on his ability to makeadecision. Pet.Br. -

at25, citing Tr. at 109. -

LandandLakesassertsthat,applyingthefactorsenunciatedin E & B Haulingv. PCB, theaxpartecontacts
IrrevocablytaintedRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisiondenyingsiting approval. Pet.Br. at24. Thefirst Inquiry is the
gravity of theexpartccontacts.B & B Haulingv. PCB, 451 N.E.2d555,571. LandandLakesarguesthattherewasa
patternof cxpartecontacts,from phonecalls to personalapproachesandmailings. Further,FORCEandtwo
individualsweregivenanopportunityto addresstheRandolphCountyBoardonthesubstanceof theapplicationat
theAugust24, 1998RandolphCountyBoardmeetingafterthecloseof thehearingswithoutnoticeto eitherthe
public orLandandLakes. Pet.Br. at 24. Finally, LandandLakescontendsthatStork,thechairmanofthe
RandolphCountyBoard,wassubjectedto threatsandIntimidation. Id. Thus,LandandLakesarguestherewasa
patternof expartecontacts,whichtaintedtheproceeding.Id.

Thesecondinquiry is whethertheexpartecontactsInfluencedormayhaveinfluencedtheultimatedecision.
E & EHaulingv. PCB, 451N.E.2d555,571. LandandLakesarguesthatStorkadmitted,in his depositiontestimony,
that thecumulativeeffectofthecxpartecontactshadan Impacton--his~deeision;Pet.Br. at 25, citingTr. at 109.

Thethird inquiry is whetherthepartymakingthe contactsbenefitedfromtheultimatedecision. E&E
Haulingv. PCB, 451N.E.2d 555,571, LandandLakesarguesthatIt is undisputedthatavastmajorityof the
contactscamefromopponentsto thesiting,andtheultimatedecisionwasto denysiting. Clearly,thepersons
makingthecontactsbenefitedfrom theRandolphCountyBoard’sdecision. Pet.Br. at 25.

Thefourthinquiry Iswhetherthecontentof theimpropercommunications-wasunknown-to-opposing
parties,who thereforehadno opportunityto respond.B & B Haulingv. PCB, 451 N.E.2d555,571. LandandLakes
arguesthat it did notknowofthecontactsuntil afterthedecisionandthereforecouldnot respondto thecontentof
thecontacts.Pet.Br. at 26. LandandLakes’ inability to respondwasexacerbatedby the“undefinednatureof
FORCE,anoppositiongroup.” Pet.Br. at 26. FORCEneverformally appearedasagroupin thehearingson the
siting. Pet.Br. at26. Therefore,LandandLakesarguesit is difficult to respondto Impropercontactsby an
“undefinedandshadowyoppositiongroup.” Id.
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Thefifth inquiry is whethervacatingthedecisionandremandingfor anewproceedingwouldservea
usefulpurpose.E & B Haulingv. PCB, 451N.E.2d555, 571. LandandLakesarguesthat it wasclearlyprejudiced
by theextensiveandthreateningexpartccontactsin this case.Pet.Br. at26. Land andLakesassertsthatthe
RandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionwasirrevocablytaintedby “theseillegal andprohibitedcontacts.” Id. However,
LandandLakesarguesthat thiscaseshouldnot beremandedbut reversedbecauseno fair decisioncouldbemade
on remand.Pet.Br. at 26-27.

LandandLakesassertsthatthecumulativeeffectofthecxpartecontactandthethreatsandintimidationmadeit

impossiblefor LandandLakesto receiveafair hearing

LandandLakesarguesthatwhilethecxpartecontactsalonearesufficientto find theproceeding
fundamentallyunfair, thecumulativeeffectof thecontactsalongwith thethreatsandIntimidatingtacticsdirectedat
Stork,madeit impossiblefor LandandLakesto receiveafair hearingon-theapplication. Pet.Br. at 27. Landand
Lakesmaintainsthattheopponentsofthesiting “engagedin apervasivepatternof impropercontacts”andthreats
againstStork. Id.

LandandLakesassertsthattheRandolphCountyBoarddecisionshouldbe reversednot remanded

LandandLakesconcedesthattheusualremedyfor afundamentallyunfairproceedingis to remandthe
proceedingto thelocal decisionmaker. PetBr. at 28. However,LandandLakesarguesthat in this casesucha
remedywould notcuretheprejudicesufferedby theapplicant. Id. LandandLakesopinesthatremandwould
punishtheapplicantwhileproducingthesameresultof cxpartecontactsandattemptsat intimidationandfear. Id.
Therefore,LandandLakesassertsthattheBoardshouldreversetheRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionandgrant
siting approvalby operationof law. Pet.Br. at 28-29. -

- RandolphCounty’sArguments

RandolphCountysetsforthnumerousargumentsin supportof Its contentionthattheRandolphCounty
Board’sdecisionshouldbe affirmed. First,RandolphCountymaintainsthatLandandLakeswasgivenample
opportunityto presentitscaseandthedecisionby theRandolphCountyBoardwasbasedontherecord. Second,
RandolphCounty assertsthatLand andLakeshasnot shownthattheprocesswasirrevocablytaintedusingthe~
E Haulingv. PCBtest. Third, RandolphCountyassertsthatthecommunicationswerenot expartecommunications.
Fourth,RandolphCountyarguesthatamajorityof thecountyboardhad fewto no contactsso theprocesswasnot
tainted. Fifth, RandolphCountyarguesthatanycommunicationswith thePlanningCommissionareirrelevantas
thePlanningCommissionwasnot thedecisionmaker.SIxth,RandolphCountymaintainsthattheappropriate
redresshasbeenhadandneitherreversalnorremandareappropriate.

RandolphCountymaintainsthatLandandLakeswasgivenampleopportunityto presentsits caseandthedecision
of theRandolphCountyBoardwasbasedon therecordof thepreceding

RandolphCountypointsoutthat theapplicationfiled by LandandLakeswas10 to 12 volumesof material
andthehearingsheldon thatapplicationincluded670pagesof testimony.Resp.Br. at21. After thehearingswere
held,thePlanningCommissionmadeitsrecommendationto thecountyboard. Id. Land andLakeswasallowedto
presenttestimonyatthehearing. Resp.Br. at22. RandolphCountyassertsthatthetestimonyof thecountyboard
memberswasthattheirdecisionwas“not influencedoraffectedby anyunsolicitedcommunications.”Resp.Br. at
24. Therefore,RandolphCountyassertsthatthePlanningCommissionmembersandtheRandolphCountyBoard
madetheirdecisionssolelyon therecordandnoton thepublic opposition. Id

RandolphCountyarguesthat in Rockfordv. Winnebagothecourtenunciatedatestto beusedto determine
if prejudiceoccurredto theapplicant. Resp.Br. at20-21. RandolphCountypoints to thefollowing quotefromthat
case:

However, theexistenceof strongpublicoppositiondoesnot invalidatethe[county] board’s
decisionwheretheapplicantwasgivenanampleopportunityto presentitscaseandwherethe
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applicanthasnot demonstratedthatthe [countyll board’sdenialwasbaseduponthepublic
oppositionratherthantherecord.Rockfordv. Winnebago,186Ill. App. 3d, 542N. B. 2d 423, 431.

RandolphCountymaintainsthat It is clearthatLandandLakeswasgivenampleopportunityto presentitscaseand
thedecisionby theRandolphCountyBoardwasbasedon therecordnot public opposition. Resp.Br. at 24.
Therefore,basedontheRockfordv. Winnebagocase,RandolphCountyassertsthat theRandolphCountyBoard’s
decisionshouldbeaffirmed. Resp.Br. at 24.

RandolphCountymaintainsthattheproceedingsbeforetheRandolphCountyBoardwerenot Irrevocablytainted
andLand andLakeswasnotprejudiced -

RandolphCountyarguesthatusingthefactorsenunciatedIn E & E Haulingv. PCB,therecordIndicates
thatLand andLakeshasfailed to provethattheproceedingsbeforethe-RandolphCountyBoardwereirrevocably
tainted. Resp.Br. at24. Asindicatedabove,thefirst inquiry fromE & B Haulingv. PCBis gravityof the
communications.RandolphCountyrelieson GallatinNationalCompanyv.FultonCounty(Gallatinv. Fulton) (June
15, 1992),PCB 9 1-256 to supportitsposition. In thatcasetheBoardheldthatthecontactswereaboutnon-
substantivematters,therewasno discussionofthe meritsofthe case,andtheparticipantswerenot influencedin
anywayin makingtheirrecommendation.GallatinNationalCompanyv. FultonCounty (JuneiS, 1992),PCB 91-
256. RandolphCountyassertsthatbecausethetestimonyindicatesthatthecontactsin thiscasewerealso non-
substantive,thecontactswerenot “grave” underE&E Haulingv. PCB. Rasp.Br. at26-27.

RandolphCountyarguesthatthesecondinquiry fromE&E Haulingv. PCB, whetherthecommunications
influencedtheultimatedecision,hasalsonot beensubstantiatedby LandandLakes. Resp.Br. at27. Randolph
Countycontendsthat thetestimonyofthecountyboardmembersndIcatesthat~aThthree~niibersmadeTheir
decisionbasedon therecordandthatthecontactsdidnotinfluence:theirdecision. Id Specifically, Randolph
Countycitesto Moore’stestimonythatno call, mailing,orcontacthereceivedimpactedhisdecision. Rasp.Br. at. 27.
citingTr. at 141-142. RandolphCountyalsocitesEsker’stestimonythathis decisionwasbasedsolelyuponthe
record. Resp.Br. at27, citingTr. at 152. Finally, RandolphCountypointsto Stork’stestimonythatthe phonecalls,
mailings,packageandpranksdid not impacthis ability to makeand~ective-decisionin theend. Resp.Br. at28,
citingTr. at 105-106.

RandolphCountyarguesthatbecausethecontactswerenotby a “party” to theproceeding,thethird -

inquiry of E&E Haulingv. PCB(whetherthepartymakingthe contactsbenefitedfromtheultimatedecision)is not
met Resp.Br. at29. RandolphCountyreasonsthatbecausethegeneralpublic madethecontacts,no partyto the
hearingbenefitedby thecontacts. -

ThefourthInquiry, whetherthecontentofthecommunicationwasunknownandthustherewasno
opportunityfor response,alsomustfail accordingto RandolphCounty. Resp.Br. at 30. RandolphCountystates
thatLandandLakeswasgivenanopportunityto addresscxpal-tccommunicationsatacountyboardmeetingon
October19, 1998. Id. Further,LandandLakeswasgiventheopportunityto speakbecause-Landand-Lakes-filedan
objectionto statementsmadeat countyboardmeetingsaboutthe-landflll-wherrLandandLakeswasnot present. Id
Therefore,RandolphCountymaintainsLandandLakeswasgivenanopportunityto respond.Resp.Br. at 31.

Thelast inquiry enunciatedin E&E Haulingv. PCBis whetherremandwill serveausefulpurpose.
RandolphCountypointsoutthatLandandLakesis notseekingaremand,but ratheradeclarationthatsitingis
grantedandvacatingtheRandolphCountyBoarddecision. RandolphCountymaintainsthatfirst, LandandLakes
hasnot demonstrated,basedon thefactorsof E&E Haulingv. PCB, thattheRandolphCountyBoarddecisionshould
bevacated.Second,RandolphCountyassertsthatLandandLakesfailed to identify “the heretoforeunknownbody
of law, which. . , would operateto totally avoidthe requirementsof Section39.2 [of theAct] merelyon thebasisof
public oppositionto alandfill.” Resp.Br. at 3 1-32.

RandolphCountyarguesthatthecasescitedby LandandLakesto supportLandandLakes’ requestthat
theBoardoverturnthe RandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionarenotapplicableto thiscase. Resp.Br. at 32-33.
RandolphCountyassertsthat In this casethedecisionmakersdid not act in anaffirmativemanner,but rathermerely
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answeredtheirphones.Resp.Br. at33. Also In thecasescited by LandandLakes,theBoardoverturnedsiting
approvals,notsitingdenials. Thus,theBoardmaintainedthestatusquo,whereasin thiscasetheBoardwould be
allowing theconstructionof alandfill site,whicharguablyviolatesSection39,2of theAct. Id.

RandolphCountymaintainsthatthecommunicationswith thepublicwerenotcxpartecommunications

RandolphCountyassertsthatthecommunicationswhichtook placebetweenthepublicandtheRandolph
CountyBoardwerenot cxpartecontactsbecauseancxpartccontact“is onewhichtakeplacewithoutnoticeand
outsidetherecordbetweenonein thedecisIon-makingroleand‘apartybeforeIt’.” Rasp.Br. at 37, citing Townof
Ottawav.Pollution ControlBoard, 129 Ill. App. 3d 121, 126, 472N.E.2d 150, 154 (3dDIst. 1984) COttawav. PCB).
RandolphCountyarguesthatbecausethecommunicationswerenot fromapartyto thedecisionmaker,the
commentswerenotexpal-te.

RandolphCountyconcedesthatWasteManagementv. PCB doesnot completelyagreewith Ottawav.
~ Rasp.Br. at38. RandolphCountydoes,however,maintainthat theWasteManagementv.PCB court’s
rationalethatcommunicationsfrom thepublic maybecxpartecontactis not-awell-reasonedanalysis.Rasp.Br. at
38. RandolphCountyassertsthatif theWasteManagementv.PCBcourt’srationalewerecorrect,anytimeajudge
receivedacommentfromthepublicon apendingcasetheproceedingwould be-tainted. Id. In fact,Randolph
Countypointsout,theSupremeCourtRulesdistinguishbetweencxpai-tccommunications(acommunicationof the
judgewith oneparty)asopposedto “othercommunicationsmadeto thejudgeoutsidethepresenceof theparties
concerningapendingmatter.” Resp.Br. at38, citing illinois SupremeCourtRule 63A(4)(1999).

RandolphCountyarguesthatit wouldbea“ridiculousburden”uponsiting proceedingsif acountyboard
memberwererequiredto bedisqualifiedbecauseof “unsolicitedcontacts”frommembersof thepublic. Rasp.Br. at
38. RandolphCountymaintainsthatsucharulingwould provokemembersofthepublic to makecontactsto tainta
process,so thatto protectagainstthis, governingauthoritieswould needto bemadeup of anonymousmembers.
Rasp.Br. at 38-39. Therefore,RandolphCountyassertstheonly contactswhichshouldbeheldto affect the
fundamentalfairnessin asitinghearingaresubstantivecontactsof thedecisionmakerwithapartyoutsidethe
presenceof anotherpartywhichresultin actualprejudice.Resp.Br. at 39.

RandolphCountymaintainsthatamajorityof the RandolphCountyBoardhadfew to no contactsoutsidethe
hearing

RandolphCountyarguesthatthetestimonyof EskerandMooreindicatesthat theseIndividualshad“next
to no contact”with anyoneregardingsitingoutsidethehearingprocess.Resp.Br. at 36. RandolphCountyalso
assertsthatStorktestifiedthatthecallsdid notinfluencehis decision. Id However,evenIfStork’s votehadbeen
tainted,thevoteagainstthelandfill wasunanimous.Id. Thus,RandolphCountyobserves,LandandLakeswould
not havebeengrantedsiting approval. Rasp.Br. at37. RandolphCountycitesto threeBoardcasesto supportthis
argument.ThosecasesareWasteManagementofIllinois v.LakeCountyBoard(April 6, 1989),PCB 88-190,
NationalCompanyv. FultonCountyBoard(June15, 1992),PCB 91-256,andSt.Charlesv. KaneCountyBoard
(March21, 1084),PCB 83-228,83-229,and83-230(consl). In thosecasestheBoardfoundthatevenif acounty
boardmemberweretaintedthatdid notmeantheentiredecisionmakingprocesswastainted. Resp.Br. at 36-37.

RandolphCountymaintainsthatthecontactswith membersofthePlanningCommissionby thepublicwere
irrelevant

RandolphCountyarguesthattherewerefew contactsby thepublic with thePlanningCommissionand
that thesecontactswere irrelevant. Rasp.Br. at39. WhilethePlanningCommissiondraftedareportwith
recommendationsto theRandolphCountyBoard,thePlanningCommissiondid nothavethedecisionmaking
authority. Rasp.Br. at 39. RandolphCountycitesGallatinNationalCompanyv. FultonCounty(June15, 1992),
PCB 91-256in whichtheBoardaffirmedthecountyboarddecisionin partbecausetheallegedimproper
communicationsinvolvedacommitteewhichmerelyadvisedthecountyboard.
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Further,RandolphCountyassertsthat thereis no evidencethatthePlanningCommissionmembers

discussedany“nonparty” communicationtheyreceivedoutsidethehearingprocesswith theRandolphCounty
Board. Rasp.Br. at40. Also, RandolphCountymaintainsthereis no evidencethatanysuchcommunication-was
usedby thePlanningCommissionin its deliberationsonits recommendationto the RandolphCountyBoarcL Id.
Also,RandolphCountymaintainsthatunliketheRAPE v. LaSalleCountycasetheevidencein this caseis clearthat
anycommunicationwith thePlanningCommissiondid not affecttherecommendationto theRandolphCounty
Board. Reap.Br. at 40. Therefore,thecontactswereirrelevant, Id.

RandolphCountymaintainsthattheappropriateredresshasalreadyoccurred

RandolphCountyarguesthat thereis no reasonto remandthis matterto the~Rando1ph:CountyBoardas
thecommunicationshavebeenplacedontherecordthroughthediscoveryprocessbeforethe-Board.Resp.Br. at40.
RandolphCountyassertsthattheapplicant“doesnot havearightto removethedecisionmakingauthority” from
theRandolphCountyBoard;rathertheapplicantonly hasthe“right to havethosecontactsdisclosed”in orderto
determineIf therewasprejudiceto thedecision. Rasp.Br. at 40. RandolphCountymaintainsthatthereis no
evidenceof prejudiceandtheRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionshouldbeaffirmed. Id.

LandandLakes’ Reply

In its reply.LandandLakesrespondedto severalofthepointsmadein theRandolphCountyinief.
However,theBoardwill only discusstwo ofthoseresponsesasonly thosetwo responsespresentargumentsnot
alreadydiscussed,First, LandandLakesmaintainsthatRandolphCounty’srelianceon Gallatinv. Fultonis
misplaced.Replyat8. LandandLakesassertsthatIn Gallatinv. FultontheBoardfoundnofundamentalunfairness
whentheapplicant’sattorneydiscussednon-substantivematterswith thehearingofficerandmembersof the
hearingcommittee. Id LandandLakesassertsthatthecommitteemembersIn Gallatinv. Fultoncouldnot
rememberif orwhentheexpartecontactsoccurred. Id. It wasunderthesecircumstancesthattheBoardfoundno
prejudiceresulted.Id.

LandandLakesarguesthatthefactsin this proceedingaremoreanalogousto thoseIn ConcernedCitizens
of Williamson Countyv.Bill Kibler Development(~~WCv.Kibler) (January19, 1995),PCB 94-262. Replyat 9. Tn
CCWCv. Kibler, theapplicantattendedameetingofthecountyboardanddiscussedtechnicalmatters.Replyat 9.
Althoughmembersof thepublic werepresent,theywereunableto participatein themeeting. Id. LandandLakes
arguesthattheprejudiceto LandandLakesis evenmoreseverethantotheobjectorsin CCWCv. Kibler becauseall
thecontactstook placeoutsidethepresenceof LandandLakes. Id.

Secondly,LandandLakesalsodisputestheargumentmadeby RandolphCountythatamajorityof the
RandolphCountyBoardhadlittle to nocontactsoutsidethehearing. LandandLakesarguesthatthecasescitedby
RandolphCountyto supportIts positionarecaseswhichinvolve manymorecountyboardmembersthanRandolph
County. LandandLakesstatesthatRandolphCounty“cites no authorityfor its propositionthatdisqualifyingone-
third of thedecislonmakers(oneofjust threemembers)onthegroundsof expartccontactsis allowable.” Replyat
13. LandandLakesmaintainsthattheBoardhaspreviouslydecidednot to applysuchasimplisticmathematical
formulaandin supportof its positioncitasto Rockfordv. WinnebagowheretheBoardremandedacaseto the
countyboardafterdisqualifyingfour of the26 members.Replyat 14.

AinicusCuriae

Theamicusbrieffiled in thiscaseurgestheBoardnot to “adoptthedecision” in WasteManagementv. PCB.
Amicusat 5. ThebriefasksthattheBoardnot find contactsby thenon-partiesin this caseto be expartecontacts
with theRandolphCountyBoard. If theBoarddoesfind thatthecontactsarecxparte, thenthebriefarguesthatthe
contactsdo not meetthetestin B & E Haulingv. PCB. Amicus9-14.

Discussion
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Thefirst stepin ourdiscussionis to determinewhetherthecontactsthatoccurredIn this proceedingwerecx

paitccontacts.If theansweris yes,thentheBoardmustdecideif LandandLakeswasprejudicedby thosecontacts.
If thecontactsarenot cxpartethentheBoardneednot examinetheissueofprejudice. Aftercarefulconsiderationof
thefactsin thiscase,theBoardfindsthatthecontactswerecxpartecontactsfor thefollowing reasons.

Bothpartiesrely onWasteManagementv. PCBto arguetheirpositions. TheBoardis convincedthatWaste
Managementv. PCBsupportsafinding thatthecontactswerecxpartccontacts.ThecourtaffirmedtheBoard’s
decisionin thatcasewheretheBoardreferredto telephonecallsto theboardmembersasexpartecontacts.See
WasteManagementof Illinois v.LakeCountyBoard(December17, 1987),PCB 87-75,slIp op at 22-23. Thus,the
Board’sdecisionwasconsistentwith theholdingof thecourt.

Further,in WasteManagementv. PCB thecourtstated:

A courtwill not reverseanagency’sdecisionbecauseof expal-tccontactswith membersof that
agencyabsentashowingthatprejudiceto thecomplainingpartyresultedfromthesecontacts.~
E Haulingv.PCB451 N.E.3d555, 571. Heretherecorddoesnot IndicatethatWasteManagement
sufferedanyprejudiceasaresultof contactsbetweencitizensof Lake CountyandLCB [Lake
CountyBoardi members.Thevarioustelephonecalls,letters,andpersonalcontactsweremerely
expressionsof publicsentimentto countyboardmembersontheIssueof WasteManagement’s
landfill application.Moreover,existenceof strongpublicoppositiondoesnot renderahearing
fundamentallyunfairwhere,ashere,thehearingcommitteeprovidesafull andcomplete
opportunityfor theapplicantto offer evidenceandsupportsits application.WasteManagement
ofIllinois v,PollutionControlBoard160 Ill. App. 3d 434, 513N.E,2d592, 112 Ill. Dec. 178 (1987).
Further,cxpastecommunIcationsfrom thepublic to their electedrepresentativesareperhaps
inevitablegivenacountyboardmember’sperceivedlegislativeposition,albeitlnthese
circumstances,theyactin anadjudicativeroleaswell. Thus,althoughpersonalexpai-te
communicationsto countyboardmembersin theiradjudicativeroleareImproper,theremustbea
showingthatthecomplainingpartysufferedprejudicefrom thesecontacts,WasteManagementv.
PCB 530 N,E.2d682,697-698,citIng E & EHaulingv.PCB451 N.E.3d555,571.

Thecourt in WasteManagementv. PCB (citing E & E Haulingv. PCB) clearlyfound contactsbetween
nonpartlaswith boardmemberscouldbecxpartecommunications.Thispositionwasreiteratedby thecourtin
FairviewAreaCitizensTaskforcev. Illinois Pollution ControlBoard(FACT v. PCB), 198Ill. App. 3d 541,555N.E.2d
1178 (3rdDist. 1990)andby theBoardin at leasttwo cases,CitizensOpposedto Additional Landfills andHarvey
Pittv. GreaterEgyptRegionalEnvIronmentalComplex(COAL v. GERB) (December5, 1996),PCB 97-29and
ResidentsAgainstaPollutedEnvironmentV. Countyof LaSalleandLandcompCorporation(September19, 1996),
PCB 96-243. Thus,it is well establishedthatcontactby nonparties,outsidethepublic hea’ing,with aboardmember
concerningapollution control facility sitingproceedingis anexpartecontact.

Havingdeterminedthatthecontactswerecxpartecontacts,theBoardmustnowdecideIf the contacts
prejudicedLandandLakes. First,theBoardagreeswith RandolphCountythatthecontactswith membersof the
PlanningCommissionwereirrelevant. All fourmembersof thePlanningCommissiontestifiedthat thelimited
contactsdid not affect theirdecisionandtherecommendationtheymadeto theRandolphCountyBoard. The
PlanningCommissionmemberstestifiedthattheir recommendationswerebasedsolelyon therecordbeforethem.
ThePlanningCommissionwasonly in thepositionof makingrecommendationsto-thaRandolphCountyBoard: It

wasnotin apositionto maketheultimatedecision. And althoughtheBoardhasfoundIn someprior casesthat
contactswith an individualorgroupmaking recommendationsto thedecisionmakingbodycanbeimproper
contactswhichprejudicetheproceeding(seeRAPE v. LaSalle),theBoardfinds thatthecontactsin theinstantcase
do not riseto thatlevel andaremoreanalogousto thosein Gallatinv. Fulton.

Next, theBoardwill examinethefactorsfrom E& B Haulingv. PCBto determineif thecxpartecontacts
taintedtheRandolphCountydecisionmakers’processso thattheproceedingwasfundamentallyunfair. TheBoard
wifi first look to thecontactswith RandolphCountyBoardmembersEskerandMoore. Again, thetestimony
indicatesthattherewereveryfewcontactsandthatthecontactsdid notaffecttheir decision. Also, theRandolph
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CountyBoardmembersdidnot discussthecxpartecontactstheyreceivedwith theotherboardmembers.Thus,the
contactswereminorand“areperhapsinevitablegivenacountyboardmember’sperceivedIegislattvaposuflon.’
WasteManagementv.PCB 530N.E.2d682, 697-698,citing B & EHaulingv. PCB451 N.E.3d555, 571. Thecontacts
did not affecttheagency’sultimatedecisionandastheIdentityof-the-contactsis not clearandsomeof thecontacts
supported thelandfill, theBoardcannotfind thattherewasabenefitin theultimate decision. SeeE & E Haulingv.
PCB. Therefore,becauseBakerandMoorebasedtheir decisionsonthehearingrecord,thecontactswith Eskerand
Mooredid not prejudiceLandandLakes. SeeWasteManagementv.PCB.

TheBoardnowlooksto thetestimonyof RandolphCountyBoardChairmanStork. While theBoardis
initially dismayedatthenumberandtypeof cxpartccontactsdirected-atStork,theBoardmustalsotakeinto
accountthecontextthataschairmanof theBoard,citizenswould inevitablydirectmorecommentsto Storkasthe
perceivedleaderof anelectedbody of representation.Stork’stestimonyis ambiguousasto theeffectthecontacts
hadonhisability to makeadecision. HoweverStorkstatesthathisvoteto denysiting wasbasedonthe-evidence
beforetheRandolphCountyBoard. Therefore,theBoardfindsthatalthoughthecontactswith Storkwereimproper
cxpartecontacts,theexistenceofthecontactsdid notprejudiceLandandLakes.SeeWasteManagementv. PCB.

Finally with regardto cxpartecontacts,theBoardexaminesthecontactsatthecountyboardmeeting.
AgaintheBoardfinds thatthecontactdid notprejudiceLand andLakes. TheBoardnotes thatthis circumstanceis
unlikeCCWC v. Kibler. In CCWCv. Kibler, thecountyboardaskedspecificsubstantivequestionsof theapplicant
while refusingto allowopponentsto speakandreliedon thoseanswersto-makethedecision. In thiscase,the
countyboardhadalongtraditionofallowing anyoneto speakatcountyboardmeetings.Thecountyboard
membersall indicatethattheygavenoweightto thestatementsmade.Thus,the RandolphCountyBoardmembers
did not rely ontheInformationpresentedatthecountyboardmeetingto-makeadecision andLandandLakeswas
not prejudiced.Citizen statementsattheregularlyscheduledcountyboardmeetings“weremerelyexpressionsof
publicsentimentto county boardmembers”anddid not “renderhearingfundamentallyunfair.”
Managementv. PCB 530N.E.2d682. 697-698,citing E & B Haulingv.PCB451 N.E.3d555,571.

TheBoardalsonotesthatthe‘~existenceofstrongpublic oppositiondoesnot renderahearing
fundamentallyunfairwhere,ashere,thehearingcommitteeprovidesafull andcompleteopportunityfor the-
applicantto offerevidenceandsupportsitsapplication.” WasteManagementofIllinois v. PollutionControlBoard
160Ill. App. 3d 434, 513N.E.2d 592, 112111. Dec.178 (1987), LandandLakeswasgivenafull andcomplete
opportunityto offer andsupportits application.PublichearingswereheldbeforethePlanningCommissionwhere
witnessesfor LandandLakestestifiedin supportof themulti-volumeapplication. Oppositionto theapplicationwas
alsoheardatthathearing. After thecloseof thepublic hearing,athirty-daycommentperiodwasheld. Thus,Land
andLakeswasawareoftheoppositionandhadtheopportunityto respond.

In summary,theBoardfindsthattheproceedingsbeforetheRandolphCountyBoardwerenot
fundamentallyunfair. TheBoarddoesfind thatthecontactswereexpartccontacts;howeverundertheInquiry
enunciatedIn E & EHaulingv.PCB andreiteratedin WasteManagementv. PCB, theapplicantwasnot prejudiced.

CRITERIA ll andviii

Havingdeterminedthattheproceedingswerenot fundamentallyunfair, theBoardnextmust
examineif theRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionto denysitingbasedonSection39.2(11)and(viii) of the
Act wasagainstthemanifestweightof theevidence. AsIndicatedabove,criterion ii is thatthefacility is so
designed,locatedandproposedto beoperatedthatthepublic health,safetyandwelfarewill beprotected.
CriterionyIn is thatthefacility is to belocatedconsistentwith theplanning-requirements-ofthesolid waste
managementplan.

TheBoard’sstandardfor reviewingalocal decisionhaslong beenestablished.Thecourtshavestatedthat
theBoardmustdetermineIf thelocal decisionwasagainstthemanifestweightoftheevidence. McLeanCounty
Disposal,Inc.v. Countyof McLean,207 Ill. App. 3d 352, 566N.E.2d 26, 29 (4th Dist. (1991):E & B Haulingv. PCB
452N.E.2dat572. A decisionIsagainstthemanifestweightof theevidenceif theoppositeresultis clearlyevident,
plain, or indisputableform areviewof theevidence.File v. D &L Landfill, Inc. 219 Ill. App. 3d 897, 579N.E.2d
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1228, 1231 (5th DIst. 1991): Turlekv. PollutionControlBoard,274 Ill. App. 3d 244,653N.E.2d 1288, 1292 (1stDist.
(1995)). SimplybecausetheBoardcouldreachadifferentconclusionis notsufficientto warrant reversal of a local
decision. City of Genevav. WasteManagement(July 21, 1994), PCB 94-58.

In this sectiontheBoardwill beginby summarizingtheargumentsof LandandLakes. Thenadiscussionof
RandolphCounty’sargumentsfollows. TheBoardwill then discussLandandLakes’ responseto RandolphCounty’s
arguments.Finally, in thissectiontheBoardwill analyzetheargumentsandrenderits decisiononwhetherthe
RandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionwasagainstthemanifestweightof theevidence.

LandandLakes’Arguments

LandandLakesarguesthatthefindingsby theRandolphCountyBoardthattheapplicationdid not
demonstratethat theRandolphCountyPlanwasdesignedto protectthehealth,safetyandwelfare(criterionii) and
thatthefacility wasconsistentwith thesolid wastemanagementplan(criterionviii) is againstthemanifestweightof
theevidence.Land andLakessetsforththreeargumentswith regardto criterionii. First,LandandLakesmaintains
thattheRandolphCountyBoardimproperlyfoundthat thecriterionwasnotmetbecauseofanalleged
Inconsistencyin thesolid wastemanagementplan. Pet.Br. at 30. Second,RandolphCountyBoard’suseof traffic
concernsasabasisfor denialof criterion Li is inconsistentwith thedecisionon criterionvi,’ whichdealsexplicitly
with traffic patterns.Pet.Br. at 33. Third, LandandLakesarguesthattheuseoftraffic concernsin Randolph
CountyBoard’sdenialof criterionii is anillegal “conditionaldenial”. Pet.Br. at 36.

Onthedenialof criterionviii, Land andLakesalsoputsforththreearguments.Thefirst is thatthe
“exclusionary”factorsrelieduponby theRandolphCountyBoardarenot apartof thesolid wastemanagement
plan. Pet.Br. at39. Secondly,the“exclusionary”factorsaremerelyrecommendations.Pet.Br. at41, Finally, Land
andLakesarguesthatthesetbackclauseviolatestheAct; exceedstheauthority-of-Randolph-CountyundertheSolid
WastePlanningAct; andis badpolicy.

LandandLakesmaintainsthattheRandolphCountyBoardimproperlyfound thatcriterionII wasnot metbecause
of anallegedInconsistencyIn thesolidwastemanagementplan

LandandLakespointsout~hattheRandolphCountyBoardIndicatedthattheprovisionin thesolid waste
managementplanprohibitinglandfills within oneandahalf-miles of amunicipalitywasintendedto protectthe
health,safetyandwelfareof RandolphCounty residents.And basedonthat,aswell asotherreasonsdiscussed
below,RandolphCountyBoarddeterminedthatcriterionif wasnot met.

LandandLakesarguesthattheRandolphCountyBoarderroneouslyuseditsInterpretationofthefacility’s
consistencywith thesolidwastemanagementplanto denycompliancewith criterion Ii. Pet.Br. at 30. Landand
Lakesreasonsthatcriterionviii is thepropercriterionunderwhichto considerconsistencywith thesolid waste
managementplan. Id. LandandLakesstates: “[t]o allowadecisionmakerto denyanapplicationundermorethan
onecriteria, for thesamereason,would rendertheseparatecriteriameaningless.”Pet.Br. at 31. If aproposed
facffity Isnotconsistentwith thesolidwastemanagementplanthepropercriterionfor denialis criterionviii. Id.

LandandLakesalsoassertsthatno personpresentedanytestimonyorcommenton thepurposeof theone
andahalf-milesetback. Pet.Br. at 32. LandandLakes,however,presentedevidencethatthefacility complieswith
all federalandstatelocationstandards.TOC 3 at Vol. 3, PartIV. Therewasno challengeto LandandLakes’
evidenceonthelocationstandardsandnocommentwasmade.Pet.Br. at32.

LandandLakesalsoarguesthatRandolphCountyBoard’sexpert,Rhutasel,testifiedto theexistenceof the
setbackbut only asit relatesto criterionviii. Pet.Br. at 32. LandandLakesarguesthatthereis no evidencethatthe
oneandahalf-milesetbackIs relatedto thepublic health,safety,andwelfare. Id.

‘Section39.2(vl)oftheAct (criteriavi) providesthat “thetraffic patternsto andfrom thefacility aresodesignedas
to minimize theimpacton existingtraffic flows.”
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Land andLakesmaintainsthat theRandolphCountyBoard’suseof trafficconcernsasabasisfor denialof criterion
ii is inconsistentwith thedecisionon criterionvi whichdealsexplicitly with traffic patterns

LandandLakesindicatedthatasecondreasonfor denyingsiting basedoncriterion ii, wasRandolph
CountyBoard’sconcernsabouttraffic patterns.LandandLakesarguesthatthedecisionon criterionii directly
conflictswith RandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionthattheapplicationmettherequirementsof criterionvi. Pet.Br. at
34. LandandLakesarguescriterionvi is theproperplaceto directconcernsabouttraffic patterns. Id. Landand
Lakesalsoarguesthatthedenialbasedon criterionills “particularly objectionable”becauseit is basedonissueover
whichRandolphCountyhascontrol,notLand andLakes. Pet.Br. at 35.

LandandLakesmaintainsthattheuseof traffic concernsin RandoI~hCountyBoard’sdenialof criterion ii is an
illegal “conditionaldenial”

LandandLakesarguesthattheRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionis internallyinconsistentandin effectis
a“conditionaldenial”. Pet.Br. at 36. LandandLakesarguesthattheRandolphCountyBoardfoundthatcriterion
ii wasnotmetandthenstates:

anyeffort to curethis lackof compliance,wouldataminimum, requiretheApplicantto comply
with anyandall recommendationsmadeby theRandolphcountHighwayDepartmentconcerning
permanentroadupgrades,permanentroadimprovements.. .. In addition,theApplicant,wouldat
aminimum,needto implementandcomplywith all ongoingroadmaintenanceequipmentwhich
would beprescribedby theRandolphCountyHighwayDepartment.Pet.Br. at 36, citing Exh.C
at 4.

LandandLakesarguesthattheabovelanguageconstitutesa“conditionaldenial” ofthetypewhichthe
Boardfoundto.beinappropriatein LandandLakesCompanyv. Vifiage of Romeovilie(December6, 1991), PCB 91-
7. In thatcasetheBoardstated:

Sections39.2(a)and(e) of theAct, however,do notcontemplatetheimpositionof conditionsupon
adenial. Rather,anyapplicantwho seekssiteapprovalof aproposedregionalpollution control
facility hastheright to expectthecountyboardormunicipalgoverningbodyto issuedefinitive
approval(whichallowsfor theadditionofconditionsthatarereasonablyrelatedto thecriteria)or
denialof its siting application.Tohold otherwisewould beunfairto theapplicant.Landand
LakesCompanyv. Village of Romeoville(December6, 1991),PCB 91-7

LandandLakesmaintainsthat the “exclusionary”factorsrelied uponby theRandolphCountyBoard,In finding
thatcriterionvlli wasnot met,is notapartofthesolidwastemanagementplan

In determiningthattheapplicationhadnotdemonstratedcompliancewith criterionviii, theRandolph
CountyBoardadoptedthefinding ofthePlanningCommission.Pet.Br. at 39. ThePlanningCommissionfound
thatthesolid wastemanagementplan“excludessiteswithin 1.5 milesof municipallimits” andthat thefacility’s
proposedsiting within onemile of Spartameantthattheapplicationdid notmeetcriterionviit TOC 8 at6.

LandandLakescontendsthatthesolid wastemanagementplandoesnot excludefacilitieslocatedwithin
oneandahalf-milesof amunicipality. Pet.Br. at 40. SpecIfically,LandandLakesarguesthatonly apartof the
documententitled “Solid WasteManagementPlanfor Bond,Clinton, Randolph,andWashingtonCountiesin
Illinois” is anactual“solid wastemanagementplan”. Id. Thepartof thedocumentsLandandLakesconsidersthe
“solid wastemanagementplan” is chapter12. LandandLakesassertsthattherest.of thedocument’schapters
“provide extensivebackgroundonsolid wastemanagementissues,including landfills, butarenot partofthe ‘county
solidwastemanagementplan’.” Id.

Theprovisionin theRandolphCountyPlanwherethesetbackis locatedis not in chapter12, accordingto
Land andLakes. And, LandandLakesassertsnowherein chapter12 is thereamentionof locationcriteria.
Therefore,LandandLakesconcludesIt is clearthatthesetbacksarenot apartof thePlan. Pet.Br. at40.
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LandandLakesmaintainsthat the“exclusionary”factorsrelieduponby theRandolphCountyBoard,in finding
thatcriterionviii wasnotmet, aremerelyrecommendations

LandandLakesarguesthat,evenif thesetbackIs apartof thePlan, thetextof theRandolphCountyPlan
refersto thelocationfactorsas“recommendedlocal criteria”. Pet.Br. at 41. Further,LandandLakesarguesthat
Darryl ThompsonManagerof GeneralPlanningfor SIMAPC,theentity thatdraftedthedocument,opinedthatthe
locationof anewlandfIll in RandolphCountythatIs acceptableto localgovernmentis consistentwith theirSolid
WasteManagementPlan. Pet.Br. at41. Therefore,LandandLakesassertsthatThompson“was of theopinionthat
theproposedlandfill is consistentwith thesolidwastemanagementplan.” Id.

LandandLakesassertsthatthereis noevidencein therecordthatcontradictsThompson’sopinion. Pet.Br.
at43. Further,thereportpreparedfor RandolphCountyby RhutaselandAssociates,consultingengineers(Rhutasel
Report),only statedthatthesetbackwarrantedfurtherconsideration.Id. TheIThutaselReportwentonto conclude
that“therewasno reasonto disagreewith theconclusions”of LandandLakesandThompson,accordingto Land
andLakes. Id. Thus,LandandLakesmaintainsthedecisionby theRandolphCountyBoardthatcriterionviii Is not
metwasagainstthemanifestweightoftheevidence. Id.

LandandLakesmaintainsthatthesetbackclauseviolatestheAct; exceedstheauthorityof RandolphCountyunder
theSolid WastePlanningAct; andis badpolicy

LandandLakespointsoutthatSection39.2of theAct establishesaunified,statewide,siting process.Pet.
Br. at 43-44. TheBoardhasadoptedregulationsfor landfillswhichincludelocationstandards-andsetbacks.Pet.Br.
at 44. TheBoarddidnot includeasetbackfor municipalities. Id. LandandLakesarguesthatallowingcountiesto
beginaddingadditionalsitinglocationcriteria,outsidethosein Section39.2of theAct wouldviolatetheunified
statewideplanenvisionedby thelegislature. Id. LandandLakesfurtherarguesthatthesetbackis anattemptto
incorporate“zoning powers” in thePlan. Pet.Br. at 44-45. Thus,LandandLakesreasonssincezoningIs
specificallyexemptfromconsiderationin Section39,2sitingproceedings,theinclusionof thesetbackviolatestheAct.

LandandLakesalsoarguesthat acountyboardhastheauthorityto adoptasolid wastemanagementplan
undertheSolidWastePlanningandRecyclingAct. 415 ILCS 15/1 eL seq.(1998). However,thatauthority doesnot
allowacountyboardto “addlocationcriteria” to thecriteriaalreadyadoptedby thelegislature,arguesLandand
Lakes. Pet.Br. at 45.

Finally, LandandLakessuggeststhatthesetbackis badpolicybecauseit would not allowamunicipalityto
own andoperateafacility within themunicipalityboundaries.Pet, Br. at 46.

RandolphCountyArguments

RandolphCountyarguesthatthedecisionby theRandolphCountyBoardis supportedby therecord.
Specifically,on criterionii, RandolphCountysetsforth fourarguments:first, thattheoneandahalf-mileexclusion
is relatedto criterion ii; secondthattheconditionofthesurroundingroadsis relatedto criterion ii; third, Randolph
Countymayusethesamefactsto find afailureto meettwo separatecriteria;and,fourth, thattheRandolphCounty
Boarddid not issueaconditIonaldenial. Oncriterionviii, RandolphCountyenunciatesfive arguments.Randolph
Countyarguesthattheplain languageoftheRandolphCountyPlanandthetestimonyof RandolphCounty’s
expertssupportsthedecisiononcriterionviii. Next, RandolphCountyarguesthatadeterminationonthe
consistencyoftheRandolphCountyPlandoesnot requireexperttestimony.Third, RandolphCountyarguesthatit
is beyondthe Board’sauthorityto determinetheproprietyofthesolid wastemanagementplan. Fourth, Randolph
Countyassertstheoneandahalf-mileexclusiondoesnotviolatetheAct. And fifth, RandolphCountymaintainsthe
oneandahalf-mileexclusionIsapartof theAct. TheBoardwill summarizeeachof thosearguments.

RandolphCountyassertsthat theoneandahalf-mileexclusionis relatedto thepublic’shealth,safety,andwelfare

RandolphCountyassertsthat It wasfreeto considertheproximity of thelandfill--In Its assessmentof
whetherthelandfill waslocatedto promotehealth,safety,andwelfare. Reap.Br. at 52. RandolphCounty
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maintainsthat it is “consistentwith conventionallogic andreason”that theclosera landfill is to populationthemore
likely it will affecthealth,safety,andwelfare. Id. RandolphCounty believesthatthesolid wastemanagementplan
reflectsthis logic becausetheexclusionaryfactorsarelistedbecause-ofenvirornuental-protectionparticularlyof
groundwaterIsaprimaryconcern. Id. Further,becausetheapplicationincludedoneoftheexclusionaryfactors
identified by thePlan,it is evidenceof thepotentialnegativeimpactto thehealth,safety,andwelfare. Id.

RandolphCountyassertsthattheconditionof thesurroundingroadsis relatedto thepublic’s health,safety,and
welfare

RandolphCountymaintainsthattheRandolphCountyBoardfound thatcriterionii wasnot metbecauseof
the “excessivewearandtear” on theroads,not becauseof trafficpatterns.Reap.Br. at 53. Rhutaselmadethese
distinctionsin thetestimony. Id. RandolphCounty assertsthatIt wasnot againstthemanifestweightof the
evidenceto follow thisdistinctionandfind thatcriterionii wasnotmet. Resp.Br. at 54.

RandolphCountyassertsthat theRandolphCountyBoardmayusethesamefactsto find failure to meettwo
separatecriteria

RandolphCountyfirst assertsthatLandandLakesdoesnotpoint tcianyauthorityfor its argumentthatthe
RandolphCountyBoardcannotusethesamefactsto find thattwo criteriaarenotmet. Reap.Br. at 54. Next,
RandolphCountyarguesthatthecriteriaof Section39.2overlapandcriterionIlls so broadthatit is likely thatany
failure to meetoneofthe Section39.2criteriawould alsobeafailure to meetcriterion Ii. Id. RandolphCountyalso
arguesthatthis Isnotacaseoffirst impression.RandolphCountycitesto IndustrialFuelsandResources/Illinoisv.
Harvey (September27, 1990),PCB 90-53,in supportof this proposition. RandolphCountymaintainsthatHarvey
usedthesamereasonsto denysiting on twoseparatecriteriain thatInstance.Reap.Br. at 55.

RandolphCountyassertsthattheRandolphCountyBoarddid notissueaconditionaldenial

RandolphCountycontendsthat thedenialof siting undercriterion ii wasnot a“conditionaldenial”
becausesitingwas“flatly” deniedundercriterionii. Reap.Br. at 55. RandolphCountyassertsthat thereis no
indicationthattheRandolphCountyBoardwould reverseitsdecisionif theapplicantmetthe“recommendations”
madeby theRandolphCountyBoard. Reap.Br. at 56, Therefore,thedenialwasnot conditional.

RandolphCountyalsoassertsthattheRandolphCountyBoardnotedin its decisionthat“notwithstanding
LandandLakes’ failure to demonstratecompliance”with criterionii, theRandolphCountyBoard“feelscompelled
to makecertainadditionalFindings”concerningcriterionII. Id. Amongthoseadditionalfindingswasthatthe
routespreferredby LandandLakeswerenot ClassI roadsandthuswould puthighweightandstressdemandson
theroads.Resp.Br. at 55-56.

RandolphCountyassertsthattheplain languageof theRandolphCountyPlanandthetestimonyof theexperts
supportedRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisiononcriterionviii

RandolphCountyarguesthattheplain languageofthesolidwastemanagementplansupportsthedecision
thatLandandLakes’ applicationwasinconsistentwith thePlan. Reap.Br. at 43. RandolphCountyassertsthat,
regardlessof whetherthelanguagein theRandolphCountyPlanis arecommendationorarequiredexclusion,it is
within theauthorityofthesiting authorityto follow the RandolphCountyPlanandexcludesiting. Reap.Br. at 43.
RandolphCountymaintainsthatall solid wastemanagementplansare“to someextent” recommendationssinceit is
within thecounty’spurviewto determineconsistency.Second,RandolphCountyarguesthattheRandolphCounty
Planstatesthat“parcelsorareasofwhichcontainedanyof theexclusionarycharacteristicswould not beconsidered
in thesiteidentificationprocess.”Resp.Br. at43, cIting Exh. 6 at207. Theexclusionarycharacteristicsincludethe
oneandahalf-milerestrictionandtheRandolphCountyPlancouldnot beanyclearerthatsuchproposalsshouldbe
excluded,arguesRandolphCounty. Id.

RandolphCountyfurtherstatesthatthetestimonyof Rhutaselwasthattheoneandahalf-milerestriction
wasanexclusionaryprovision. Reap.Br. at 44. RandolphCountymaintainsit wasnot necessaryfor Rhutaselto
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give RandolphCountyBoardtheultimatelegalconclusionthattheapplicationwasinconsistentwith Plan,the
RandolphCountyBoardaloneis theonewho mustmakethat determination.Resp.Br. at 44. ThePlanning
Commissionalsomadethatdetermination.Id.

RandolphCountyalsopointsout thatLand andLakesrelieson aletterfrom Thompson.who did not testify
at hearing. Resp.Br. at 45. ThePlanningCommissionfoundtheletterto be“equivocal” andtheletterdoesnot even
mentiontheoneandahalf-mileexclusion.Reap.Br. at45. Therefore,RandolphCountyassertsit wasappropriate
for thePlanningCommissionandtheRandolphCountyBoardto hesitateto rely on Thompson’sconclusions.Id.

RandolphCountyassertsthatadeterminationof theconsistencywith theRandolphCountyPlandoesnot require
experttestimony

RandolphCountyarguesthatit doesnottakeanexpertto determinewhatIs intendedby theplain
languageof asolid wastemanagementplan,or to tell theRandolphCountyBoardthatonemile is lessthanoneand
ahalf-miles. Reap.Br. at 46. RandolphCountystatesthat generallyexpertopinionsneedonly beusedwhenthe
subjectmatteris beyondthe“ken or understandingof theaverageperson.” Resp.Br. at 46,cIting Hernandesv.
PowerConstruction73 Ill. 2d 90, 382 fll.App. 3d 1201,1205(1978). Thusevenwithout thetestimonyof Rhutasel,
theRandolphCountyBoardcoulddeterminethattheapplicationwasinconsistentwith thePlan. Resp.Br. at46.

To furthersubstantiatetheargumentthatadditionalexperttestimonywasnot required,RandolphCounty
assertsthat bothStorkandMooreservedontheexecutivecommitteeof SIMPkC,whichauthoredthePlan. Reap.
Br. at 47. Therefore,RandolphCountyargues,It wasnot againstthemanifestweightof theevidenceto find the
applicationInconsistentwith thePlan. Reap.Br. at 47.

RandolphCountyassertsthat it is beyondtheBoard’sauthorityunderSection40.1(a)to determinetheproprietyof
RandolphCounty’ssolid wastemanagementPlan

RandolphCountyarguesthattheBoard’sSection40.1oftheAct allowstheBoardto reviewalocaldecision
madeunderSection39.2of theAct. Thus, RandolphCountyassertstheBoardmayreviewonly thesubstanceof a
Section39.2heatingandthereis noauthorizationto reviewtheRandolphCountyPlanitself. Resp.Br. at 48.

RandolphCountyassertsthattheoneandahalf-mile exclusiondoesnot violatetheAct

RandolphCountyfirst assertsthattheexclusiondoesnotviolatetheAct becausetheRandolphCountyPlan
wasreviewedby theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgencypursuantto Section4(b) of theSolid WastePlanning
andRecyclingAct (415 ILCS 15/4(b))to Insureconsistencywith theAct. Reap.Br. at 48. RandolphCountyargues
that it is “ludicrous” for LandandLakesto arguetheRandolphCountyPlanviolatestheAct when“the agency
responsivefor enforcingtheActhasalreadyconfiguredthePlan’sconsistencywith theAct.” Reap.Br. at 48.

RandolphCountyassertsthat theoneandahalf-mileexclusionis apartof thesolid wastemanagementplan

RandolphCountyassertsthattheplain languageofthe RandolphCountyPlanmakesclearthattheentire
documentis thesolidwastemanagementplan. Reap.Br. at 50.

LandandLakes’Reply

LandandLakes,In Its reply,makessomenewargumentsin responseto RandolphCountyandreassertsIts
positionon others. TheBoardwill summarizebriefly thenewarguments,andwherenecessary,thereassertion.

LandandLakesarguesthatRandolphCountyhas“filled” its response“with misstatementsof factand
unsupporteddeclarations.”Replyat 19. LandandLakesassertsthatRandolphCountyhasmischaracterize-d-the
conclusionsof Rhutasel. Id. LandandLakesarguesthatlThutaselsimplyidentifiedtheexistenceof thesetbackand
foundno “reasonto disagree”with theconclusionof LandandLakes. Id. Further,LandandLakesarguesthat
thereis no evidencethatStorkandMooreweremembersof SIMPAC whenthesolidwastemanagementplanwas
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adopted. Id. LandandLakesmaintainsthatRandolphCountyrelieson theletterheadfrom Thompson’sletterfor
supportthat StorkandMooreservedontheSIMPAC atthetimethe RandolphCountyPlanwasauthored. Id.
LandandLakespoints outtheRandolphCountyPlanwasauthoredin 1996andtheThompsonletterwaswritten in
1998. Replyat 19; citing TOC 3 atVol. 2.

LandandLakesalsocontendsthatRandolphCountymakesseveral“baldstatementsof whatIt assertsto
bethelaw” withoutsupportingcitationsto thelaw. Replyat 20. SpecificallyLand andLakespointsto Randolph
County’sassertionthatalocalgovernmentis freeto legislateenvironmentalstandardsmorestringentthanthoseof
theAct. Replyat 20. LandandLakesarguesthatthisassertionmissesthedistinctionbetween“environmental
standards”andthesitingprocess.Id. LandandLakessitesto Section39.2(g) of theActassupportfor its argument.

LandandLakesalsorespondsto RandolphCountyby reassertingthatthesetbackor“exclusionary”factor
is not partoftheplan. Replyat 17. LandandLakesarguesthattheplain languageof thedocumentindicatesthat
theRandolphCountyPlanis in chapter12. LandandLakesalsoreassertsthat it is improperto usethesamefactsto
denysiting for two separatecriteria. Replyat22. LandandLakesgoeson to point outthat thecasecitedby
RandolphCountyto supportits positionon this issuewasacasewhereintheBoardwasreversed,IndustrialFuelsv.
PCB, 227111.App. 3d 533,592 N.E.2d148, 159 (1stDIst. 1992).

Finally, LandandLakesarguesthattheBoarddoeshavetheauthorityto reviewRandolph-County’s
decisionon consistencywith thePlan. Replyat 18. LandandLakesarguesthattheBoardis reviewingthe
interpretationof theRandolphCountyPlanusedby RandolphCounty,nottheRandolphCounty Planitself. Id.

Discussion

Asstatedabove,theBoardreviewsthedecisionof theRandolphCountyBoardto determineif thedecision
is againstthemanifestweightoftheevidence.TheBoardis not in apositionto reweightheevidence,butmust
determineIf thedecisionis againstthemanifestweightof theevidence.FairviewAreaCitizensTaskforcev. PCB,
198 lll.App. 3d 541,555N.E.2d 1178 (3rdDIst. 1990). Therefore,theBoardmustdecideIf theevidencein therecord
supportsthedecisionby RandolphCountyBoardthatLand andLakesfailed to meetcriteriaII andviii. Basedon a
reviewof therecordandfor thefollowing reasons,theBoardfindsthattherecordsupportstheRandolphCounty
Board’sfindingson both criteria ii andviii.

OnegeneralargumentwhichLandandLakesmakesconcerningtheRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionon
thetwo criteriaIsthatRandolphCounty’sexpert,Rhutasel,foundthatLandandLakeshadsatisfiedthetwo
criteria. TheBoardis not persuadedthattherecommendationsof RandolphCounty’sexpertarebindingon the
decisionmaker.SeeMcLeanCountyDisposalCompany,Inc. v. CountyofMcLean (November15, 1989),PCB 89-
108,aff’d. McLeanCountyDisposal,Inc. v.Countyof McLean,207Ill. App. 3d 352, 566N.E.2d 26, 29 (4th Dist.
(1991)). TheBoardwill nowcontinueIts discussionby focusingfirst oncriterionII andthenoncriterionviii.

Criterionii -

TheBoardfindsthatthedecisionto denysiting basedon criterionills notinconsistentwith theRandolph
CountyBoard’sdecisionon criterionvi. RandolphCounty’s findingsoncriterion ii indicatethat therewereconcerns
raisedduringthecourseofthesitinghearingon thematterof roads.Reap.Exh. 4 at 3. Morespecifically,the
findingsindicatedthatmostof theroadssuggestedby LandandLakesaspreferredtransportroutesarenot classified
asClassI Iffinois Departmentof Transportation“80,000pound” roads. However,asignificantnumberof vehicles
transportingwasteto thefacility would beover80,000poundsin weight. Id.

TheRandolphCountyBoardfoundthatif theroadsarenot upgradedorrestrictedtheroadswould be
subjectto excessivewearanddeterioration.Id. This couldcauseIncreasinglynarrowpathwaysof travel. Resp.
Exh. 4at 4. This finding wasbasedin parton thetestimonyof Rhutaselatthecountyhearing. Hestatedthat:
“[ojur concernsarenotrelatedto thetrafficpatterns,butrelatedto the-capability-ofthe-existingroadsto handlethe-

- I guesstheweightoftheloadsthatwould be placedonthem,andtheactualwidth oftheroadwaysandtheimpact
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thatthetruckscarryingtherefuseto thelandfill would haveonthem,” TOC 2 at 60-61. Thus,RandolphCounty’s
expertexpressedconcernsabouttheroads,whichwerenotrelatedto traffic patterns.

In addition,testimonywasprovidedby Craig Holan’atthepublichearingontheissueof roadsafety.
Holantestifiedthathedisagreedwith theconclusionsmadeby LandandL-akes’ expertson theissueof traffic. TOC
2 at9 1-92. Holanspecificallynotedthenarrowwidths oftheroadwaysandsteepembankments.TOC2 at 96. He
alsoindicatedthattherewere“sight distanceproblems”withsomeof theIntersections.TOC at 97.

In contrast,thetestimonyof LandandLakes’expertNormanRodenindicatesthatthereportpreparedand
submittedasapartof theapplicationdid not look atthestructuralconditionsof theroads.TOC 2 at 191. Roden
statedthat:

Wemadeaninspectionof thesiteandtheareaandthenpreparedsometraffic surveyswhich
includedtrafficvolumecounts,surveysoftime anddistance,relativetimesof distancesvia
alternativeroutesfromvariouspoints to thepotentiallandifil siteandthenperformedacapacity
analysesfor acoupleof keyintersectionswithin thatareaTOC 2 at 191.

RandolphCountyalsoreceivedanumberof commentswhichindicatedaconcernwith theconditionof the
roads. Someof thecommentspresentedincludethattherewould bea“break downofroads”,thattherewould be
“dangerfromtruck traffic”, andthepresenceof thelandfill would not “allow for safetravel.” TOC 9 at C2,C3,
C21,C24,C26, C27, C35, C54,C55, andC56.

Thetranscriptfrom thecountyboardmeetingwheretheRandolphCountyBoardmadeits decisionclearly
indicatesthateachof thememberssharedtheconcernsoftheir expertaboutroads. All threemembersindicatedthat
theywereconcernedabouttheability oftheroadsto handlethetrucksweighingover80,000pounds.Reap.Exh. 3
at 16-17. In fact.ChairmanStorkstates: “I thinksimply thehills - - if you’vetraveledtheroad,there’shills and
narrow (sic), andtheamountoftrucktraffic on therewould notbe conduciveto theresidencesthere.” Reap.Exh. 3
at 17. In contrastoncriterionvi, themembersexpressedconcernson themaintenanceoftheroadsbutthemembers
felt that theactualtraffic planwassufficient. Resp.Exh.3 at24-26. ChairmanStorkstated: “I thinkthatmostof it
Is Immaterialhow theygetto theHollowayRoad,butI dofeellike theyhaveminimizedit.” Reap.Exh. 3 at 25.
Thus,theRandolphCountyBoarddid notadoptinconsistentfindingsonthecriteriaii andvI, but rather
distinguishedbetweenthetwo.

TheBoarddisagreeswith LandandLakes’contentionthatthis is aconditionaldenial. Thelanguagequoted
by LandandLakesis only apartof theentirefinding on criterion11. RandolphCountyfoundthattherecorddid not
supportafinding thatcriterionII hadbeenmet; thenRandolphCountywentonto makeadditionalfindings. Resp.
Exh.4 at 3. Theseadditionalfindings involvedtheconcernsabouttraffic on thecountyroadsandthelanguage
quotedby LandandLakes. TheBoard’sreadingof thatlanguageis thattheRandolphCounty Boardwasonly
explainingwhatlengthswould benecessaryto demonstratecompliancewith criterionii, not aconditionaldenial.
TheBoardhasreviewedits decisionin LandandLakesCompanyv. Vllla~eof Romeovifie(December6, 1991),PCB
91-7andtheBoardis notconvincedthatthetwo casesarefactuallysimilar. Therefore,theBoardfindsthatthis Is
not aconditionaldenial.

TheBoarddoesagreewith LandandLakesthattheRandolphCountyBoardimproperlyfoundthat
criterionIi wasnot metbecauseof thelack of aoneandahalf~miIe=setback.Theonly indicationthatthis Issuewas
raisedbeforeRandolphCountythattheBoardcanfind in therecordis in lettersfrom personsopposingthelandfill.
e.g.,TOC9 at C15,C27. Further,RandolphCountyhasnotpointedto anyevidenceIn therecord. Therefore,the
Boardagreesthatdenialofsiting approvalundercriterionii based-on-theoneandahalf-milesetbackwas
inappropriate.However,astheBoardagreeswith theuseof thetrafficconcernsasadenialreason,theBoard
upholdsRandolphCounty’sdecisionon criterionII.

~Holanhasabouteight yearsof post-graduateschoolworkdoingtraffic impactstudiesandtransportationplanning.
TOC 2 at 90.
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Criterionviii

TheBoardis not persuadedby LandandLakesargumentthattheoneandahalf-milesetbackor
“exclusionary”factoris not apartof thePlan. If the Boardwereto agreethatonly “Chapter12” wasthePlan,then
thesolid wastemanagementplanwould notincludeadIscussionon “Solid WasteNeedsReview” (chapter2) or a
discussionon “Recycling” (chapter4). Further,theSolid WastePlanningandRecyclingAct (415 ILCS 15/i etseq.),
whichrequiredtheadoptionof solidwastemanagementplans,setsforththeminimum requirementsfor aplan.
Thoserequirementsincludeareviewof solidwasteneedsandarecyclingprogram. See415 ILCS 15/4and15/6
(1998). Thus,theSolid WastePlanningandRecyclingActsupportsaninterpretationthattheRandolphCounty
Planadoptedby RandolphCountyis theentiretyofthe document.

Next,LandandLakesarguesthattheoneandahalf-milesetbackis not anexclusionaryfactor. Again, the
Boardmustdisagree.Theplain languageof theRandolphCountyPlanindicatesthat: “exclusionarycriteriaare
usedto screenindividual parcelsor areas.Parcelsorareaswhichcontainedanyoftheexclusionarycharacteristics
would notbeconsideredIn thesite identificationprocess.Areasorparcelswhichremainaftertheexclusionary
criteria,would bescreenedagainsttheinciusionarycriteriato identify parcelsforconsideration:fcrron.sIte
investigations.”ThelanguageIsdearthatexclusionarycriteriaaredesignedto eliminatesites. Theexclusionary
criteriaIncludetheoneandahalf-milesetback. Therefore,theRandolphCountyPlanclearlyexcludesfacilities
within oneandahalf-milesof amunicipality. Theapplicationsubmittedby LandandLakesplacedthepollution
control facility within onemile of Sparta. Therefore,therecordindicatesthattheapplicationwasnotconsistent
with theplanandcriterionviii hasnot beenmet,

Land andLakesalsoarguesthatthesetbackclauseviolatestheAct, Is beyondRandolphCounty’s
authority,andis badpolicy. RandolphCountyarguesin responsethattheBoarddoesnot havetheauthorityto
reviewtheprovisionsof thesolidwastemanagementplan. TheSolid WastePlanningandRecyclingActrequires
thatsolid wastemanagementplansbepreparedandsubmittedto th&Agencyfor review. 415 ILCS 15/4 (1998).
TheAgencyis chargedwith reviewingtheplan“to ensureconsistencywith therequirementsof thisAct.” 415 ILCS
15/4 (1998). However,thereis no mentionthatareviewfor consistencywith theEnvironmentalProtectionAct has
beenperformed,eitherby theAgencyortheBoard.

Section40.1of theAct grantstheBoardtheauthorityto reviewalocal decisiononsiting of apollution
control facility. Specifically,Section40.1 oftheAct states,in part:

no newor additionalevidencein supportof or in oppositionto anyfinding, order,determination
ordecisionofthecountyboard. . . shallbeheardby theBoard. In makingits ordersand
determinationsunderthis Section,theBoardshallincludein Its considerationthewritten decision
andreasonsfor thedecisionof thecountyboard... , thetranscribedrecordofthehearingheld
pursuantto subsection(d) of Section39.2,andthefundamentalfairnessof theproceduresused..

Section40. 1 of theAct.

Thus,theBoardmayonly reviewthecountyboard’sdecisionunderSection3aaoftheAct. And underSection39.2
(viii) oftheAct, theissueIswhethertheapplicationIsconsIstentwith thesolid wastemanagementplan. Therefore,
theBoardmayonly look to therecordanddetermineif thefinding thattheapplicationis inconsistentwith the
RandolphCountyPlanwasagainstthemanifestweightoftheevidence.

Asdiscussedabove,thelanguageof theRandolphCountyPlanIs clearthat theoneandahalf-milesetback
Is exclusionary.As thelanguageoftheRandolphCountyPlanis clear, theRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionthat
theapplicationfor afacifity within onemile ofSpartawasinconsistentwith thePlan,is not againstthemanifest
weightof theevidence. TheBoardtherefore,upholdsthedecisionby RandolphCountyoncriterionviii.

CONCLUSION

TheBoardfindsthat themembersof theRandolphCountyBoardweresubjectto numerouscontacts
outsidetherecordoftheproceeding.Thesecontactswereexpaltecontacts.However,thesecontactsdid not affect
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theultimatedecisionanddid not prejudiceLandandLakes. Thereforepursuantto WasteManagementv. PCBand
E& EHaulingv. PCB theproceedingswerenot taintedby thecontactsandwerenotfundamentallyunfair.

TheBoardalsofindsthattheRandolphCountyBoard’sdecisionto denysiting basedon failure to satisfy
Section39.2 (ii) and(viii) if theAct is not againstthemanliestweightof the evidence.Therecordcontainsevidence
thatthereareconcernsfor publicsafetydueto roadconfigurationaswell aswearandtearon countyroads. The
recordalsoindicatesthatthesolid wastemanagementplancontainsan exclusionaryclauseagainstsitingafacffity
within oneandahalf-milesof amunicipality. LandandLakes’applicationwouldsiteits pollutioncontrolfacthty
within oneandahalf-milesof themunicipalityof Sparta.Therefore,thedecisionis not againstthemanifestweight
of theevidence.

ThisopinionconstitutestheBoard’sfindingsof factandconclusionsoflawIn this matter

ORDER

Forthe reasonspresentedIn theBoard’opinion,theBoardaffirmstheOctober19, 1998decisionby the
RandolphCountyBoardof Commissionersdenyingsiting of apollutioncontrol facility for LandandLakes
Company.

IT IS SOORDERED.

BoardMembersE.Z. KezellsandS.T. Lawton,Jr.dissented.

ChairmanC.A. Manningconcurred.

Section41 oftheEnvironmentalProtectionAct (415 ILCS 5/41 (1998)) providesfor theappealof final
Boardordersto theillinois AppellateCourtwithIn 35 daysof serviceof thisorder. Illinois SupremeCourtRule 335
establishessuchfiling requirements.See145 ifi. 2dR. 335; seealso 35 ifi. Adm. Code101.246,Motions for
Reconsideration,

I, DorothyM. Gunn,ClerkoftheIllinois PollutionControlBoard,herebycertify thattheaboveopinionand
orderwasadoptedonthe21st dayof September2000by avoteof 5-2.

DorothyM. Gunn,Clerk
illinois PollutionControlBoard
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Criterion viti

CONCLUSION

The Board linds that the members of the Randolph County Board were subJeci to numerous contacts oulstde the record
of the proceeding. These contacts were ex partecontacts. However, these contacts did not affect
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W~~E u~~MeMT WASTE MANAGEMENT

May 2, 2006 VIA FACSIMiLE (815I49O~49O1} Road
AND FIRST CLASS MAIL Lombard, IL 6014B~630)572-iiulOO

(630) 916-6160 Fax

Mr. Charles F. Heisten
Hinshaw & Culbertson
‘tOO Park Ave.
Roclcford, IL 61101

Re: Waste Manaoement .of illinois v. Kankakee.Countv Board. PCB 04-186

Dear Mr. Helsten:

The purpose of this letter is to make a settlement proposal to Kankakee County
regarding the pending litigation before the illinois Pollution Control Board (“PCB”).
Waste Management believes that a settlement pursuant to the terms set forth below
provides both parties with a myriad of benefits, while both parties avoid a worst case
scenario. The proposed settlement is simple and straighiforward arid can be
consummated within a very short period of time, assuming both parties are
amenable.

1. Settlement of Pendina Pollution ControLBoard Case (No. 04-186). Kankakee
County and Waste Management are the only parties to the pending PCBcase.
Like any other contested legal matter, the parties to this case may settle their dispute
pursuant to an appropriate Stipulation filed with the PCB. Here, Waste Management
and the County would enter into a Stipulation in which the County agrees not to
contest Waste Management’s appeal and acknowledges that the underlying record
contains evidence supporting Waste Management’s contention that siting approval
should have been granted. The Order issued by the PCB as a result of this
Stipulation would be the same as the Order the PCB would issue if it found in Waste
Management’s favor in the pending appeal.

2. Amendment of Host Community Agreement. Simultaneously with Waste
Management and ‘the County entering into a Stipulation to settle the pending
PCB case, Waste Management and the County would enter into a further
Amendment to the Host Community Agreement, conditioned on Waste Management
achieving final and non-appealable siting pursuant to the settlement described
above. The Amendment would provide for the following, as well as any other
conforming changes identified by either of us.

a. Siting Conditions. Waste Management would agree to all of the
conditions set forth in the March 9, 2004 Kankakee County Regional
Planning Commission report entitled uRecommendations Relating to the
Application of WMII for Local Siting Approval of an Expansion of the
Existing Kankakee Landfill.’~ Among other things, this will insure that
the expansion will be developed with a double composite liner system.



2

b. Reduction in Out~of-CguntyWaste. The annual cumulative amount
of out-of-county waste Waste Management would be able to accept in
the expansion area would be reduced by one-third (a reduction of
328,967 tons per year).

c. Host Fee Payments. The one-time expansionfee would be reduced
by one-third (to $1,166,725) and the minimum guaranteed host fees
would be similarly reduced by one-third. However, the per ton host fee
paid to the County would not decrease.

d. Environmental Enhancement Fund. In addition to the existing par
ton host fee, Waste Management will pay an additional ten cents per
ton in order to fund a new Environmental Enhancement Fund to be
managed by the County and used, in the County’s discretion, to fund
environmental projects, including clean up projects, throughout the
County.

a. ~pport of New Technologies. In order to support the development
of new technologies for the management of solid waste, Waste
Management will make available to the County, or its designee, a five-
acre parcel of property adjacent to the Kankakee Landfill or at another
location acceptable to the County. This site can be used, at the
County’s discretion, as a location on which new waste management
technologies can be tested and refined.

3. Benefits of Settlement. Obviously, both the County and Waste Management
would avoid the uncertainties of continued litigation with respect to siting. If Waste
Management prevails in the pending case, the result would be an expanded landfill
that could accept more than IM tons ofwaste per year. If it does not, the Kankakee
Landfill will likely close permanently. The settlement would result in the County
assuring disposal capacity for its residents and businesses for an extended period
and would significantly reduce perceived traffic and other impacts identified by landfill
opponents. Assuming the expanded Kankakee Landfill accepts 650,000 tons of
waste annually, the County would receive payments exceeding $2,500,000 per year.

4. Time is of the Essence. If there appears to be a desire on the part of the County
to consider a settlement of this dispute. pursuant to the terms set forth above,
we should move forward quickly to finalize the required documentation so that the full
County Board can consider the documented..settlement at its May 10 meeting.
In order to expedite the County’s consideration of this proposal, I have provided a
copy of this letter to Ed Smith, the County State’s Attorney. I trust that either you or
Mr. Smith will provide a copy to the County Board Chairperson, Karl Kruse, for
distribution to Board members.

~o0 ~



Kankakee County
Special Board Meeting
May 25, 2005

SpecialMeeting of the Kankakee County Board
AGENDA

Wednesday,May 25, 2005 at 10:00 am.

Kankakee County Administration Building
189 East Court Street, Kankakee, Illinois

Fourth Floor Board Room

1. INVOCATION: George Washington, Jr.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL: Bruce Clark

4. PUBLIC COMMENTARY

5. OPEN SESSION- To present the issues and entertain positions relating
to litigation pending before the Illinois Pollution Control Board. Waste
Management of Illinois, Inc. v. County Board of Kankakee County,
Illinois, PBC Case No.: 04-186

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION — Discussion of said litigation pursuant to 5
ILCS 12012(c)(11)

7. OPEN SESSION: Debate, deliberation and to take action on said
litigation

8. New Business

9. Old Business

10. Adjournment

P~~nAI



[ I look forward to hearing from you.

Very truly yours,

~r. Dennis M. Wilt• Vice President and General Counsel — Midwest Group

DMWILK
cc: Lee Addleman

[ Dale Hoekstra
L Don Moran

Chris Rubak[ Ed Smith
c:\mydenis~2OOS*r~\heI~tenQ5Q2
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